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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present the 19" Annual Report on the business and operations of Veeda
Clinical Research Limited (“the Company”) together with the audited annual financial statements
showing financial position of the Company along with the summary of the standalone & consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with
rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“the Accounts Rules”). The standalone and
consolidated financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 is
summarized below:

(INR in millions)
PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue of Operations 2,961.53 2239.31 4,095.78 2880.26
Other Income 91.47 42.27 106.32 50.83
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, 635.62 453.07 1140.54 665.09
Amortization & Tax

Interest and Financial charges (53.32) (45.75) (138.82) (96.29)
Depreciation (211.32) (155.30) (380.25) (254.06)
Share of profit / (loss) from joint venture - - (26.67) 3.44
and associate (net of tax)

Exceptional Items - - - 341.17
Profit/(Loss) before taxes 370.98 252.02 594.80 659.35
Current Tax (126.14) (74.40) (192.79) (94.24)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (0.12) - 2.93 -
Deferred Tax 14.80 5.69 19.29 (60.53)
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 259.52 183.31 424.23 504.58

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for the future growth of the Company, the directors do not
recommend dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31% March, 2023.

RESERVES

The Company has reserve of INR 5,106.02 million (on standalone basis) as at the end of Financial Year.
The directors do not recommend any amount to be transferred to any reserve.




MAJOR EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR INCLUDING CHANGES IN SHARE
CAPITAL

>

Acquisition of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private

Limited

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement dated July 7, 2021 along with its amendments entered
into between the Company, Promoter of the Subsidiary Company and the Subsidiary Company,
the Company had acquired Equity shares of the Subsidiary Company. The details of the same

are provided as below:

Sr. Particulars Board / Share Total % of
No. Shareholder’s | Acquired Shares Shares
approval after Acquired
Acquisition
At the beginning of the year 53,64,304 75.10%
1 Investment through subscription Board 2,38,096 56,02,400 75.90%
of 2,38,096 fully paid up new approval:
Equity Shares of Face Value of | 24/05/2022
Rs. 10/- each for consideration
of Rs. 10,00,00,320 of M/s. | Shareholder’
Bioneeds India Private Limited. approval:
26/05/2022
2 | Investment through acquisition Board 5,95,240 61,97,640 83.97%
of 5,95,240 fully paid up Equity approval:
Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- |  24/05/2022
each for consideration of
Rs.25,00,00,800/- from Dr. S.N. | Shareholder’
Vinaya Babu, Promoter of M/s. approval:
Bioneeds India Private Limited. 26/05/2022
3 | Investment through acquisition Board 2,23,666 64,21,306 87%
of 2,23,666 fully paid up Equity approval:
Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- 18/11/2022
each for consideration of Rs.
10,00,01,069/- from Dr. S.N.
Vinaya Babu, Promoter of M/s.
Bioneeds India Private Limited.
» During the financial year under review, the Company had resolved to raise INR 1943.94 million

from the identified investors by way of preferential allotment on a private placement basis.

Date of Board Resolution

18/03/2023

Date of Shareholder Resolution

20/03/2023

Number of Equity Shares Offered

52,93,666 equity shares

Face value of shares

Fully Paid up Equity Shares of INR 2/- each

Number of shareholders to whom the shares were
issued

11 Investors

Total amount of offer

INR 1,94,39,40,028.52/-

Number of Equity shares issued and allotted

35,86,998 equity shares*

Number of shareholders to whom the shares were
issued

9 Investors

Total amount raised through Private Placement

INR 1,31,72,17,405.56/-

*Pursuant to the Offer and Partial Subscription of the offered Equity Shares, the Company issued

and allotted fresh equity shares on 12 May, 2023.




» The Board at their meeting held on 18/03/2023 approved the alteration of the Articles of
Association of the Company as per the terms and conditions of the agreements executed with
the identified investor. Further, the same was subsequently approved by the shareholders of the
Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20/03/2023.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company being unlisted Company, Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review in compliance with the provision of regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

Your Directors has presented the Company’s State of Affairs and the future growth trajectories in form
of Annexure-A to this report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
DISCLOSURE ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

Our Subsidiary Company, M/s. Bioneeds is a Leading Preclinical Contract Research Organization
(CRO) providing Preclinical services in form of Integrated Discovery, Development & Regulatory
Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal,
Nutraceutical & Medical Device Companies.

At the beginning of the year, the total equity shareholding of the Company in said Subsidiary Company
was 75.10%. During the year under review, the Company has acquired additional stake of 11.90% in
different tranches thereby aggregating the total equity shareholding of 87% stake of the Company in
Subsidiary Company. The details of said investment are mentioned as below:

1st Tranche:

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in the meeting dated 24™ May, 2022 and shareholder’s
approval in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) dated 26™ May, 2022, the Company acquired
additional stake of 8.87% in Subsidiary Company as below:

a) Subscription of 2,38,096 new equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited by infusing INR
10,00,00,320/- and;

b) Acquisition of 5,95,240 equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited from Dr. S. N. Vinaya
Babu(Promoter of Subsidiary Company) by making of an Investment of INR 25,00,00,800/-.

2nd Tranche:

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in the meeting dated 18" November, 2022, the
Company acquired additional stake of 3.03% in Subsidiary Company as below:

a) Acquisition of 2,23,666 equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited from Dr. S. N. Vinaya
Babu(Promoter of Subsidiary Company) by making of an Investment of INR 10,00,01,069/-.



With reference to above downstream investments, the Company had also obtained a Certificates for
Downstream Investment from Chartered Accountant certifying that;

A) The Company has obtained necessary approvals of Board as well as Shareholders for such
downstream investment;

B) Downstream investments made within foreign equity levels permitted;

C) All the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant FEMA regulations have been
complied with;

D) Investments made by the Company within the caps as specified in the FDI policy;

E) The investment is in compliance with Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and
Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer
or issue of security by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017;

F) The Investment Agreement/ Shareholder Agreement between the investor and the investee Company
is in compliance with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or issue of security
by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017, as amended from time to time.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2023 AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of report, except as stated below;

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, issued and allotted 35,86,998 Equity Shares to
the identified investors on preferential basis pursuant to the subscription of the Private Placement
Offer which was approved by the Board at their meeting held on 18" March, 2023 and shareholders
at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20™ March, 2023.

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, resolved to offer additional 28,86,552 Equity
Shares to the identified investors on preferential basis through the Private Placement offer. The same
was subsequently approved by the shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 5%
June, 2023.

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, resolved to acquire the remaining 50% shares
from M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. thereby making Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited as wholly
owned subsidiary.

e The Board at their meeting held on 18™ July, 2023;

% Resolved to approve purchase of Bio-Pharma division of the Subsidiary Company i.e. Bioneeds
India Private Limited.

% Resolved to approve purchase of business from the Joint Venture Company i.e. Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited.

% Resolved to approve alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company pursuant to the
Agreement entered into with identified investor. Further, the same was subsequently approved



by the shareholders of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 10th
August, 2023.

% Resolved to approve the issue and allotment of 15,24,970 Equity Shares to the identified
investors on preferential basis through private placement pursuant to the subscription of the
Private Placement Offer which was approved by the Board at their meeting held on 12th May,
2023 and shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 5th June, 2023.

¢ Resolved to approve acquisition of additional 2,95,385 (4% stake) Equity Shares of Face Value
of Rs.10/- each in Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited by way of
acquisition of said equity shares from Dr. S.N. Vinay Babu (Promoter of Subsidiary Company).
Consequent to the said acquisition, the total holding of the Company in its Subsidiary Company
has increased to 91% equity shareholding.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
have influence to the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems in place and has reasonable assurance on
authorizing, recording and reporting transactions of its operations in all material respects and in
providing protection and safeguard against misuse or loss of assets of the Company. The Company has
in place, well documented procedures covering critical financial and operational functions
commensurate with the size and complexities of the organization. Some of the salient features of the
internal control system in place are: -

1. Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

2. Preparation of annual budget for operation and service functions and monitoring the same with actual
performance at regular intervals.

3. Ensuring that assets are properly recorded and procedures have been put in place to safeguard against
any loss or unauthorized use or disposal.

In addition, the Company uses the services of an external audit firm (acting as Internal Auditor) to
periodically review various aspects of the internal control system to ensure that such controls are
operating in the way expected and whether any modification is required.

The Company’s internal financial controls are deployed through an internally evolved framework that
addresses material risks in the Company’s operations and financial reporting objectives, through a
combination of Entity Level Controls (including Enterprise Risk Management, Legal Compliance
Framework and Anti-fraud Mechanisms such as an Ethics Framework, Code of Conduct, Whistle
Blower Policy, Anti Money Laundering Policy, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy, etc.), Process
Controls, Information Technology based controls, period end financial reporting and closing controls
and Internal Audit.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year, there were no amount required to transfer into Investors Education Protection Fund.



PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

There are no such proceedings or appeals pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during
the year and at the end of the financial year even up to the date of this report.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company has not taken any loan from banks or financial institutions during the year under review
and hence, the difference in valuation is not applicable.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING
THE YEAR

The Board is of the opinion that all the independent directors appointed, are having good integrity and
possess the requisite expertise and experience (including the proficiency). The independent directors
have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the
declarations received from the independent directors, the Board has confirmed that they meet the criteria
of independence and that they are independent of the management.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Company has Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited in which Company
holds 87.00% shareholding as on 31*' March 2023. The Company also has step down Subsidiary
Company i.e Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited which is wholly owned by M/s. Bioneeds India
Private Limited as on 31% March 2023.

The Company has entered into a Joint Venture agreement with M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. based at
Canada and incorporated a joint venture entity named M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (IBS)
with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. As on 31° March, 2023, the Company holds 50%
shareholding in said Joint Venture Company. Further, the Board at their meeting held on 12 May,
2023, resolved and approved to acquire the remaining 50% shares from M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc.

The Statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary and Joint Venture
Company is annexed to this report as Annexure-B in prescribed Form AOC-1.

EMPLOYEES

Veeda continues to maintain its focus on attracting, hiring, training and inducting top Industry talent.
On the hiring front, the Company recruited exceptional talent from pharmacy colleges and trained the
fresh talent.

The focus is on optimized training duration, exhaustive coverage of all foundational skills, greater
emphasis and stress on knowledge application, continuous monitoring of trainee performance and
exposure to project environment through real-life Training Lab.

Like every year, Veeda celebrated diversity within the Company and strengthened it further by hosting
an array of activities to propagate fun, bonding and celebration at work.



Veeda, as a Company, constantly enables and encourages the employees to be empowered, happy and
enthusiastic about work. The Company’s total rewards program is based on principles of equality and
is designed to support its culture of high performance and innovation.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any Deposits from public which falls
under the purview of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No.
324982E/E300003) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in 18™ Annual General
Meeting of the Company dated 17" June 2022 for the period of 5 (five) years i.e. till the conclusion of
23" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer except with respect to the qualification or adverse remarks provided in
Annexure 1 i.e. Companies (Auditor's Report) order (CARO) Reports to Independent Auditor’s Report on
Standalone and Consolidated financial statement of the Company, for which your directors provides an
explanation which is annexed to this report as Annexure-C.

FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by Auditors to the Audit Committee or to the
Board.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, Annual Return for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, in prescribed Form No. MGT-7
is available on the website of the Company at https://www.veedacr.com/financial-reporting.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company is engaged in testing of various drug / medicines and Human Clinical Trials. The different
types of tests are carried out depending on the nature of material and quality of standards such as IP,
USP, BP, etc. Testing is done using different testing equipment. Most of the test equipment are
microprocessor based and draw only requisite power. Power is drawn by different equipment from a
common source in the laboratories.

Improvement in energy efficiency is a continuous process and is given a high priority. Efforts have also
been made to identify potential energy saving opportunities in all our operations, endeavors to optimize



the process parameters and to modernize and upgrade the technology and equipment with the objective
of increasing Energy Productivity.

The Company has implemented a process to minimize the power utilization at optimum level. As a
result, the energy consumption is reduced to the lowest minimum requirement.

B. Technology Absorption

The tests / studies are carried out as per the prescribed national / international standards and regulations.
The Company undertakes clinical research under international guidelines such as DCGI, USFDA, ICH
ANVISA, MHRA etc.

In the same way, the technology involved in testing is only testing of products as per the prescribed
standard procedure / manuals. Testing technology is absorbed to the extent permitted by the appropriate

guidelines.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Qutgo

(INR in millions)

Foreign Exchange earned 2,020.55

Foreign Exchange used : 210.94

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has in place a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee constituted as per the act. The primary function of the
Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in formulating a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Policy and review its implementation and progress from time to time.

During the year under review, the Company has spent an amount of INR7.73 million towards the CSR
liability. The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities is annexed herewith as
Annexure-D.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, No Directors and Key Managerial Personnel were appointed/resigned.
B) RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of section 152(6) of the Act and in terms of the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Manu Sahni (DIN: 03578144), non-Executive Nominee Director
and Dr. Kiran Marthak (DIN: 00298288), non-Executive Director, will retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommends their re-appointment.



C) DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

The Company has received a declaration of independence under sub-section (7) of section 149 of the
Companies act, 2013, from all Independent Directors. All Independent Directors have given
declarations and confirm the eligibility criteria mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

D) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) as on March 31, 2023:

1. Mr. Ajay Tandon, Managing Director
2. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

E) FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Pursuant to provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder and as provided in Schedule IV of the Act,
the formal annual evaluation is not applicable to the Company.

F) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the NRC, framed a policy on selection and appointment of
Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

G) PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP

During the year under review, except those disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements, the non-executive
directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

Eight (8) Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31% March, 2023.

Sr. Date Directors Present
No.
1 02-05-2022 | All Directors were present except Mr. Apurva Shah and Ms. Aparajita Jethy
Ahuja

2 24-05-2022 | All Directors were present except Mr. Nitin Deshmukh, Dr. Kavita Singh and
Mr. Ajay Tandon

10-06-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. Kavita Singh and Ms. Jeanne Hecht
04-08-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu

5 18-10-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. Kavita Singh and Mr. Jagannath
Samavedam

6 18-11-2022 | All Directors were present

06-03-2023 | All Directors were present except Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu

8 18-03-2023 | All Directors were present except Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, Ms. Jeanne Hecht, Dr.
Kiran Marthak, Mr. Apurva Shah and Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja

The Board approved 5 (Five) resolutions by circulation, vide circular dated 28™ December 2022.

W

N

3




Details of Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March, 2023 is as below;

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Sr. Date Member Present
No.

1 02-05-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 10-06-2022 | All Committee Members were present
3 14-07-2022 | All Committee Members were present
4 04-08-2022 | All Committee Members were present
5
6
7

18-10-2022 | All Committee Members were present
19-12-2022 | All Committee Members were present
23-01-2023 | All Committee Members were present

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 04-08-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 23-01-2023 | All Committee Members were present

IPO COMMITTEE
Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 13-06-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 01-11-2022 | All Committee Members were present except Dr. S.
N. Vinaya Babu

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 22-07-2022 All Commlttee Members were present except Dr.
Kavita Singh
2 20-02-2023 | All Committee Members were present

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Code of Business Conduct of Company requires directors, officers and employees to observe high
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As
employees and representatives of the Company, they must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling
their responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Company has a Whistle
Blower Policy to enable persons who observe unethical practices (whether or not a violation of law), to
approach the Whistle Blower Custodian without revealing their identity, if they choose to do so. This
Policy governs reporting and investigation of allegations that are in breach of the Code of Business
Conduct.

The Company has established a program named “MD Connect Program” which facilitates newly
recruited employees to get connected with the Managing Director of the Company. The main aim of
such a program is to make the newly recruited employees aware of the principles and value system of



the Company. Moreover, the employee is made aware of the whistle blowing policy and its importance
in the organization. The Audit Committee duly constituted is responsible to oversee the functioning of
Policy of Vigil Mechanism. The constitution of which is as below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Rakesh Bhartia Chairman
2 Mr. Nitin Deshmukh Member
3 Mr. Manu Sahni Member
4 Mr. Nirmal Bhatia Secretary

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2023 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis
and had no conflict with the interest of the Company. The particulars of every contract or arrangements
entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto are
disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 as Annexure-E.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct (COBC) provides broad directions as well as specific
guidelines for all business transactions. The emphasis is on human rights, prevention of fraudulent and
corrupt practices, avoidance of conflict of interest, prevention of Sexual Harassment and unyielding
integrity at all times.

Veeda is committed to the provision of a workplace, free of Sexual Harassment (“SH”) and to provide
a redressal mechanism for all complaints of SH without fear or threat of reprisals in any form or manner
whatsoever. The work place in context of SH is not restricted to the office but includes extended work
areas such as Client’s place, work related travel, cafeterias and Company sponsored events, to name a
few.

It is confirmed that the Company has duly complied with applicable provisions and has a policy in
relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 including the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
said Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

i) Details of Loans

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the loan as below:

Sr. | Details of Loan | Name of Borrower Purpose for which | Principal | Amount
No. the proceeds from | Amount | outstanding
Loan is proposed to | (INR) in | as on 31%
be utilized by the | millions March

recipient 2023
1 |Loan to Joint | Ingenuity Biosciences To meet business 12.00 -k
Venture Private Limited requirements

Company




*(During the year, an amount of INR 12.00 million was given as loan to the Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited. However, pursuant to its non-recoverability, the outstanding amount of loan of INR
34.00 million was written off by the Company at the end of the year)

ii) Details of Investments

During the financial year under review, the Company made the investments as below:

Sr. | Details of | Name of Investee Purpose for which the | Principal

No. | Investment proceeds from | Amount (INR)
investment is proposed | in millions

to be utilized by the

recipient
1 | Investment in | Bioneeds India Private | For Capital Expenditure 100.00
Equity Shares of | Limited
subsidiary
Company
2 | Investment in | Bioneeds India Private | Not  Applicable as 350.00
Equity Shares of | Limited Investment was made
subsidiary through acquisition of
Company equity shares through

purchase  from the
Promoter of  MJ/s.
Bioneeds India Private
Limited

iii) Details of Guarantee

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the guarantee as below:

Sr. | Details of | Name of Party for | Purpose of | Principal | Amount of
No. | Guarantee whom Guarantee | Guarantee Amount Guarantee
provided (INR) in | outstanding
millions as on 31%
March
2023
N.A.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

Pursuant to Sub Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, below are the details of top 10 employees of the Company, receiving remuneration more
than 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs only) per annum and / or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees
Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month.
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Chief CA, CS, 01/07/ Suzlon
1 | Nirmal Bhatia | Financial 1,28,00,004 | Permanent | LLB, 57 | Structures | 0.19% No 32
Officer & PGDBA 2007 Pvt. Ltd
CS
*Suresh 20/11/ ir'dd ,
. . eddy's
2 | Krishnarao President 1,20,00,000 | Permanent | PhD 57 Y - No 33
. Laborator
Kankanwadi 2021 .
ies
**Sailendra 01/03/ Enem
3 | Kumar President 1,10,00,004 | Permanent | PhD 54 | Nostrum | - No 27
Goswami 2023 Remedies

*Mr. Suresh Krishnarao Kankanwadi resigned w.e.f.7th March, 2023.
** Mr. Sailendra Kumar Goswami was appointed w.e.f 1st March, 2023.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND RELATED

DISCLOSURES

A) Details of median ratio of the remuneration of each director pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your

Company.
B) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request.
C) No director of the Company who is a Managing Director or whole time director is in receipt of any

commission from the Company.
D) The requirement of the “Corporate Governance” is not applicable to the Company. However, the

Company is complying with most of the requirements.




EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has provided share-based incentive scheme to its employees. The relevant details of the
scheme and the grant of shares are as below.

On 20™ May, 2019, the shareholders approved the ESOP Scheme 2019 (ESOP 2019) for issue of stock
options to the key employees and directors of the Company. According to the ESOP Scheme 2019, the
employee selected by the committee from time to time will be entitled to Stock Option based on their
annual performance, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions described in the scheme.
The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 4 years.
The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 14,91,840
Options granted during the year NIL
Options vested till year end 3,32,160
Options exercised during the year NIL
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option

) NIL
during the year
Options lapsed due to resignation of the employees during the 2.01.870
year UL,
Exercise price per share NIL
Variation of terms of options NIL
Money realized by exercise of options NIL
Total number of options in force 12,889,970

Employee wise details of options granted to :

Mr. Ajay Tandon: 5,25,840 options
Key managerial personnel Mr. Nirmal Bhatia: 2,44,320 options
Mr. Kiran Marthak : 23,520 options

Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any
one year of option amounting to five percent or more of NIL
options granted during that year

Identified employees who were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued NIL
capital of the Company at the time of grant

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Company is not required to obtain Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to the non-applicability of the
provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The requirement of Corporate Governance Certificate is not applicable to the Company since it is not a
listed Company.

Nevertheless, Governance at Veeda Clinical Research Ltd. (Veeda) encompasses structures, practices
and processes adopted in every sphere of the Company’s operations to provide long-term value to its
stakeholders through ethical and transparent business standards. The Company has a definite Value
System established which includes Humility, Honesty and integrity, Openness, Excellence, Innovation,
and Nurturing individual growth. These values are the core elements of governance at Veeda. The
Company, as a responsible corporate citizen, believes that the spirit of Corporate Governance stretches
beyond statutory acquiescence to meet the ethical, legal, economic and social responsibilities and is
centric to stakeholder trust and confidence. While the letter of the law is paramount in all its activities,
the spirit in which it is followed, keeps in view the interests of the stakeholders, viz, shareholders,
clients, employees, suppliers, society and regulatory bodies.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Risk Management Policy to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities.
This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and
enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The constitution of Risk Management Committee is as
below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Dr. Kiran Marthak Chairman
2 Dr. Kavita Singh Member
3 Mr. Ajay Tandon Member
4 Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu Member
5 Mr. Apurva Shah Member
6 Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja | Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has framed a Policy on selection and appointment of Director(s), Senior Management and
their remuneration. The constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Rakesh Bhartia* Chairman
2 Mr. Nitin Deshmukh* Member
3 Mr. Vivek Chhachhi Member

* Mr. Nitin Deshmukh held the Chair of the Committee till 31% July 2023. The Board in its meeting
dated 31% July 2023 changed the designation of Mr. Rakesh Bhartia as Chairman of the Committee and
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh as Member of the Committee in compliances with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, is U73100GJ2004PLC044023 and the Company’s Registration Number is 044023.

The Company’s Master Data and details of the compliance filings by the Company with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, may be viewed by the members and other stakeholders at
www.mca.gov.in (MCA21eServices) using the above mentioned CIN.



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, your directors confirm that —

a)

b)

c)

d)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to thank and deeply acknowledge the co-operation, assistance and support extended
by customers, suppliers, financial institutions, banks, Government authorities to the Company. The
Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the overall support and co-operation
received from the employees without whom the growth of the Company is unattainable. Your directors
look forward to the long term future with confidence.

An acknowledgement to all with whose help, co-operation and hard work the Company is able to
achieve the results.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

~_
Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023



Annexure-A

Management Discussion and Analysis (Annual Report 2022-23)
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

Introduction

Since its inception in 2004, Veeda Clinical Research has come a long way by transitioning itself
from a clinical research organization to a broad based and integrated contract research
organization. The comprehensive strengths in the business areas, namely — preclinical, clinical
and exclusive service offerings for biosimilars and biologics — allows us to broaden our scope of
reaching out to a much larger client base, whose specific needs are catered by our entities. With
our comprehensive portfolio of drug development services and our continuing investment in
infrastructure, people and process to build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe
that we are very well positioned to be preferred partners for global small and emerging biotech
companies for their novel drug development programs.

With acquisition of Bioneeds, we have gained comprehensive pre-clinical research capabilities,
across two facilities in Bangalore, which include GLP accredited animal vivariums, chemistry,
biopharma, and analytical laboratories, to support preclinical drug development solutions.

India’s promising Contract Research Services Market

The ever-growing Contract Research Services market in India has come a long way in establishing
the credentials of being a globally accepted service-oriented industry that delivers promise of
quality, compliance and timeliness in its research deliverables.

The research-focused services, offered by Contract Research Organizations (CROs), encompass
all phases of the drug development lifecycle, from compound selection, discovery, preclinical (in-
vitro and in-vivo) research, clinical testing, as well as post-approval functions such as
commercialization, safety assessment, monitoring, and consulting, among other services.

Exhibit: Drug Development Life Cycle: Timeline for New Drug Approvals, as per US FDA
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Indian CRO market captures about 3% of the global
market share by value, is expected to grow with a
CAGR of about 12% till 2026. The recent favourable
changes in the Indian regulatory landscape for the
CRO industry, higher acceptability of India as an
outsourcing destination by the global pharmaceutical
companies and favorable demographics in terms of
cost, technical skills and diversity of volunteers
required for trials are driving the Indian CRO market.

The cost of carrying out clinical trials in India is nearly
40-70% less when compared to other counterparts in Europe or the U.S. This along with skill sets
and ease of doing business is fueling the market growth of Indian CROs.

In addition to this, the Indian CROs offer:

1. Extensive scientific competence to service a global clientele ensuring high customer
centricity and satisfaction

2. Successful track record of stringent compliance culture

3. Technology driven CRO solutions that enhance operating efficiencies and compliance
management

4. Skilled personnel and experienced professional management with focus on continuous
professional development

Pharmaceutical R&D spend on the rise: The Indian CRO market witnessed growth owing to
increasing number of clinical trials amidst an increasing demand for effective and novel vaccines
to curb the SARS-CoV2 virus. Many biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies are noted to
have made long-term agreements, collaborations, and partnerships with Indian CROs.

As per a recent market research report, the global pharmaceutical R&D spend is estimated to
grow at a CAGR of 3.6% by 2026. The market research analysis also reflects that the R&D spend
by top 20 and other large players form the largest segment of the pie (7%) by 2026; however,
small and mid-sized pharmaceutical companies will drive the spending at a CAGR of 6.1%. This
gives many opportunities to Indian CROs to grab a major pie of global R&D outsourced work from
big-sized companies as well as small and mid-sized pharmaceutical companies.

For research outsourced to Indian CROs, the higher rate is observed in clinical trials and
toxicology drug value chain. Due to the different technical difficulties at each stage (i.e.,
preclinical and clinical trials), the outsourcing rate varies at all stages with a low rate of
outsourcing observed during early stages of research and development and a higher rate during
the clinical trial phase due to more work on process standardization.
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Trends in the CRO Services Market: Higher investment in CROs combined with rising adoption of
key companies relying on the specialized CROs for clinical trials are amongst some of the trends
observed in the Indian CRO market. Innovator and novel generic pharmaceutical companies have
been consistently investing in developing new drugs thereby supporting large-scale drug
discovery activities. A large number of novel new drug applications are filed by niche innovator
companies who outsource drug discovery and pre-clinical studies to CROs.

1. The Preclinical segment is expected to witness lucrative growth on account of a rise in
the demand for pharmacokinetic services to support toxicology tests for IND-enabling
studies. The relevance of toxicology testing, bioanalysis and DMPK testing are crucial and
important stages of the drug development process and the demand is driven by increased
outsourcing of preclinical research by small-to-mid segment pharmaceutical companies.

2. The global generic drug industry is witnessing rising number of losses of patent and
exclusivity of innovator drugs, which in-turn is propelling the Bioavailability and
Bioequivalence (BA/BE) studies for Indian CROs. India is a preferred destination for BA/
BE studies due to its current CRO infrastructure, emergence and growth of the biosimilars
industry, increased demand for complex generics, availability of healthy volunteers to
participate in the BA/ BE studies, cost-efficiency, changing regulatory landscape and
evolving clinical trials ecosystem in the country.

The generic drug market value is projected to reach USD 517 billion in the next five years,
expanding at a CAGR of 4.9%. There is a significant growth opportunity for standalone
bioanalytical services, which can be capitalized by Indian CROs through expansion and
growth of bio-analytical capabilities.

3. Increasing focus on Biosimilars Industry: Indian CROs have made rapid strides in offering
niche services to ever-growing biosimilar industry, which has advantage of patent losses
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of key biologics. As per market research estimates, while the global market for biosimilars
is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 17.3% with, a market size of ~ USD 79.2 billion in 2026,
the biosimilars market in India is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 34%, increasing to ~ USD
2.54 billion in 2026.

India continues to have the attributes that should progressively enhance the scale of clinical trials
in the country to support the global development of novel medicines and therapies. The aspects
that have changed significantly over the recent years, and is reflecting in the growth in global
clinical trials that include India, are:

- The New Drugs and Clinical Trial Rules of 2019 have provided clarity on key concern areas
such as a) regulatory approval processes and timelines; b) ethics committee operations
and oversight responsibilities; and c) sponsor compensation liabilities in case of Serious
Adverse Events observed in the trial participants. Moreover, there is continuing focus by
the regulator to streamline systems and procedures to facilitate clinical trials with data
integrity and quality aligned with global standards.

- The network and quality of investigator sites have evolved quite significantly with well-
trained and equipped trial professionals and infrastructure conducting trials in
compliance with ICH GCP standards and successfully qualifying under global regulatory
inspections. The network has been developed by an increasing base of high quality Indian
CROs in collaboration with the major pharmaceutical companies operating in India.

- Theincreased agility, maturity and quality of the entire Indian clinical trial ecosystem has
been very well demonstrated through the successful and rapid conduct of large scale
COVID related clinical trials that were globally accepted.

The ecosystem is continuing to expand and develop further, which should underline continuing
relevance and participation of India in global clinical trials.

Veeda is poised to benefit from multiple factors such as the growing need of pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical companies to minimize their time and cost and to also augment their
efficiency and expertise in launching new formulations in the market. By building on core
strengths around preclinical services, augmenting bioanalytical research capabilities, and
focusing on niche services for biosimilar industry, Indian CROs including Veeda has a very bright
future prospect of aligning itself to the research needs of global companies.

Business Proposition: Adding Value to Pharmaceutical Research

With the broad overview and analysis, outlined above, it is imperative to highlight Veeda’s
approach and efforts towards achieving business objectives. As a leading player in the Indian
research services sector, Veeda believes in

1. Client Centricity:
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The Vision and Mission statements embodies our focus on being increasingly relevant
to our clients and being their preferred partners.

Our management and business development teams are actively engaging with the
industry as well as our clients to understand the direction of research and the service
gaps with our clients, which channelize our capability development.

Veeda has very broad set of accreditations to be relevant for most requirements,
strong quality credentials that we work diligently to maintain including regular quality
reviews, human resource training and investment in technology to deploy controls,
oversight and operating efficiencies.

Veeda’s unwavering focus on client and project prioritization to meet required
execution timelines as per client program requirements. Our growing adoption of
technology will play a crucial role in achieving operational efficiencies and reducing
delivery timelines with the desired quality standards.

We progressively review our various client experience touch points, on a prioritized
basis, to enhance client experience with us and track performance based on client
feedback with these touch points. Based on a semi-annual Client Satisfaction survey
undertaken by us, we are encouraged by the strong improvement in these scores,
which reflect continuing progress in our client experience initiatives.

2. Improving Operational Efficiency:
(a) Veeda Clinical Research is a scientific research focused, service organization, which is

significantly reliant on high quality human resources. The ability to drive higher
productivity and value add per resource through scientific and operational excellence
is key to long term sustainability.

(b) Veeda operates in a highly competitive environment and notwithstanding the current

(c)

value proposition; we need to continuously drive operating efficiency for better
delivery timelines, quality standards and operating costs so that we keep enhancing
our value proposition to our clients and our financial performance for supporting our
long-term growth objectives.

We have baselined our productivity metrics for our key operating departments and
are tracking improvements as we drive operational initiatives. We are rapidly
deploying technology platforms to digitize and automate processes, which will drive
operating efficiencies and quality controls with better human resource productivity.
As we digitize, we are reviewing our operating procedures to simplify them to serve
the same objectives of ease of operations, efficiency and quality outcomes.

Veeda is transitioning from being a clinical research organization into a broad based and
integrated contract research organization. We see significant growth for preclinical and
clinical research services over the medium to long term. With our comprehensive
portfolio of drug development services and our continuing investment in infrastructure,



Management Discussion and Analysis (Annual Report 2022-23)
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

people and process to build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe that we
are very well positioned to be preferred partners for innovative pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical clients globally for their critical drug development programs.

Veeda: Growth trajectory and the way forward

Veeda Clinical Research has taken strides and is making consistent efforts towards offering
services to a broader set of clients by consolidating its business and adopting to new technology.
Over the past several years, Veeda has differentiated itself by delivering innovative, flexible, high-
quality, customer-driven solutions to become the leading CRO in India and has a track record for
conducting specialized, complex, clinical trial projects. There are several factors, which we feel,
are growth drivers for us in the near future.

1.

Increase presence across regulated markets in the US and the EU

We are expanding our reach to small and medium-sized generic pharmaceutical
companies in US and the EU based on our capabilities in complex studies, successful
record of accomplishment in regulatory inspections and the cost advantage of conducting
clinical trials in India, which is nearly half the cost of conducting a clinical trial in a
developed country. We are also exploring strategic alliances in these key markets to
extend our service capabilities to meet our client requirements.

Increased focus on pre-clinical services to facilitate innovator drug development and
discovery

Innovator and novel generic pharmaceutical companies have been consistently investing
in developing new drugs thereby supporting large-scale drug discovery activities.
Bioneeds provides research, analytical, and development solutions to drug sponsors from
the discovery through development stages. With Bioneeds, we intend to offer a wide
range of pre-clinical services complemented by our early phase clinical services to
innovator pharmaceutical companies in order to provide them with comprehensive drug
development support. We see significant opportunity to service the innovation
ecosystem in India. We intend to leverage the market opportunities in India, build our
credibility in the domestic CRO market, and further extend these services to global clients
in our key markets. We believe that the synergies arising from integrating the products
and services offered by our different business units, coupled with our infrastructure,
technology products and services, extensive expertise and experience will differentiate
us from our competitors.

Expand and consolidate market presence in Biosimilars

The Biosimilar industry is expected to grow significantly due to large patent cliff that is
expected in the next five years.
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With specific focus on offering niche research services to biosimilars and biologics
companies, we intend to service the market opportunities in India and Asia and further
extend these services to other regulated markets of the EU and the USA. We are
consolidating our capabilities in biosimilars to offer end-to-end and modular technical
services, encompassing both pre-clinical and clinical domains. The scientific team is
comprised of scientists with in-depth knowledge of bioassay method development and
sample analysis, clinical trial management, and global regulatory requirements and with
an experience on working on biosimilar molecules for India and global registration.

4. Strengthening our bioanalytical services

We are focused on strengthening our bioanalytical capabilities in biosimilars, complex
generics and patient-based clinical trials. We have bioanalytical capabilities to service
small molecule drug development, both for new molecules as well as generic products.
We offer these services as a part of our complete clinical trial services as well as in the
form of a standalone central bioanalytical laboratory services offering to global
pharmaceutical companies and other clinical research organizations.

5. Building on our core strength of BA & BE studies

BA & BE studies remain Veeda’s core strength as we continue to expand our service
capabilities and clientele globally, particularly in the areas of complex studies involving
complex molecules or complex designs in areas such as phase 1 clinical pharmacology
studies, inhalation studies, glucose clamps and dermatology. Further, we are also making
investments in technology to enhance the quality, processing efficiency and cost
competitiveness across our operations.

6. Enhancing capabilities in clinical trials

While the Indian clinical trials market is 2.4% of the global clinical trials market in 2021, it
is expected to grow faster than the global market to become about 3.1% of the market
share by 2026. To address market growth, we have significantly strengthened our
capabilities in clinical trials with experienced medical affairs and project management
teams, comprehensive technology platform and have augmented our capabilities in data
management, biostatistics and modelling services.

The public perception about clinical trials in India has witnessed a drastic change. With
the emergence of high quality CROs that operate in compliance with global safety, ethical
and regulatory norms, the stronger regulatory oversight on the industry and active
industry forums that bring together diverse stakeholders to enhance the operating
ecosystem for the industry, the industry has significantly matured and the public
perception thereof has definitely changed over the last several years, which is also
reflecting in the increasing volunteer participation in clinical research.
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India is well poised for strengthening its role in global pharmaceutical research and Veeda, as a
leading Indian CRO with strong ambitions and capabilities, is well positioned to leverage the
significant opportunities that the future presents.



Annexure -B

Form AOC- 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or Joint ventures

PART-A: SUBSIDIARY

(INR in millions)
Name of Subsidiary Bioneeds India Private | Amthera Life Sciences
Limited (Subsidiary) Private Limited (Step-
down subsidiary)

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25-05-2021 25-05-2021
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, N.A. N.A.
if different from the holding company's
reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on N.A. N.A.
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share Capital 73.81 0.10
Reserves and surplus 285.90 0.79
Total Assets 1,880.97 1.18
Total Equity and Liabilities 1880.97 1.18
Investments - -
Turnover 1,134.52 -
Other Income 14.71 9.34
Profit Before Taxation 249.40 9.01
Provision for Taxation 67.50 0.30
Profit after Taxation 181.90 8.71
Proposed Dividend N.A. N.A.
Extent of Shareholding in % 87.00 87.00% (100%

shareholding held by

Bioneeds India Private
Limited- Subsidiary Co.)

Notes:

1. Names of stibsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

DO Gefbes
Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon
Chairman
DIN: 00060743

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

DIN: 02210072

Managing Director

Place: Toronto, Canada
Date: 05/09/2023

w A A

Nirmal Bhatia
Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No. 1255
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 05/09/2023




PART-B: JOINT VENTURES
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companics and Joint Ventures

(INR in millions)

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures

Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Limited

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31-03-2023

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated
or acquired

16-02-2021

Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

3,50,000 Equity Shares

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture

3.50

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

50%

Description of how there is significant influence

Incorporation of Company by

entering into Joint Venture
Agreement with M/s. Somru
Bioscience Inc. (Canada)
Reason why the associate/Joint venture is not consolidated. N.A.
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 11.27
Balance Sheet
Profit or Loss for the year 25.94
1) Considered in Consolidation 12.97
2) Not Considered in Consolidation 12.97

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the Year: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

o

Ajay Tandon
Managing Director
DIN: 02210072

Place: Toronto, Canada
Date: 05/09/2023

Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman €
DIN: 00060743
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

NA B~

Nirmal Bhatia
Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No. 12551
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023




Annexure C

Explanation to the observations of the Auditor mentioned in ‘Annexure 1’ of the Independent
Auditor’s report

Explanation to the observations of the Auditor mentioned in the ‘Annexure 1’ of the Independent
Auditor’s report:

In Statutory Audit Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of Veeda Clinical
Research Limited

Clause (iii)(c)

The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated. However, Company has not received the interest on loan given to
aforesaid joint venture and the principal amount thereof has been written off.

Explanation: Pursuant to non-recoverability of the loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Limited - Joint Venture Company, the board of the Company has decided to write off the said loan
along with Interest in its meeting dated 18™ July 2023.

In Statutory audit Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of Bioneeds India
Private Limited

Clause (i)(a)(A):

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment except asset identification number and quantitative details for
certain assets of earlier years.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company is in the process of compiling the pending
Tagging details for the property, plant and equipment which were acquired before April 01, 2018.
The quantum of the same is approximately 3% of total carrying amount as on March 31,
2023. Moreover, w.e.f. April 01, 2018, all the items of property, plant and equipment are
appropriately tagged and will be tagged in future as well in compliance with the policies of the
Subsidiary Company of the Company.

Clause (iii)(b):

The terms and condition of loans granted by the Company to the aforesaid subsidiary company are
prejudicial to the Company’s interest on account of the fact that the loans provided are interest free. Also,
loan given to aforesaid subsidiary company of Rs 8.34 million has been written off in the financial statement
of the Company.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has granted loan in compliance with Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 by taking requisite Board Approval dated 19" September 2019 and
Shareholders Approval dated 22" September 2021 of the Subsidiary Company of the Company. The
qualification stated by the auditor is with reference to the Loan being interest free in nature which is
considered as prejudicial to the Subsidiary Company of the Company. In explanation to the said
remarks, your directors hereby state that as on 31°* March 2023, Amthera Lifesciences Private



Limited is wholly owned (100%) subsidiary company of Bioneeds India Private Limited. Hence, in
opinion of the directors it is not considered as prejudicial to the interest of the company. Further,
pursuant to non-recoverability of the loan granted to Amthera Lifesciences Private Limited -
Subsidiary Company of the Company, the management of the Subsidiary Company of the Company
has decided to write off the said loan along with interest.

Clause (iii)(c):

The Company has granted loan to aforesaid subsidiary company, where the schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated. However, these loans are interest free and hence recovery of the same is not
applicable. Moreover, the principal amount on the aforesaid loan has been written off during the year.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has written off the loan amount receivable
from its subsidiary company because there is no certainty in revenue generation and recoverability
of the loan.

Clause (iv):
There are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has given loan to one company which is not in compliance to the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act 2013 and are detailed in the table below:

Non-Compliance of Section 186 of the Act:

S.No. | Name of the Nature of non-compliance Maximum Balance as
Company amount at Balance
outstanding sheet date
1 Amthera Lifesciences | Loan given is interest free and | Rs. 8.34 million | Rs. Nil
Private Limited hence below the market
prevailing rate of interest.

Further, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
guarantees and securities given during the year in respect of which provision of 186 of the Act are applicable
and hence not commented upon.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has granted loan in compliance with Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 by taking requisite Board Approval dated 19" September 2019 and
Shareholders Approval dated 22" September 2021 of the Subsidiary Company of the Company. The
qualification stated by the auditor is solely with reference to the Loan being interest free in nature
which is considered as prejudicial to the Subsidiary Company of the Company. In explanation to the
said remarks, your directors hereby state that as on 31°* March 2023, Amthera Lifesciences Private
Limited is wholly owned (100%) subsidiary company of Bioneeds India Private Limited. Hence, in
opinion of the directors it is not considered as prejudicial to the interest of the Subsidiary Company
of the Company.



Clause (vii)(a):

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months:

Period to
ich th
Name of the Statute | Nature of the Dues | Amount which the Due Date Dite-of
amount Payment
relates
IGST Act, CGST Interest on late Rs. 0.15 2020-21 | September | Unpaid as
Act and SGST Act, | filing of Goods and | million and 2021- 14,2021 | at March
2017 Service tax returns 22 31,2023

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company shall remit said dues during current
financial year i.e. the financial year commencing from 1* April 2023.

Clause (ix)(d):

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has used funds
raised on short- term basis aggregating to Rs. 16.68 million for long-term purposes.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has ensured the compliance of this clause on
a per annum basis. However during the current financial year i.e. the financial year commencing
from 1st April 2023, the company has started making remittance for capex procurement from its
current account to avoid utilization of funds from cash credit account,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nitin Deshmukh.
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023




ANNEXURE-D
Annual Report on CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) Activities

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there
under, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. During
the year under review, a meeting of CSR Committee were held on 22" July, 2022 and 20™
February, 2023.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee includes formulating and recommending to the
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which indicate the activities to be undertaken
by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, recommending the
amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities, providing guidance on various
CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company and monitoring the CSR Policy of the
Company from time to time.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board has approved a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Plan.

The details required pursuant to Section 135 of the Act are provided in SCHEDULE-I to this
Report.
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SCHEDULE-1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S
REPORT
(Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the
Company has framed a CSR Policy.

The Company’s CSR vision & mission is to contribute to the social, economic and
environmental development of the community in which the Company operates. The Company
may undertake any one or more CSR activities as specified in the CSR Policy.

As permitted under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Management of the Company has identified following institutes through which it has
decided to carry out CSR activities:

Sr. No. Name of the Implementing Agency
1 Shree Krishnayan Desi Gauraksha Avam Golokdham Sewa Samiti
2 Rotary Club of Bombay Queen's Necklace Charitable Trust
3 Indraprastha Cancer Society and Research Centre
4 Shri Bharat Saraswati Mandir Sansad
5 Vidhya Prachar Mandal — Direct

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee

As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, the composition of CSR Committee is as
follow;

Sr. | Name of | Designation / Nature of | Number of | Number of
No. | Director Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee

during the year | attended during the

year

1 | Ms. Aparajita | Chairman 2 2
Jethy Ahuja | Non-executive Director

2 | Dr. Kavita Member 2 1
Singh Independent Director

3 | Mr. Apurva | Member 2 2
Shah Non-executive Director

4 | Dr. Kiran Member 2 2

Marthak Non-executive Director




3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-governance/
CSR Policy: https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-governance/

CSR projects approved by the board: www.veedacr.com/about/csr-initiatives/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report): N.A.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any

Sr. Financial Year Amount available for set- | Amount required to be
No. off from preceding | set-off for the financial
financial years (in Rs.) year, if any (in Rs.)

1 2019-2020 0 0

2 2020-2021 0 0
3 2021-2022 2,948 2,948

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:
Rs.38,63,87,221/-

7. a. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.38,63,87,221/-
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous

financial years: NIL
c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢c): Rs.77,27,744/-
8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent  for  the | Tota] Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year to Unspent CSR Account as | specified under Schedule VII as per
(in Rs.) per section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of | Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer

Rs.77,27,744/- N.A.




b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
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As per Schedule -2 attached to this report

d. Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: NIL

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

c.

Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.77,27,744/-

f.

g. Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 2,948/-




Sr. No. Particular Amount in Rs.
I Two percent of the average net profit of the company as per 77,27,744
section 135(5)
ii Total amount spent for the financial year 77,27,744
1ii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) — ()] -
v Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 2,948
activities of the previous financial years, if any
v Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years (2,948)
[(ii1)-(iv)]
9. a. Details of unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sr. | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount remaining
No. |F. Y. transferred to | spent in | under schedule VII as per section 135(6), | to be spent in
unspent CSR | the if any succeeding
Account reporting Financial Years (In
under Sec. | F. Y. (in Rs.)
135(6)  (in | Rs.) Name of the | Amount Date of
Rs.) fund (In Rs.) Transfer
NIL
b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial years(s):
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Sr. No. | Project | Name F.Y.in Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
ID of the which duration | amount spent on amount spent at | the project
project | project was allocated | the project the end of Completed
commenced for the in the reporting /Ongoing
project reporting Financial Year.
(in Rs.) F. Y. (in (in Rs.)
Rs.)
N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)

is registered, their address etc.: N.A.

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A.
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A.
c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset




d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): N.A.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5). - N.A

Ajay Tandon parajita Jethy Ahuja
Managing Director Chairman to CSR Committee
DIN: 02210072 DIN: 08298911

Place: Toronto, Canada Place: Delhi
Date: 05/09/2023 Date: 05/09/2023




SCHEDULE-2 TO CSR REPORT

Sr. | Name | Item from the Local Location of the project. | Project | Amount Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
No. | ofthe | list of activities area duration | allocated | transferred | Implementation Through Implementing
Project | in Schedule VII | (Yes/No) for the to Unspent - Direct Agency
to the Act State District .prOJect CSR (Yes/No). Name CSR
(in Lakh) | Account for ) )
the project Registration
number
as
per section
135(6) (in
Rs.)
1 N.A. | Animal welfare, No Uttarakhand | Haridwar N.A. 12.55 N.A. No Shree CSR0026574
Ensuring Krishnayan
environmental Desi
sustainability Gauraksha
Avam
Golokdham
Sewa Samiti
2 N.A. | Promoting health No Maharashtra | Mumbai N.A. 25.00 N.A. No Rotary Club | CSR00004403
care  including of Bombay
preventinve Queen's
health care, Necklace
Promoting Charitable
education Trust
3 N.A. | Promoting health No Delhi Delhi N.A. 20.00 N.A. No Indraprastha | CSR00004278
care  including Cancer




preventinve Society and
health care Research
Centre
N.A. | Promoting No Gujarat Junagadh N.A. 15.00 N.A. No Shri Bharat | CSR00046413
education Saraswati
Mandir
Sansad
Vidhya | Promoting Yes Gujarat Ahmedabad | N.A. 4.72 N.A. Yes - -
Prachar | education
Mandal
Total 77.27




1.

2.

Annexure - E
- FORM NO. AOQC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Aet and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sr. No. | Particulars | Details of Transactions

Refer Schedule-1

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

T jj 2
Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

Encl: as stated




Schedule-1 to Annexure-E

;:;' Particulars Details of Transactions
Bioneeds India R/llﬁ;ul'i;lr;l? Mr. Apurva
1 Name (s) of the related party & Private Limited Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (Joint (Non- Shah (Non-
nature of relationship (Subsidiary Venture Company) . Executive
Company) Executive Director)
Director)
Sale or
Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Sale or purchase of Service purchase of Professional Lease Rent
2 . ) Lease Rent .
transaction goods or services Agreement goods or Service Fee
services
Duration of the 01-10-2021 to 01-04-2018 to
3 contracts/arrangements/transaction F.Y.2022-23 N-A. N.A. F.Y.2022-23 31-07-2024 31-03-2023
2,00,000 per INR 55,000/-per
month (GXP: month for April
25,000/- & 2022 till INR INR 3,00,000
Salient terms of the contracts or | Up to Rs.25,00,000/- Non-GXP: December 2022 per month
. X 1,00,00,000/- INR 50,000/-
4 | arrangements or transaction | In ordinary course of 1,75,000/-) (INR One On the terms as er month
including the value, if any business On the terms as | INR 60,638 per per the executed p
Crore)
per the month for agreement
executed January 2023 till
agreement March 2023
03-03-2021
5 Date of approval by the Board 04-08-2022 18-10-2022 78-12-2022 18-10-2022 19-11-2021 24-11-2017
6 ?nayte of approval by shareholder, if N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 22-11-2021 NA.
7 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL




S R B C & Co LLP 21st Floor, B Wing, Privilon
Ambli BRT Road, Behind Iskcon Temple

Chartered Accountants Qif SG Highway, Ahmedabad - 380 059, India
Tel : +91 79 6608 3500

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company™), which
comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the Standalone financial
statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
_changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our. opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(® of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
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accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; except that the backup of the
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been
maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

(¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow
Statement and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 21.1 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regrstratron Number 324982E/E300003
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"~ per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 23101974BGUFPA5275
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 05, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical
Research Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2023.

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them over the period of
three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreement with
the books of accounts of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loan to One Company as follows:

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount granted during the year to Joint Venture Rs. 12.00 Million

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above | Rs. Nil*
loan to Joint Venture

* Company has written off outstanding loan balance of Rs 34.00 million as mentioned in
Note 4.5 to the standalone financial statement.

Further, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
and provided security to any other companies, firms, Limited liability Partnerships or any
other parties.
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(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of loan to Company is not
prejudicial to the Company's interest. According to the information and explanation give
to us, the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties.

(c) The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, Company
has not received the interest on loan given to aforesaid joint venture and the principal
amount thereof has been written off.

(d) There are no amounts other than the aforesaid loans which has been written off and
advances in the nature of loans are granted to companies or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to the same parties.

(H) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to any
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(Giif) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Loans and investments in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no guarantees and
securities given in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of Companies Act,
2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable to that extent and hence not commented upon.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as
follows:
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(Amount in millions)

Name of Statute Nature of | Amount Period to which the F.clrum - whf-.re
Dues Involved* | amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, ’ X CESTAT,
1994 Service tax 1.30 | FY 2008-09 Ahmedabad
Finance Act, . July, 2012 to Mar, | CESTAT,
1994 Service tax 21.95 | 5014 Ahmedabad
. 3 _ | Principal Comm.
I;g;:ce Pk Service tax 45.64 igOT Ué 1o 20LL of GST,
Ahmedabad
Finance Act, 2 FY 2014-15 to | CESTAT,
1994 Servjos 11069 | 5515-16 Ahmedabad
Finance Act, : ; Comm. (Appeals),
1994 Service tax 16.87 | FY 2015-16 Ahinadatad
Custom Act, 1962 Custom 579 2012-13 to 2013- Prmmp_al.
Duty 14 Commissioner
Custom 2013-14 to 2016- | CESTAT,
Custom Act, 1962 Duty 1.97 17 Ahmedabad

*Net of amount paid under protest amounting to Rs. 9.08 million.
vili. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ix (a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due
to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority. :

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

X (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment / private placement of shares during the
year. The amount raised along with opening unutilised balance, have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised except for idle/surplus funds amounting to Rs
1,206.15 which were not required for immediate utilization and which have been gainfully
invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The maximum amount of idle/surplus
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funds invested during the year was Rs 1,206.15 million, of which Rs 743.13 million was
outstanding at the end of the year.

(a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. '

The transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xviXa)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 33 to the standalone financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
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of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in tompliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone
financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Eirm Reglstratlon Number 324982E/E300003
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Partner

Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 23101974BGUFPA5275
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 05, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) ("the Company™) as of March
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls systems over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements N

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
-..purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
- financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
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includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as ""Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 669,13 39027
(b) Capital work-in-progress 33 46.89 8839
(c) Right of use assets 34 355.64 298.47
(d) Other intangible assets 313 3245 821
(e) Intangible assets under development 33 33.15 13.72
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investmenis 4.1 2,131.50 1,651.32
(ii) Loans 45 - 2234
(i) Other financial assets 46 397.32 162.54
(z) Deferred tax assets (net) 20 83 .46 67.59
(h) Income tax assets (net) 5 208.82 199 54
(i) Other non-current assets 6 18.02 12.77
Total non-current assets 3,976.38 2,915.16
Current assets
(a) Inveniories 7 48.95 69.94
(b) Financial assets
(1) Investments 4.1 780.17 1,117.28
(ii) Trade receivables 42 711.40 773.92
(in) Cash and cash equivalents 43 333.20 577.16
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 4.4 244 00 29.56
(v) Other financial assets 4.6 374.09 377.03
(c) Other current assets 6 136,39 106.68
Total current assets 2,628.20 3,051.57
Total assets 6,604.58 5,966.73
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 8 105.78 105.78
(b) Other equity ] 5,106.02 4,631.85
Total Equity 5211.80 4,737.63
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities .
(i) Lease liabilities 31 37485 303.66
(11) Other financial liabilities 10.2 0.50 0.50
(b) Provisions 12 53.46 36.19
Total non-current liabilities 428.81 342.35
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 31 76.40 72.14
(i1) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2578 35.50
(b) total nutstim-d‘mg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 10.1 166,12 17927
small enterprises
(i1} Other financial liabilities 10.2 156.80 173.20
(b) Other current liabilities 11 524.17 41061
(c) Provisions 12 14.70 16.03
Total current liabilities 963.97 886.75
Total liabilities 1,392.78 1,220.10
Total equity and liabilities 6,604.58 5,966.73
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
22

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The accompanying notes are-dfi iﬁ]’e"r 1

ForSRBC & C'o;’tLJ{ 4
Chartered Accounléfﬁ'zs,_'; /
ICAL FRN: 324982E(E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 101974

Date: Sepiember 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

(formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
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«
Nitin Deshmukh

Chairman
DIN: 00060743

Ajay Tandon
Managing Director
DIN; 02210072

Date: September 05, 2023

Place: Ahmedabad, India  Place: Toronto, Canada
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Nirmal Bhatia
Company Secretary & CFO
1C8I Membership No.12551]
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "' Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No. Particulars Notes Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
(I) [Revenue from operations 13 2,961.53 2,239.31
(IT) [Other income 14 91.47 4227
(III) |Total Income (I+ II) 3,053.00 2,281.58
(IV) |Expenses
Cost of material consumed 15 178.10 18831
Employee benefit expenses 16 740.51 635.84
Finance costs 17 5332 4575
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 211.32 155.30
Clinical and Analytical research expenses 18 939.53 608.28
Other expenses 19 55524 396.08
Total Expenses (IV) 2,682.02 2,029.56
(V) [Profit before tax (ITI-IV) 370.98 252,02
(VI) |Tax expense 20
(1) Current tax 126.14 74.40
{2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 0.12 -
(3) Deferred tax charge / (credit) (14.80) (5.69)
Total tax expense (VI) 111.46 68.71
(VII) |Profit for the year (V-VI) 259.52 18331
(VI) |Other com prehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans (4.24) (0.07)
Less: Income tax effect on above 1.07 0,02
Total other com prehensive (loss) for the year (net of tax) (VILI) (3.17) (0.05)
(IX) [Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VII+ VIII) 256.35 183.26
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 22
Basic 4.91 3.91
Diluted 4.90 3.90
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For SRB C & Co. LLP

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 324982E/E300003

Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

(CIN : U73100GJ2004PLC044023)
D@— ]\L / /’ZL\Q‘" %
Nirmal Bhatia

Nitin Deshmukh
Company Secretary & CFO

Chairman
DIN: 00060743 ICSI Membership No, 123551

o,

Ajay Tandon
Managing Director
DIN: 02210072

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 101974

Date: September 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India

Date: September 05, 2023

Place: Ahmedabad, India  Place: Toronto, Canada Place: Ahmedabad, India




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Statement of standalone cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Cash flow from operating aclivities

Profit before tax 370.98 252.02
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amorfization expense 21132 15530
Employee stock aption cost 4.80 18.22
Finance cost 53.19 45.75
Bad debts (net of provision) and contract asset written off 13.99 0.92
Impairment provision on financial asset 3.50 &
Loan written off 34.00 -
Gain on fair valuation of call option (1.41) (3.90)
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 936 -
IPO expenses 10.03 14.87
Net interest income (17.20) (17.0%)
Net gain on sale and remeasurement of mutual fund (40.13) (12.35)
Write off/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net of gain) 8.90 0.18
Liabilities no longer required written back (6.11) (2.15)
Provision for doubtful debts 16.68 9.68
Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory 23.66 -
Gain on lease termination (7.48) (0.34)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 7.40 0.34
Operating profit before working capital changes 695.48 460.99
Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 48.07 (330.60)
(Increase) in inveniories (2.67) (13.31)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets 4491 (83.97)
(Increase) in other assets (39.21) (58.90)
(Decrease)increase in trade payables (17.87) 91.75
(Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities 32.18 (0.68)
Increase in other current liabilities 113.56 175.61
Inerease in provisions 11.70 6.02
Cash generated from operation 886.15 246.91
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (135.53) (119.62)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 750.62 127.29
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including intangible assets under development and Capital work-in-progress (462,22 (124.17)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 4.82
Interest received 16.19 17.95
(Investment) in fixed deposits (327.71) (102.24)
Earmarked balance of share application money pending allotment and utilization 213.00) -
Proceeds from redemption of fixed deposits 4.45 -
(Investment in) mutual funds (38.00) (799.98)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 415.24 22737
Loan repaid by subsidiary (was an associate till July 16, 2021) - 23330
Loan given to joint venlure (12.00) (23.00)
Loan given repaid by joint venture - 1.00
(Investment) in optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of subsidiary (was an associate till July 16, 2021) - (23330)
(Investment) in equity shares of subsidiary (was an associate till July 16, 2021) (450 00) (620.00)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (1,067.05) (1.418.25)
Cash flow from financing activities

Finance cost paid (52.43) (45.73)
Payment of [PO expense (net) (8.7D) (53.75)
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) short-term borrowing (net) - (243.22)
Share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares (13.02) (58.86)
Payment of principal portion of lease liability (57.33) (57.46)
Dividend paid to CCCPS Class 'A' - (120.80)
Proceeds from issue of shares (including securities premium and exercising of ESOPs) - 2,300.84
Proceeds from share application money pending allotment 213,00 -
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 81.51 1,721.00
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (234.92) 430.04
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (©.04) (2.49)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 577.16 149.61
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 333.20 577.16
Components of cash and cash equivalent

Balance with banks:

- On current accounts 33213 576.17
Cash on hand 0.47 0.99
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.3) 333.20 577.16




Veeda Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Reseurch Private Limited")
Statement of standalone cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts in rupees million; imtess otherwise stated)

Notes to statement of cash flows :

1) The Stutement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method a5 set ot in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, read together With Passgraph 7 of the Companies (Indian
Accoumling Standard) Rules 2013 {as amendad),

2) Chaniges in assets and linbilitics arising from financing activities;

Particalars Asat April 01, 2022 Cash flows {net) Others# As at March 31, 2023
\Elnuncing activitios
Lease ahilities 377.80 (57 33) 13078 451.25
Total 377.80 5733 130.76 451.25
Particulars Asat April 01,2021 | Cash fluws (netj Othersk As at March 31,2022
Finuncing activities

Short-icm borrowings PYEE) (243.23) - -

Lease liabilities 43402 (57.46)] 124 377
Tatal 677.24 (300.68)[ 1.24 ?

ity includes payment of inferest on lease liability. addition to lease Huhility and reduction of Jease 1

# Others in lease lia

ity dug 1 termination on account of Ind AS 116,

3) Nan-cash financing and investing activities
i For the year ended For the year ended
Earticitess March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Acquisition of right of use assets 19336 305
|Impairment provision on financial asset 3.50 -
Lssue of equity share capital for Investment in cquily Shares of Bloneeds [refer nate 41 - 73036
Summory of significant sccounting policies 21
Sumimary of signifi ing jusl; estimates and Pl 22

The secomipanying nioles are an integral purt of these standslone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SR B € & Co, LLP For and on Behalf of the Bourd of Directors of
Chartered Accountarits Veeda Clinical Research Limited
1CA]FRN; 32408 250300003 e

(formerly known us "Veedu Clinical Reseurch Private Limite
(CTN - 7310061 2004FT.C044023)
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Place: Ahmedatud, Indis
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Statement of Standalone changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

A) Equity share capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each till June 28, 2021)

Particulars Note No. of shares Amount

As at March 31,2021 6,01,196 6.01
Change in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 10 face value during the year 76,420 0.76
Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 each converted into cquity shares of Rs. 10 face value 93,946 0.94
Split of equity shares 0f Rs.10 face value to Rs.2 face value 30,26,248 -
Shares issued during the year - bonus issus 8 4,24 35910 84.87
Issue of cquity sharcs of Rs. 2 face value during the year 62,284,666 12,57
Shares issued under ESOP scheme of Rs 2 face value during the year 3,135,600 063
As at March 31, 2022 5,28,53,986 105.78
Change in Equity Share Capital duc to prior period erors - -
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31,2023 5,28,93,986 105.78
B) Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Participalory Preference Share Class 'A' (CCCPS Class 'A")

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars Note No. of shares Amount
As at March 31, 2021 3,52,29,780 352.30
Change in CCCPS Class'A' due to prior period ¢riors - -
Conversion of preference shares CCCPS class 'A' during the year 8 {3,52,29,780) (352.30)
As at March 31, 2022 = z
Change in CCCPS Class 'A' due to prior period errors - -
As at March 31,2023 s =
C) Other equity
e Reserves and surplus
Share application 7 T
Particulars money pending oy 3 Capm%l Share opt_lnns — . Total
allotment Securities premium redemption outstanding Retained earnings
reserve reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 452.79 38.84 5.92 841.72 1,339.27
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Profit for the year (net of taxes) - - - - 18331 18331
Other comprehensive (loss) for the vear (net of taxes) - - - - (0 .035) (0.05)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 183.26 183.26
Utilised for payment of dividend to CCCPS Class ‘A’ - - - - (120 80) (120 80)
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) - - - 0.05 - 0.05
Share based pavments (refer note 32) - - - 18.22 - 18.22
On issue of cquity shares during the year - 3,017.24 - - - 3,017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class 'A' into equity shares during the ycar - 35136 - - - 35136
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03) {38.84) - - (84.87)
Utilized towards professional fees expenses on fresh issue of equity shares - (71.88) - - - (71.8%)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 3,703.48 - 24.19 904.18 4,631.85
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Profit for the year (net of taxes) - - - - 259.52 23952
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year {not of taxes) - - - = (3.17) (3.17)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 256.35 25635
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) = - - 002 - 0.02
Share based payments (refer note 32) - - - 480 - 430
Adjustment on forfeiture of ESOP - - - {0 64) 064

Share application money received 213.00 - - - - 213.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 213.00 3,703.48 - 28.37 1,161.17 5,106.02
Summary of significant accounting policics 2.1

cant accounting judgements, ostimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes are an intsgral part of these standalone financial statements,
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate information

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
(“the Company™) is a Company domiciled in India with its registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A,
2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat —
380015, India. The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India and is carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various
Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilities in India. The Company provides
a full range of services in phase [ and 11 clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering
expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industries
worldwide. The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and
consequently the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited
to Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111, as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 28).

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded
to the nearest Rs. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been
indicated as “*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupees in million.

(B) Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Y e

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:
1. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

_ 2. ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
b 3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
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4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’s standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rs.”), which is
also its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency
spot rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in QCI or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
ofan asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 28)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 28)

(c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 28)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the
customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
-, revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

7™ Ny
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Sale of service

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a
customer. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when
the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized based on
these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
satisfied. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services
are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant
risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output
method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the
performance completed or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures
utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance
obligation identified in the contract.

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists,
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f. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value
method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:

1) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounti ng profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

if) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
== reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits

@:;‘v\(jll allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
N
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The Company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since Company had opted for lower tax
rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 in the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of Balance Sheet.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

ASSetS Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule II of
. the companies Act 2013
Plant and machinery S5to 15
Office equipment 5
3
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Furniture & fixtures 10
Vehicles 8

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful
life, whichever is lower.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangib ; e t ra r
HEnghlE Useful lives | Amortisation method used In er-nally generated o
assets acquired
) Amortised on a straight-line basis

Computer ; ;

) 3 years over the period of computer Acquired
software

software

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
__ the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
C & ";\“Casan adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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j- Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment and office premises. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
\Q‘ecognmon exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
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payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

The Company has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Consumables: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage
pattern.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered as
impaired and is written down is reduced to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

_Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
1 the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
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surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoveiable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
Company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) and
as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OClI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
«_ subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii) The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the standalone statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
i) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

o. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
Company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 32.

p- Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,

“fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss.
2 Y
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The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit and loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and

if) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other
wreceivables and loans.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual funds and call option on non-controlling interest of
subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with profit / loss being
recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Company has also entered into call options
in respect of its investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Derivative assets /
liabilities are classified under “other financial assets / other financial liabilities”. Profits and losses
arising from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit and loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit and loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s standalone balance
sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
~-uthat the Company could be required to repay.

%
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL') model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next twelve months (a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a lifetime ECL).

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities, Associates

Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Controlled Entities and Associates are measured at cost less
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements™.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities af fuir value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criterias as specified in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains / losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL. These gains / losses are not subsequently
transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

q. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
~the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of standalone cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent Company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 30
ii) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 29
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 29

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
a lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
\:_\ exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that

\create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
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commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements,
significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model for employee stock option plan. The
assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 32.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates).
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Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs
(MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the
following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information” and providing guidance
relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the
definition of accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is
assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will
adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial 8 ts for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Allamounts in rupees million. unless otherwise staied)

4 Financial assets

4.1 Investmenis

Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022

Non-current
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary {carvied at cost) (Unquoted)

6,421,306 (March 31, 2022: 5364 304) fully paid equity shares of Bionedds India Private Limited of Rs. 10 sach {refer note i and i

below) 2.131.50 1,647.82
Investment in equity shares of joint venture (cariied at cost) (Unquoted)
330,000 (March 31, 2022; 350,000) fully paid equity shares of Ingenuity Biosciences Privaie Limited of Rs. 10 2ach 350 350
Less: Provision [or impairment on non-current inyestments (3.30) -
Total 2,131.50 1,651.32
Current
Investment in units of mutual funds (carvied at fair value through profit and loss) (Quoted)
332,052.84 (March 31, 2022: 332,052.84) Units of ICICI Prudential Savings Fund (Regular Growth) 151.91 143.80
256.229.87 (March 31, 2022: 256.229.87) Units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund {Regular Growth) 143,59 137.32
86.990.63 (March 31. 2022: 86,990 63) Units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Direct Growth) 33.1 30.31
Nil (March 31, 2022: 87,316 55) Units of Aditva Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund (Direct Growih) - 100 39
Nil (March 31. 2022: 21.241.74) Units of Axis Liquid Fund (Direct Growth) 3 5622
1009, 713.94 (March 31, 2022: 1,009,713.94) Units of HDFC Low Duration Fund (Direct Growth) 3303 30.27
17.319.34 (March 31, 2022; 17.319.34) Units of Koiak Low Duration Fund (Direct Grawth) 53.01 3025
Nif (Macch 31, 2022: 88556 45) Units of Kotak Overnight Fund (Direct Growth) - 100.4]
Nil (March 31, 2022: 9,642,39) Units of Nippon India Liquid Fund {Direct Growth) - 50.22
27 464.47 (March 31, 2022; 15.859.79) Units of Nippon India Low Duration Fund (Direct Growth) 91.74 5026
Nii (March 31, 2022; 28,793.72) Units of UTI Liquid Cash Plan (Direct Growth) - 100,43

Investments in optionally convertible redecmable preference shures of Subsidiary (was an associate till July 16, 2021),
(carvied at fair value through profit and loss) (Unquoted)
2,333,000 (March 31. 2022: 2,333.000) fully paid optionally conyeriible redeemable preference shares of Bioneeds India Privaie

233 2333

Limited {refer noie iii below) 23330 3330

Total 780.17 1,117.28
Total nan-current investment 2,131.50 1,651.32

egale amount of quoted investmients and markel value thereal - -

Aggregate anount of unguoied investments 2.131.50 1.651.32
Total current investments 780.17 1.117.28
Apgregate amount of quoied invesiments and market value thereol 546 87 883,98
Ageregate amount of unquoted investments 233.30 235.30

Aggregate amount of imparimient - =

Notes:

(i) The Company entered into investment agreement with Bioneeds India Private Limited (“Bioneeds™) and its shareholders on July 07, 2021 for acquisition of additional 20.10% equily shareholding at Rs;
620.00 million [rom the promoter and existing shareholders of Bioneeds and dlso s per the said agreement the Company has various call options to acquire remaining 49.90% equity shareholding from the
promater of Bioneeds, Subsequent to this, the Company entered into addendum 1o said investment dgreemient on January 30, 2022 pursuant to which, the Company has exercised share swap call option and
has acquired additional 25.00% of total share capilal of Bionceds equivalent to 1,785,721 equity shares for which the consideration has been paid by allotment of 2,839 864 equily shares of the Company,
Additional investment of 25.00% acquisition in Bioneeds has been accounted at Rs. 730.36 million based on the fair valuation feport of the independent valuer. Furihier. as per the addendum. the Company has
call option ayailable on the remaining 24.90% share capital of Bionzeds which was fir valued at Rs 73.15 million based on the fair vahuation report [rom the independent valuer and the resultant fir value gain
of Rs. 3.90 million was recognized in other income (refir note 14),

(ii) During the year ended March 31. 2023, the Company has entered into addendum dated May 23. 2022 and December 9, 2022 pursuant 1o which Company has acquired additional equity by way of primary
i estment in Bioneeds and secondary investment by way of acquisition from promoier of Bioneeds ang ng 1o 11.90% on fully diluted basis, Further, as per the aforesaid addendum dated December 9,
2022, the Company has an option to further acquire remaining balance of 13.00% shares on fully diluted basis. Fair value of the aforesaid call option is Rs. 16.74 million as on March 31, 2023 based on the fair
valuation report from the independent valuer and the resultant fair valuation foss of Rs. 22.73 million has been recognized in "Other expenses” (refer note 19).

iii) As per the same invesiment agreement with Bioneeds India Private Limited and its shareholders dated July 07, 2021, the Company has made invesiment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares ("OCRPS") for 2 wotal consideration of Rs. 233.30 million. The said OCRPS were issued on the follow ing terms and conditions:

(a) Minimum preferential dividend rate of 0. 001% p.a. cumulative preference dividend and the same shall ba paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior years)

(b) Canversion: 1. Conversion option can be exercised by the Company only afler Bioneeds becomes 2 wholly owned subsidiany: of the Company.

2. OCRPS will be converied info such number of equity shares of Bioneeds, at the price per share equal 10 the fair market value of the equity shares at the time  of such comversion

{"Conversion Price”).

(c) Redemption - Subject io the Company’s right to seak canversion, the OCRPS shall be redeemed by Bioneeds upon zarlier of (i) 1 day prior to expiry of 20 years at the face value of OCRPS: or
(ii) at the option of the Company, at the redemption price which shall be the fair market value of equity shares of Bioneeds at the time of such redemption,
Since the terms of redemption is at the option of the Company, the management of the Compuny expects to get the redemption of OCRPS at face value before March 31, 2024 and accordingly, the iy estment
in the said OCRPS has been considered as current im estment.

iv) Subsequent fo the year end. the company has entered into agreement dated July 20. 2023 to amend the terms of investment agreement and addendum to iny estment agrezmem as per which the company has
acquired 295,385 equily shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited representing 4% of its total equily share capilal for an ageresate consideraiion of Rs.235.00 Million,

4.2 Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good & ]
Unsecured, considerad good 71140 773.92
Trade receivables which have significant increass m eredit risk 10,45 9.57
Trade receivables - credit impaired 31.61 15.81

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful dehts)
Unsecured. considered good

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (10.45) (9.57)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (3161 (15.81)

Tatal 711.40 773.92
N

o S i .
;:f;r,raL rgyé'n'au are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7-90 days.
o I Z N - K
/f ¢ I‘E!J\r_y\fﬂmuﬂgq nbf“ trisk and market risk related to trade receivable, pleuse refer note 29,
“ANoifade o ﬁ‘lhEr:re 2rvidble are due from directors or other officers of the company aither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies

&,
{/ Qf’ respectively in whi ‘@i?\'\ﬁk

-}
dlecior is a pariner. a director or a member.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (farmerly known as "Veeda Clinieal Rescarch Private Li
Notes to Standalone Financial Stutements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in mpees million, wnless ofhery ise stated)

4.2 Trade receivables
The followitig table sunmarizes the change in inpainuent allowarice mieasyred using the life time expecied credit loss model:
Particatars As at March 31, As al March 31,
Hrvmach 2023 2021
AL the beginning of the vear 2538 1570
Provision nude duning the vear 16.68 9.68
Utilized / reversed during tle year - -
At the enid of 1he vear 42.06 2538
Trade Receivables agelog schedule as at March 31, 2023
Ouistanding for Tollowing periods from the due date of pavment
Particul Total
. Not due Less than 6 months | 6 months - 1 year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 Yeuars More than 3 years ot
(i) Undispuied Trade receivables — considered ood 412.20 27808 1533 3.79 - - 711.40
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which haye sigvificant increase in eredil risk - - - 9.60 .85 - 1045
(i) Undispuied Trade Receivables — crodit inpaired - - - 15.06 193 8.09 25.10
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considercd good - - - . 5 = .
(v} Disputed Trade Rec tes — which lave siwnificiin increase in crodit sk = = - - - - -
(vi) Dispuicd Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - 0.61 390 6.51
Total 412.20 27808 1233 30.45 341 13.99 75346
Trade Receivables ugeing schedule as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for Tollow ing periods from the due date of payment
fcula Totul
Partgular Not due Less than 6 months | 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years o
(i) Undispuied Trade receivables — considered good 462.64 22464 B3.55 3.09 - - 773.92
(i) Undisputed Trude Receivables — which Jave s ant increase in credit nisk - - - 9.55 - 0.02 9.57
(il Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 0.17 1.98 - 8.00 10.24
(iv) Dispuied Trade Receiyubles—considered good - - = - Z - -
(v} Dispuicd Trade ivables — which lune significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit inpaircd - - - 0.13 - 54 357
Total 462.64 22464 8§3.72 14.75 - 13.55 799.30
4.3 Cash and cash equivalents
ST As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
Batunces with Banks
= On current accounts 33273 376,07
Casl oui lung 047 0.99
. Total 333.20 57716
4.4 Other Bank hul:
Particulars Aygat March 31, Axat March 31,
S 2023 2022
- Deposits with original wainrity of more tan three months bt less than twelve 31.00 2956
montlhs {refer noie below)
Slure spplication mosey acconunt 213.00 -
24400 29.56

Note:
Daposits with bank as a1 Mareh 31, 2023

ounting 1o Rs. 31.00 million (March 31. 2022, Rs. 29,56 million; are given as colluieral security against cash cradit limits, These depesits are made for a vary iug period for 3 montls to 12 moiths aud

Carms inferest ranging between 3.43% to 6.50% (March 31, 2 D 400% 10 513

4.5 Loans
Particulars As at March 31, As af March 31,
2023 2022
Non-current
Unsceured, comidered good
Loun 0 Joint venture in which the COMPUNY s a venlnrer i refer note 2 halaw) - 22.34
Total - 22.34

Notes;
1) Since the above Joan given 1o joint venture is wnsceired andd considered good. the bifurcation of loan in other caicgorics as roquired by scliedule 111 of comipinies Act. 2013 viz: a) Securcd b Loans which lave
credit impaired s not applical

2) Laan given © join venture Amounting to Rs. 34.00 millien (March 31, 2022: Rs Nil) has been writien off during the year considering the unfivouruble Risncial condition of joint venture and the same Jas been booked under other expense {refer note
19) -

ficant increase m eredit risk and ¢)

Disclosure required under See 18644) of the Companics Aet 2013
Included in Joans and advance are certain inicreorporaie deposiis the particulars of which are disclosed below as roquired by Soe 186(4) of the Cany iics Aet 2013,
Ay at March 31, As at March 31,

Name of the loance Rate of Tnterest Due dare Secured / Unseeured w13 022
Loan is repayable
within 2 years from|
Ingenuily Biosciences Private Limited GG the dite of agrecaion. Unsccured - 234

However, the  low|
way be repaid any
timng by the horrower,

Refer note 24 for terns and conditions of lon (o Joint veniure i which Company i€ 3 vemmrer,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Stuntdalone Finuncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amouis i upees million unless otleny ise stied)

4.6 Other linuncial assets
Particulars Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Unsecured, considercd govd
Non-current
Security deposits 26.69
Bank deposits with remaining waiurity for more than 12 wonils (refer nole i below) 62.70
Fair value of call opiion (refer noic 4.1y 73.15
Sub-total 162.54
Unsecured, considered good
Current
Coniruct assel
- Due from cusiomer (accried revenue) frefer note 13.2) 17408 16744
Tutcrest accrued on sccurity deposits 038 0.32
Securnity deposits 180 -
Expon mcentive receivable 3708 11208
Bank deposiis with resaining muatority for less than 12 wonths frefer mtz i 12318 6LoL
Reinbursement recenvable frefur note 24) - 0.12
Receivable Mrom selling sharcholders {refer noie 24} 373535 3506
Sub-total 374.09 377.03
Totul 77141 | 539.57
16744 7051
Less: hivoicing during the vear from balance at the beginning of the year (128 39) {67 82)
Less: Writien off during the year from balance at the beguniig of the vear (13.99) -
Add: Contract Assets crcated during the year 149 03 153.75
Balance at the end of the year 174.09 167.44
Notes:
i) Bank deposiis with cenwining nuturity for more than 12 months a5 at March 31, 2023 are Rs. 223,24 million (Mirch 31, 2022; Rs. 62.70 million), These deposits are nade for a period of more than
12 months and cari wlerest migig between 4,33% 10 7.25% (March 31. 2022: 4.55% 10 5.40%). Deposits amounting to Rs. 81.4% niillion as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022, Rs. 2.81 million) arc
given as securily sgainst over drfl facilitics and bank guarnieo,
iy Bank deposits with original maturity for more than 12 iwontlis and with renwining nwiurity for ks than 12 mouths as at March 31, 3033 are Rs. 123,18 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 61.91 million).
Tliese deposits are made for a period of mere tian 12 monts and carn inicrest mnging between to 7.25% (March 31. 2022: 5.10% 1o 9.00%4). Deposits amounting to Rs. 19.16 million as at
March 31, 2023 (March 31. 2022: Rs. 3.65 milliom are given as collaieral security aginst cash credit limits and baik guaranice,
5 Income tax assels {net)
Particulurs As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Non-current
Advance payient of Ticoinie 1ax (et of provision) 208 82 199.54
Total 208.82 199.54
6 Other assets
Particulars Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2023 pilhr]
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses 0.96 1.13
Bulance with government suthorities frefer note below) 9.08 7.85
Capital advaices 7.98 3.79
Sub-total 18.02 12.77
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid experses 1231
Adviuice 1o supplicrs 977
| Etiploy e advances 334 249
Batince with goversment authoriiies trefer note below) 11097 78.85
Sub-total 136.39 106.68
Tutal 15441 119.45
Note:
Balance with govermment autlorivies includes GST inpul tax credit recevable (net of Tabiling).
7 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable vilue)
Particulisy As at March 31, Ax at March 31,
2023 2022

Consunables

Less: Provision for slow mioving and non-moving consunuibles

69.94

Tutal

69.94




8 Share capital
Equity shave capital
=)y Equity shares
Partleilavg No. of Shares Amount
Authorised equity shares of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each till June 28, 2021)
As at March 31, 2021 700,000 7.00
Change during the year 100,000 1.00
Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10/- each reclassified into equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 35,640,680 336.41
Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each split into equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 145,762,720 -
As at March 31,2022 182,203,400 36441
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 182,203,400 36441
& Equity shares
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount
Issued, subseribed and fully paid up equity shaves of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each till June 28, 2021)
As at March 31, 2021 601,196 6.01
Change in Equity Share Capital due o prior period errors - -
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 10 face value during the year 76,420 076
Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 2ach converted into equity shares of Rs, 10 face value 93,946 0.54
Split of equity shares of Rs. 10 face value to Rs.2 fice value 3,086,248 -
Shares issued during the year - bonus issue 42,435,910 84.87
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 2 face value during the year 6,284,666 12.57
Shares issued under ESOP scheme of Rs 2 face value during the year 315,600 0.63
As at March 31,2022 52,893,986 105.78
Change in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - =
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 52,803,986 105.78
Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Participatory Preference Share Class "A' (CCCPS Class 'A")
Particulars CCCRS Class &'
No. of Shares Amount
Authorised shares of Rs. 10 each
As at March 31,2021 35,640,680 356.41
Preference shares CCCPS Class ‘A’ of Rs. 10/~ each reclassified into equity shares of Rs. 10 face valuz (35,040 680) (356.41)
As at March 31,2022 - -
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 . B
Instruments entively equity in nature (Compulsory Counvertible Cumulative Participatory Preference Share Class 'A' (CCCPS Class 'A'"))
. CCCPS Class 'A’
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares of Rs. 10 each:
As at March 31,2021 35,229,780 35230
Change in CCCPS Class 'A’ due to prior period eriors . =
Conversion of preference shares CCCPS class 'A' into equity shares of Rs. 10 face value during the year (35,229.780) (352.30)
As at March 31,2022 - -
Change in CCCPS Class'A' due to prior period eriors = 4
As at March 31,2023 - s
(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares,
In respect of Ordinary shares, voting rights shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid upon such ordinary share bears to the total paid up ordinary capital of the company.
The dividend proposed by the board of directors, if any, is subject 1o the spproval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation, the shareholders of ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings.
(1) The board of directors in their mesting held on June 26, 2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 each into 5 equity shares of Rs. 2 each which was approved by the members in their meeting held on
June 29, 2021.
) deztéo’alrd of directors in their mecting held on June 26, 2021 approved issue of 11 bonus shares fully paid for each equity share of Rs. 2 zach which was approved by the members in their mesting held on June
{d) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for considerntion other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
Far the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
(Number) {Number) (Number) (Number) (Number)
Issue of fully paid equity shares of Rs. 2 each as bonus shares - 42,435,810 - - -
Issue of fully paid Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A'of Rs, 10 2ach as bonus shares - - - - 35,229,780
Buyback of Preference shares CCCPS Class 'B of Rs. 3340 sach = B - - 11,630
Issue of equity share of Rs. 2 each for investment in Bioneads India Private Liniied & 2,839,864 o = B

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)




Veeda Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Nates to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Share capitul

(e) Terms of conversion / redemption of CCCPS Class 'A'

i. The CCCPS Class ‘A’ shall be entitled to 0.0001% participatory
dividend from 0.0001% to 14.1 1%,
ii. The outstanding CCCPS Class 'A' shares were converted into 83,946 cquity share:

(F) Shares held by holding company

which was approved, and dividend has been paid for the period from October 27, 2618 till March 3
s based on approval of Board of Directors and Members of the company on June 29, 2021.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of Shareholder
Number Amount Number Amount
Basil Private Linuted
JEquity shares of Rs. 2 each 22,351,712 44.50 22.7251,712 44.50
(g) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity Shire Capital
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars . % of . % of
ber
Number Halding Numiher Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 2 each
Basil Private Limited 22,251,712 42.07% 22.251,712 42.07%
Bondway Investment Inc. 13,130,580 24.82% 13,130,580 24.82%
Sabre Partners AIF Trust 2,760,840 5.22% 2,760,840 5,22%)

(h) Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31,2022

and cumulative dividend. During the previous year, the board of directors at their meeting held on May 25, 2021 have modifi
1, 2621 amounting to Rs. 120.80 million,

ed the percentage of

No. of shares at the . ;
No. of sh: h 9 :
Promoter Nanie Class of share beginning of the Chiange during the | No. of shares at the % of Total shares Achaigg iy
= caar. year * end of the year the year #
Basil Private Limited Equity shares of Rs. 406,194 21,845,518 22,251,712 42,07 (25.49)
2 each fully paid
Total 406,194 21,845,518 22,251,712 42.07 (25.49)

c
change is on account of new shares issued to shareholde

(i) Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2023

hange is on account of new shares issuzd to sharcholders other than promoters.

rs other than Promoter and teansfer of shares by Promoter.

Promoter Name

Class of share

No. of shares at the
beginning of the

Change during the

No. of shares at the

% of Total shares

o change during

YEAr dar “I i "
Zaar year end of the year e year
e af
Basil Private Limited Equity shises R, 22251712 : 22251712 4207 :
2 each fully paid
Total 22.251,712 - 22,251,712 42,07 -

(i) Employees Stock Option Scheme

1,289,970 equity shares (March 31, 2022: 1,491 ,840 equity share

<) of the face value Rs.2 sach are reserved und

er Employee Stock Option Plan of the company (refer note 24 and note 32).
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022

Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,703.48 452,79
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
On issue of equity shares during the year - 3,017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class 'A' into equity shares during the year - 351.36
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03)
Utilized towards expenses on fresh issue of equity shares - (71.88)
Balance at the end of the year 3,703.48 3,703.48
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 38.84
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (38.84)
Balance at the end of the year - -
Share options outstanding reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 24.19 5.92
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Reversal on forfeiture of ESOP (0.64) -
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) 0.02 0.05
Compensation for options granted during the year (refer note 32) 4.80 18.22
Balance at the end of the year 28.37 24.19
Share application money pending allotment
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Share application money received 213.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 213.00 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 904.18 841.72
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 259.52 183.31
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (3.17) (0.05)
Addition on forfeiture of ESOP 0.64 -
Utilised for payment of dividend to CCCPS Class 'A’ - (120.80)
Balance at the end of the year 1,161.17 904.18

Total other equity 5,106.02 4,631.85

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(1) In cases where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum eq

ual to the aggregate amount of the premium

received on those shares has been transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of the

securities premium and to buy-back of shares,

(2) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount transferred on account of buy back of CCCPS Class ‘B,

(3) The share options outstanding reserve : The share options based payment reserve is used to recognize the grant date

employees under employee stock option plan,

(4) Surplus in statement of profit and loss: Surplus in statement of profit and loss are the profits / (losses)
date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retain

fair value of options issued to

that the company has earned / incurred till
ed earnings include re-measurement loss /

(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Retained carnings is a free reserve
available to the company and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date.
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10 Financial liabilities

10.1 Trade payables

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {refer nate 25) 2578 35.50
Ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enierprises 166.12 179.27
Taotal 191.90 214.77

Terms and conditions of the above outstanding balances:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setiled in 45-180 days.
For explanation on company's eredit risk management process, refer note 29,
For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 24,

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction #

Particulurs

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - 25.77 0.0] - N 25.78
{ii) Others 67,71 97 50 0.91 * - 166,12
(i1i) Disputed dues - MSME = s - = - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = - “ = - =
Total 67.71 123.27 0.92 # - 191.90

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022
OQutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction #

Particulars

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME - 3540 0.10 - - 35.50
{ii) Others 73.38 102.56 1.85 1.06 0.42 179.27
() Disputed dues - MSME - - = - - s
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - = - 5 - =
Total 73.38 137.96 1.95 1.06 0.42 214.77

# Considering the availability of data, the above ageing is considered from the date of recording the transaction instead of due date. Consequently, there are no 'not due’ creditors balance disclossd.

10.2 Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Non- Curvent
Financial linbilities carvied at amortized cost
Security deposits 0.50 0.50
Sub-total 0.50 0.50
Current
Financial liabilities carvied at amortized cost
Creditors for capital expenditure (refer note below) 4728 87.71
Emplayee benefits payable 7837 56,68
Payable towards IPO expenss - 4.73
Payable towards share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares . 13.02
Refund liability to customer 2112 11.06
Other payables 0.67 -
Financial liabilities carvied at fair value through profit and loss
Forward coniracts 8.36 -
Sub-total 156.80 173.20
Total 157.30 173.70

Note:
Creditors for capital goods also include outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises as at March 3 1,2623 of Rs. 1.19 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 0.86 million) {refer note 26).

¢
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other current liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Contract liabilities

- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) (refer note 13.2) 479.97 378.07

- Advance from customers 12.95 7.53
Statutory dues payable 31.25 25.01
Total 524.17 410.61

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of contract liability

Balance at the beginning of the year 385.60 219.97
Lﬁs:%c: Revcnue recognized / liability reversed during the year from balance at the (337.19) (185.17)
beginning of the year
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 44451 350.80
Balance at the end of the year 492.92 385.60
Provisions
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31,2022
Non-current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 23) 39.37 3241
Compensated absence 14.09 3.78
Total 53.46 36.19
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 23) 8.30 6.47
Compensated absence 6.40 9.56
Total 14.70 16.03




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as ""Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')
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13 Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations
Sale of services

2,961.53

2,239.31

Total

2,961.53

2,239.31

13.1 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contract with customer

A. Geographical location of customer

Particulars Year ended March 31,2023 | Year ended March 31, 2022
India 940.98 849.38
Us 663.85 400.36
Greece 404.44 132,17
Others 952.26 857.40
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

B. Timing of revenue recognition
ng g

Particulars Year ended March 31,2023 | Year ended March 31,2022
Services transferred over time 2,961.53 2,239.31
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

13.2 Contract Balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with

customers:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Trade receivables (refer note 4.2) 711.40 773.92
Contract assets (refer note 4.6)
- Due from customer (accrued revenue) 174.09 167.44
Contract Liabilities (refer note 11)
- Advance from customer 12.95 7.53
- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) 479.97 378.07

WA

WA AN/
WO N
TS b)Y
NEDACOA

Company-satisfies the performance obligation.

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on
the number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. These are non interest bearing generally
on the terms of 7-90 days. Company has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. During the year,
an amount of Rs. 16.68 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 9.68 million) is recognized as provision for significant increase in credit
risk and credit impairment of trade receivables.

Contract liabilities includes short-term advances received for providing clinical services and payment received from customer
against invoice raised for which clinical services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the

e

e

e
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 3,067.66 2,317.64
Adjustments
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation (106.13) (78.33
Revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

Information about Company's performance obligation are summarized below:
pany's p

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied. The Company

considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered
created or existence of enforceable right to payment for
of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
performance obligations, the Company has detern
recognition is determined by assessing the performa
measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are s

contract.

Information about major customers:

For information about major customers, refer note 27.

Other income

or who controls the asset as it is being
performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract
ined that an output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue
pleted or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement, The
pecific to the performance obligation identified in the

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Interest income on

-Bank deposits 15.41 3.30
-Loans to associate (refer note 24) - 10.16
-Loans to joint venture (refer note 24) - 0.38
-Security deposits 1.77 1.34
-Others 0.02 1.86
Net gain on investment in mutual funds 40.13 12.85
Liabilities no longer required written back 6.11 2.15
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 18.40 5.26
Gain on lease termination 7.48 0.34
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Gain on fair value of call option (refer note 4.1) 1.41 3.90
Others 0.04 0.06
Total 91.47 42.27
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Cost of material consumed

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2023 2022
Opening stock of consumables 69.94 56.63
Purchases during the year 180.77 201.62
Less : Closing stock of consumables (72.61) (69.94)
Total 178.10 188.31
Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Salary, bonus and allowances 689.94 576.30
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 32) 4.80 18.22
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 23) 29.49 2742
Staff welfare expenses 16.28 13.90
Total 740.51 635.84
Finance costs
Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Interest expense on
-Borrowings * 293
-Delayed payment of income tax and other statutory dues 1.83 0.17
-Lease liabilities (refer note 31) 49.09 40.74
Bank charges and other borrowing cost 2.40 1.91
Total 53.32 45.75

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Clinical and Analytical research expenses

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022

Screening expenses of subjects 94.83 82.85
Subject participation expense 326.04 224.37
Food and refreshment expenses of subjects 32.62 24.86
Investigator Charges 245.48 112.88
Data Management outsource services 18.35 16.98
Bio analytical research expenses 39.35 17.94
Project approval charges 48.87 51.35
Phlebotomists, nurses and doctors fees 39.04 26.05
Others 94.95 51.00

Total 939.53 608.28
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other expenses

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2023 2022

Marketing and business promotion expenses 45.36 3431
Rent expenses (refer note 31) 0.88 1.07
Water, Power and Fuel Charges 66.81 60.45
Legal and professional expenses 65.08 33.07
Conlractor expenses 95.84 85.45
Insurance expenses 12.53 13.81
Travelling and conveyance expense 3.04 3.28
Communication expenses 3.02 2.74
Repairs and maintenance -
-Buildings 10.31 7.69
-Plant and machinery 3532 53.60
-others 16.36 11.81
Renewal charges of software and licence 11.21 7.72
Rates and taxes 27.74 10.37
Payments to the auditor (refer note below) 1.75 0.90
Expenditure towards CSR activities (refer note 25) 7.73 10.36
Printing, stationery and courier expense 20.11 22.92
Property, Plant & Equipment written off 8.90 -
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 9.36 -
Bad debts and contract asset written off 13.99 0.92
Loan written off 34.00 -
Impairment provision on financial asset 3.50 -
IPO expenses 10.03 14.87
Provision for doubtful debts 16.68 9.68
Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory 23.66 -
Miscellaneous expenses 16.03 11.06

Total 559.24 396.08
Payments to the auditor

Paiticiildrs Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022

As auditor:
- Audit fees 1.75 0.90
- Tax Audit fees - -
- Reimbursement of expenses - *

Total 1.75 0.90

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Excludes amount towards IPO services included in receivabl
expenses.

e from selling sharcholders and amount included under IPO
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Tax expense

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022 are :

Profit and loss section

For the year ended

For the year ended

Piitiaiamy March 31,2023 |  March 31, 2022
Current income tax charge:
Current income tax 126.14 74.40
Adjustiment of tax relating to carlier years 0.12 -
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (14.80) (5.69)
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 111.46 68,71

Other comprehensive income (OCI) seclion

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCIL during the year

Net loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.07 0.02
Deferred tax charged to OCI 1.07 0.02
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022
Opening balance as at the beginning of the year 67.59 61.88
Tax income recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year 14.80 5.69
Tax income recognized in OCI during the year 1.07 0.02
Closing balance as at the end of the year 83.46 67.59

Note:
The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to incon
authority,

Profit before tax 370.98 252.02
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (refer note below) 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 93.37 63.43
Adjustments
Non-deductible expense 17.10 4.69
Others 0.99 0.59
Tax expense as per standalone statement of profit and loss 111.46 68.71
Balance sheet section
Particulars As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2023 2022
liicome tax assets (net) 208 82 189.54
Income tax assets {net) 208.82 199.54
Deferred tax
Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss 0CI
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, For the year ended | For the year ended | For the yearended | For the year ended
2023 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax relates to the following
Difference between depreciable assets as per books =

¥ 0. 28. 1 3 - -
of accounts and written down value for tax purpose 3016 8.18 (1.97) (1.36)
Employce benefits 17.15 13.87 (2.21) (L5D) 1.07 0.02
Effect of MTM loss / {gain) on forward contract

02 0 2 - -

and call option 1.2 (0.98) .00 Lol
Effect of provision for doubtful debts 18.72 639 (12.33) (2.44) - -
PO expenses - 1.86 186 {1.86) - -
Right of use assets and lease liabilities 2557 2117 (4.41) (1.86) - -
Restatement of mutual fund (9.16) (2.90) 6.26 2.33 - -
Deferred tax expense / (credit) (14.80) (5.69) 1.07 0,02
Net deferred tax assets 83.46 67.59

1e taxes levied by the same tax
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21 Contingent liabilities and capital commitment not provided for

21.1 Contingencies

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:
(1) Income tax * 109.47 109.68
(i1) Service tax ** 210.01 191.90
(i11) Customs # 4.75 4.75

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs 109.47 million (March
31, 2022: Rs 109.68 million) upon completion of their tax review for the assessment year 2007-08 to 2019-20. The tax demands
are mainly on account of disallowances relating to transfer pricing matters, expenditure to earn exempt income, depreciation on
software, interest charged on loan advanced, capital expenditure charged to revenue, etc. claimed by the company under the Income
tax Act. The matter is pending before various authorities. The said demand amounts have been already adjusted against refund of
various years by Income Tax department and hence net demand is Nil in respect of such period.

** Service tax demand comprise demand from the Service tax authorities

for payment of additional tax of Rs 210.01 million (March

31, 2022: Rs 191.90 million), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2008-09 to 2015-16. The tax demands are
on account denial of export of service under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT credit under

Rule 6(3) and 6(5), disallowance of input tax credit, etc. The matter is pending before various authorities.

Above amount excludes Rs. 145.87 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 145.87 million) for the period April 2016 to June 2017 in respect
of matters where the company has received favourable orders from the first appellate authorities and has received refund. However,
the departiment is pursuing appeal with higher appellate authority. The actual outflow would depend on the final outcome of the

matter.

# Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for paymient of additional tax of Rs 4.75 million (March 31, 2022 Rs 4,75
million), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011-12 10 2016-17. The demand is on account denial of custom
duty exemption benefit claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2012, The matter is pending before various

authorities.

The company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be
upheld in the appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The

management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not |

position and resulis of operations.

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

have a material adverse effect on the company's financial

Claim by a party arising out of a commercial contract: Rs. 1,018.84 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,018.84 million). The company
has not acknowledged this claim. As advised by the external legal counsel, the claim is not legally tenable. Moreover, the company

is adequately insured and the matter is intimated to insurance company as well. The company has

claim lodged. The matter is pending at commercial court, Ahmedabad.
this count and accordingly no provision is made in books of accounts,

21.2 Capital commitment

filed detailed response to the
In view of these, the company does not foresee any losses on

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for (net of advances)

96.36

21.04
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the Yyear altributable to equity lolders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year

Plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The following reflects the income and share used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit after tax for the year 259,52 183.31
Nominal value of equity share (Amount in Rs)) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 52,893 986 52,893 986
Weighted average number of equity shares 52,893,986 46,862,176
Effect of dilution:
Dilutive effect of stock options granted under ESOP 122,896 104,964
Weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 53,016,882 46,967,140
Earning per equity share (Amount in Rs.)
Basic eamings per share 4.91 3.91
Diluted earnings per share 4,50 3.90

Note:

Ther above earning per share as at March 3 1, 2022 has been computed based on revised number of shares considering split and bonus issue during the year ended March 31, 2022,
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23 Disclosure for employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans
Amount recognized as expenses and included in note 16 "Employee benefit expenses”

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March

March 31,2023 31,2022
Contribution to Provident fund 19.05 17.55
Contribution to Employee state insurance 1.49 1.60
Total 20.54 19.15

(b) Defined benefits plan
The Company has following post employment benefit which is in the nature of defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity pavable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic satary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service caleulated on actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is a funded plan to the extent
balance available in Gratuity account maintained with bank. Balance available in such account as at March 31,2023 is Rs. 0.07 million (March 31, 2022 Rs, 0.07

million),

i. Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening defined benefit obligation 38.95 34.79
Current Service Cost 6.47 6.25
Past Service Cost - -
Interest Cost 245 2.04
Components of actuarial gain / (losses) on abligation

- Due to change in demographic assumptions - 0.59

- Due to change in financial assumptions (397 (1.30)

- Due to experience adjustments (0.26) 0.69
Benefits paid 4.36 4.15
Closing defined benefit obligation 47.74 38.95

ii. Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening value of plan assets 0.07 0.07
Interest Income * 0.05
Retum on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income * (0.05)
Closing value of plan assets 0.07 0.07

* Figure nuilified in conversion of Rupees in million.

iii. Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligations 47.74 3895
Fair value of plan assets (0.07) 0.07)
Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 47.67 38.88

iv. Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

Fartioulars 31,2023 31,2022
Current service cost 6.47 6.25
Net interest cost 245 1.99
Net gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss 8.92 8.24
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23 Disclosure for employee benefits

v. Other Comprehensive Income

Pasticiilies For the year ended March | For the year ended March
artieutar 31,2023 31,2022
Actuarial gains / (losses)
- Due to change in demographic assumptions - 0.59
- Due to change in financial assumptions (3.97) (1.30)
- Due to experience adjustments (0.26) 0.69
Retum on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense * (0.05)
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income (4.24) (0.07)
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
vi. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Bank balance (escrow account) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the company’s plan are shown below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.35%pa 6.70% p.a.
Future salary increase 10.00% p.a 800% p.a
Age 25 & below; 25% p.a, Age 25 & below: 25% p.a.
251035:25% p.a. 25t035:25% p.a
Employee turnover 35t045: 15% p.a. 35t045: 15% pa.
4510 55: 10% p.a. 45 to 55: 10% p.a.
55 & above: 0% p.a. 55 & above: 0% p.a.
2 Indian Assured Lives|Indian Assured Lives
riality rate N
Moriality e Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as under:
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation
Particulars Sensitivity level
artied ensitivity level For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31,2023 31,2022
" 0.5% increase (1.60) (1.21)
Discount rat
SR 0.5% decrease 1.70 1.28
Saliry increase 0.5% increase 1.64 125
1 nereas 0.5% decrease (1.56) (1.20)
Employee turnover Change by 10% upward (0.94) (0.49)
Change by 10% downward 1.05 053
The following are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan (Undiscou nted):
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 5.10 4.71
Between 2 and $ years 23.08 20.79
Between 6 and 10 years 17.35 12.47
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24 Related party transactions
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24), the related parties of the company are as follows:
Name of related parties and their relationship

Holding Company
Basil Private Limited

Subsidiary Companies

Bioneeds India Private Limited (W.e.f, July 16, 2021)

Activin Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (W.ef. July 16, 2021 upto July 20, 2021)

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited (Weef July 16, 2021) (Wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. December 15, 2021)

Joint venture and associate
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (Weef March 29, 2021)
Bioneeds India Private Limited (Upto July 18, 2021)

Entity with significant influence on the Cinu[")auy
Bondway Investment Ine

Key managerial personnel of the Company

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh (Independent Director) (W.ef July 01, 2021)

Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (Independent Director) (W.ef. July 01, 2021) .
Mrs. Kavita Singh (Independent Director) (W.e.f, July 01, 2021)

Mrs. Jeanne Hecht (Independent Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)

Mr. Jagannath Samavedam (Nominee Director - wie.f. January 28, 2022) (Nominee Director « w.ef June 22, 2021 upto July 16, 2021)
Mr. Apurva Shah {Director)

Mr. Binoy Gaidi (Director) (Till June 26, 2021)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Director)

Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Nomines Director)

Mr. Manu Sahni (Nominee Director)

Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja (Nominee Director)

Mr. Kitan Marthak (Director)

Mr. 8. N. Vinaya Babu (Director) (W.e f, July 16, 2021)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer - w.e.f June 22,2021)

Nature of trunsactions with related parties For the year ended March 31,2023 | For the year ended March 31, 2022

Holding company
Basil Private Limited

Reimbursement receivable fram selling shareholder recognized 0.68 998

Entity with significant influence on the Company

Bondway Invesiment Inc,
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder recognized 124 18.27
Dividend paid on CCCPS class 'A" shares - 76.04

Joint venture in which the com pany is a venlurer

Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses incurred 0.01 1.80
Reimbursement for employee stock options granted 002 0.05
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Sale of service 2.40 263
Purchase of service 4.02 S
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 4.52
Loan given 12.00 23.00
Repayment of loan given - 1.00
Interest income on loan given - 0.38
Interest income on delayed payment towards MSME dues 0.02 162
Loan written off 34.00 -

Subsidiary (W.e.f, July 16, 2021) (Associate w.e.f, March 19, 2021 to July 15,
2021)

Bioneeds India Private Limited

Investment in equity shares 100.00 -
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) - 23330
Interest income on loan given - 10.16
Repayment of loan given - 23330
Purchase of consumables 0.28 -
Interest paid on delayed payment towards MSME dues 0.02 =

Key managerial personnel

Remuneration (including perquisites)

Mr. Ajay Tandon 1500 15.00
Acquisition of additional stake in Subsidiary Company

Mr. 8, N. Vinaya Babu 33000 30981
Professional fees paid 1o non-executive director

Mr. Kiran Marthak 3.60 285
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh 1.50 1.13

‘Mh"-l__?akcsh Bhartia 1.50 113
Mis\Kavita Singh 1.50

Wrs. Jeanne Hecht 322

én_‘l_'l_ryg(incl uding perquisites)

MTTNLI}BIN Bhatia 13.49

‘\?,;,53\ &\\%
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Related party transactions

Nature of transactions with related parties For the year ended March 31,2023 | For the year ended March 31, 2022
Rent - expense
Mr. Apurva Shah 0.60 0.50
Reimbursement of expenses .
Mr. Ajay Tandon 0.34 0.09
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.12 0.11
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.24 0.24
ESOP Expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 2.79 7.12
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.24 047
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.48 0.93
Issue of shares on exercise of ESOP
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia - 17.50
Outstanding balances at the end of the year As ait March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Holding company

Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 10.66 9.98

Entity with significant influence on the Com pany

Bondway Investment Inc,
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 19.51 18.27

Joint venture in which the company is a venturer

Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
(Trade payable) / Reimbursement receivable (1.75) 0.12
Loan given (including interest accrued) - 2234

Subsidiacy (W.e.f. July 16, 2021) (Associate w.e.f. March 19, 2021 to July 15,

2021)
Bioneeds India Private Limited
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) 23330 23330

Key managerial persannel

Remuneration payable / (receivable) (including perquisites)

Mr. Ajay Tandon 1.04 1.09
Professional fees payable to non-executive director

Mr. Kiran Marthak - 027
Mr. Nitin Deshimukh - 0.14
Mr, Rakesh Bhartia - 0.11
Mrs. Kavita Singh - 0.11
Salary payable (including perquisites)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.91 0.76
Reimbursement of expenses payable / {receivable)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (0.02) (0.10)
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.08 0.03

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(1) The Company’s transactions with related parties are at arm’s length. Management believes that the Company’s domestic and international transactions with related
parties post March 31, 2022 continue to be at arm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements particularly on the
amount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the year end.

(2) The future lability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on aggregated basis for all the employees of the Company taken as a whole, the amount
pertaining to key managerial personnel is not asceriainable separately and therefore not included above,

(3) Loan to Subsidiary (was an assaciate till July 15, 2021)

The loan granted to Bioneeds India Private Limited is intended to fund the repayment of its CVCFL liability. The loan is unsecured and is repayable on or before final
maturity date which shall not be later than 3 months from the date of disbursement or such other date as mutually agreed among the parties to loan. Loan carries interest
rate of 15 00% p.a, compounded annually. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was gramed. The said loan has been received on July 16, 2021,

(4) Loan to Joint venture in which the company is a venturer

The loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is intended to fund its working capital requirements. The loan 15 unsecured and is repayable within 2 years
from the date of agreement, However, the loan may be repaid at any time by the borrower. Loan carries interest rate of 6.00% p.a. compounded annually. The loan has
been utilized for the purpose for which it was granted,

Non-cash transaction with key managerial personnel:
During the year ending March 31, 2022, the Company has acquired additional 25.00% of total share capital of Bioneeds equivalent to 1,785,721 equity shares from Mr.

8. N. Vinaya Babu (Director of Veeda) for which the consideration has been paid by allotment of 2,835,864 own equity shares of the Company.
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25 Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022

The gross amount required o be spent by the Company on the corporate social

a)  responsibility (CSR) activities during the year as per the provisions of Section 135 of 7.73 11.05
the Companies Act, 2013 (refer note below)

b)  Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 1773 11.05

Ye!. to be paid Total Fiish Yet. to be paid
in cash in cash

i) Construction / acquisition of asset = % - = & =

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 7.73 - 7.13 10.36 - 10.36

©)  Amount spent during the year In cash Total

d}  Details related to spent/unspent ohligations:
i) Contribution to public trust - - - “ - =
ii) Contribution ta charitable trust /Association of persan registered under

7 =
Section 12A of Tncome Tax Act, 1961 a3 w3

o
o
S

'

P
o
=3

i) Contribution to others - - = 050 - 0.50
iv) Unspent amount in relation to;
- Ongoing project < < - < = =
- Other than ongoing project - & 5 - = @
Total 7.73 - 773 10.36 - 10.36
€} reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust cantrolled by the Not applicable Mot applicable

Company in relation to CSR. expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard,

where a provision is made with respect 10 a Tiability incurred by entering into a|
g) coniractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be| Not applicable Not applicable
shown separately

h)  Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5}of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects

For the year ended March 31,

Particulars 2023
Balance as at April 01,2022 (0.02)
Amount deposited in a specified fund of schedule VI1 of the Act within 6 months -
Amount required to be spent dur ing the year 7.73
Amount spent during the year 1.73
Balance unspent ns at March 31, 2023 (0.02)

" For the year ended March 31,
Particulars

2022
Balance as at April 01, 2021 0.71)
Amount deposited in a specified fund of schedule VII of the Act within 6 months -
Amount required to be spent during the year 11.05
Amount spent during the year 1036
Balance unspent as at March 31, 2022 (0.02)
Note:
Amount required to be spent by the Conipany has been computed based on signed financial statements of respective years.
26 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
: The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memarandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in

their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated afier filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006° (*the MSMED Act),

Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2023 has heen made in the Financial Statements based on information received and
available with the Company, Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any Supplier as at the Balance Sheet date.

The details as required by MSMED Act are given below;

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due thercon femaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year;

Principal and interest amount
Trade payable 25.78 35.30
Capital payable 1.19 0.86
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED
Act not paid); B )
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and - -
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding period, until such date when the interest dues as
—{alrove are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under - &
seCHOILESof MSMED Act, 2006.
— \i‘f\
On bast '{Fin ormation and records available with the Company, the above disclosures are made in respect of amount due to the micro and small enterprises, which have been registered with
the rekvar\fn,?i ‘f:;et:m authorities. This has been relied upon by the auditors,

144.22 10.77

|k

teold

S
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Segment reporting

The company is mainly engaged in the business of Clinical Res
‘Clinical Research' and all the activities of the Company revolve around this main business. The Chief Operating

h for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The company’s business falls within a single business segment of
decision maker (CODM) manitors the operating results of the

business as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Therefore, management views company's business activity as a single
segment and there are no separate reportable segments in terms of the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operaling Segments” as notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013,

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the company is organized into two major operating geographies India and ousside India. More than 30°% of the Company's business is from India. The
segment revenue is disclosed based on geographical location of cusiomers in the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022,

Revenue from external customers For the year ended March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
India 940,98 849.38
us 663.85 400 36
Greece 404.44 132.17
Others 952.26 857.40

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assets, income tax assets and financial assets analyzed by the

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of non-current operating assets As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

India 1,155.29

811.83

Qutside India 5

Information about major customers:
The company has assessed that there are no external customers from which the revenue from transactions is 10%
31, 2023 and for the year ending March 31, 2022,

@ or more of the Company's total revenue for the year ending March
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28  Financial instrument - fair value hierarchy

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of ach class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the standalone financial statements.

Fair values
A. Categary-wise classification of financial instrument
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022

Particulars Notes As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Financial assets:
At cost
Investments 4.1 2,131.50 1,651.32
Sub-total 2,131.50 1,651.32
At amortized cost
Loans (non-current) 4.5 - 22.34
Trade receivables 4.2 711.40 773.92
Cash and cash equivalenis 43 333.20 57716
Other bank balances 4.4 244.00 29.56
Other financial assets (current) 4.6 374.09 377.03
Other financial assers {non-current) 46 356.45 8939
Sub-total 2,019.14 1,869.40
Total 4,150.64 3,520.72
Fair value through prafit and loss
Investments 4,1 78017 1,117.28
Fair value of call option 4.6 4088 73.15
821.05 1,190.43
Total financial assets 4.971.69 4,711.15
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost
Trade payables 0.1 191.90 214.77
Lease liabilities 31 451.25 377.80
Other financial liabilitics (current) 102 147.43 173.20
Other financial liabilities (non-current) 10.2 0.50 0.50
Total 791.08 766.27
Al fuir value through profit & loss
Mark 1o market liability on forwaed contracts 102 C 936 -
Total 9.36 =
Total financial liabilities 800.44 766.27

The management assessed that carrying values of financial assets L&, cash and cash equivalenss, trads payables, trade receivables, current investments and other financial assets and
liabifities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022 are reasonable approximations of their fair values fargely duz to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current iransaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosi ng the fair value of Financial Instrumants by valuation technigues:
(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities.

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that arz observable for the Assets or Liabilities
(iii) Level 3: inputs for the Assers or Liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobseryable inputs),

either directly (i.e., as prices) orindirectly (i.e,, derived from prices),

uantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy :
Fair Value o
Particulars Fair Value hierarchy Sigaificant observable
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 : input
Investment in mutual funds at Fair value thraugh profit and loss (refer note 546,87 883,68 Level-l NAV Statement provided
4.1) by fund manager
Call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company (refer note 40,88 s Level-3 '['hinl‘ party independent
4.6) valuation repori
Mark to market liability on forward coniracts {refer noie 10.3) 9.36 - Level-2 MTM statement by bank

Note: Investment in OCRPS is carried at cost considering the same as shart ternm in nature and hence the fair value hierarchy has not been disclosed

Financial instrument measured at amortized cost
The carryving amount of financial assets and financial liabilities messured at amortized cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the
Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.

Reconciliation of level 1 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balances for level | fair values representing investment in short term liquid mutual funds.

Parficulars _As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening batance 883.98 298.52
Net gain on investment in mutual funds 40.13 12,85

Ptchases 38.00 799.98
/| Sgldsendn, 413,24 22737
[Closing balance 546.87 883.98
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Financial risk i bicetives and palicies

¥'s principal financial Habilities comprise wade and other

financial sssets include trade and other receivihles and cash ind cash equiy
The Company is exposed 1o murket sk, ere k. The Comp
appropriate | s and procedures and that ul sk Edentified. pa

bles, The awin prirpose of these financial Tishilitic
s that derive directly from its operations,

serior managenent oversees the managemoent of these fisks and ensures that Fnanofal sk setivities are govemne
and managed in secorduncs with the Conipam s and risk

15 o ey out the Company's operations. The Cumpany's principal

tives,

() Market risk

value of futire
nisk Finaneial nsrumenis o
expusad s interest rule risk,

The sensitivity analysis in the follow ing sections relate 1o the psiition o5 at March 31, 2
the proporiion of financial mstruments in forefgn cumencies are all constant, The
retirerment obligutions und provisions,

The sensitivity of the relevant profit of loss ftem 1 the effect of the assumed chunges in fespeiive market risks, This is bused o the finuneis! asets and financiul Tighflites held at March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2622,

1 flows of a finuncial instrument will Muctaute because of changes i market price
lected by market sk include receivables, pavables and bunk balasces. Since

ket risk coniriss two types of risk: inerest sate risk and
there are o financiol instrument with variable rate of inten . the Compuay is not

23 mid March 31, 2022, ‘The
= excludes the

usitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amourd of net debt and
pact of movernents mmarket varisbles on the camving vilues of grawity and other st

Foreign curreney risk

Forcign eunrcncy risk is the risk that the foir value or future cash flows af an wxposune will Mustuate Because of changes in forcigr exchange rates. The conipany’s exposure 1o the risk of changes in
forelg exclumpe rutes relates to the < apony's epeeating activities denominsted in United States Dollar (TISD), Zuso (FUR), 1y Pound Sterling (GBP) and Canadian Dollar (CAD).

The folloswierg teble ot forth infurmiation relai Ting o wibedged foreign currency exposun: as 2t Mareh 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

(i} Foreign currency fimincial asseis :

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particul
e Inforcign currency Amount In foreign currency Amount
Trade receivables:
uspD 29141
EFRO 16993
CAD 170 =
app s 083
Cash und cash equivatents :
Bulances with Banks:
- On curment accoums
usp 7039
EURO 358
Cash on hand
ush ricl 008 470 004
EURO qo0 004 &9l D08
CAD 289 002 289 002
GBP 66 Qi &6 oG
Total 56661 594.34
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
i
Fartfeulaes In foreign currency Amount In forcign currency Amount
Trade pavaliles:
-UsD 46,370 381 208
Capital creditors:
-UsD 4363 1135900 L
Refund linbility to customer:
- UsD 2L12 145,856 185
Total 68.56 99.25

Fureign currency sensitivity
The following demonsteute the sonsitivity 1o @ neusonably possible chunge in USD, FURD, CAD and GE#P exechange rates, with all other variubles held consiunt, The unpact on the Company’s
profit before wax is due o changes in il fair value of imonetary assets and lisbilities,

Particulars Profit ar {loss) Equity, net of tax
Effeet in amount Strengthening Weakening Strengthenin Weaksnin,
March 31,2023 ey | Weakening |
3% Movarent
Usd 1508 113 08) 1128
ElLR 973 (8.73) 728
CAD 069 ()| i iy
GEBP - * *
March 31,2022
3% Movement
Usb 1738
EUR 733 E
CAD N -
iz .04 (0104

* Figure mullified in comversion of Rupees in million,
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Financial risk munugement objectives and policies

Derivatives

Businiess opera

Derivatives not designited as hedging fnstruments

The Company uses

Teign exel forward contracts to
exposure of the wnderly ing wransactions
Outstanding derivatives instruments are 25 fllows,

rally within 12 months

L The prinary fisks mansged
highly probuble forecasiod sales transsctions veelaming i foresgn currene

some of its ransaction exposures. The foreign exch

wing derivative isinumens are forign cumens

ange forvard contruces gre niot designuted as cash flow hedges and are entered inte

—

Partivulurs

Less than | manth

1 10 3 months

3 to 6 months

6 to 9 months

9 to 12 months

As at March 31, 2023

Forcign exchange forward contracts (highly probable forecast sales)

Notional amoant

3157 14766 Eid -

Aversge Tomward e (Rs 7USD) Biai 83.91 3 &
Notiona! amount 3734 G854 97.64 5820 -
Average forward rate (Rs FELURO)Y BIG1 84 00 8531 =
As at March 31, 2022
Foreign exchange forward contracts Chighly probable forccast sules)
Nl wmonnt - - 3 = 5
[ Averuge fonwurd rate (Rs ISD) - B N

fusticna] wmwnnt - - - - -
Average forvward ruie (Rs EURODY = = - = =

The ditypuct of the hedglng jistrments on the bulance sheer is, as follows;

Particulurs

As ut March 31, 2023

| Notional amount C:rrving smount

Line item in the balunce sheet

Forcign exchaige forward contracts (highly probable forecost safes) | 651 SE’I

Mark 0 ma

ahility on fonvard o

o ‘mm current {inancial Liability

wilracts)

As at March 31, 2022

Foreign exch

¢ forw b vontructs highly probable firecast salesh I

|

Mark to market liability on forwurd comtructs
mder curteni financisd Liahiline

(b) Credit risk

is the risk that comierpany witl not imeet its obligutions under 4 financial in

activaties (primanily trede receivables) and from its fuaiiclng uetiviiies, iicluding dope

d. Credil

impuinment of Trade receivable
fespect W trade receivables as low, a9 its Custorers arg 2roup of epute,

The musinm exposire te credit fisk for trede recanvable by geographic region arc us fullows:

TUITICTH OF SUSFTICE COni
ith banks and Gnuncisl

15 ataged tuough pediedic moniionng of the ereditworthiness of ol
ceated to the extent and as and when required, bused upon the expucted collectubility of seo

. Jeading 1@ 1 financial o The comyan
4, fincign exchange transactions and other frnuncial Histruirents,

ikt

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As ut March 31, 2022
Donsstic 2800/
Other regions 515.22
Total 799.30
Agge of trude receivables (aross)

Particulurs Asat March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Nes due 41230 46154
Less than & months ATROR 22464
6 months - 1 year 1533 8272
12§ 3043 1475
2.3 341 -
Mo than 3 years 13.99 1335
Total 75346 799.30

axpased to eredit sk from its operating

s in the nornal course of business. The allowsnce for
sbles, The compuny evaluntes the concentration of: fisk wi
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

Finunciul instruments and cash depaosits

Credit risk from balunces with banks and financial mstittions js managed by the company s freasury depurtiment 1 secordunce with the conpany”s policy. Tvestments of surplos funds are made anly
with appss ol coumerparties and within credit limirs s 10 each counterpurty. Counterpurty credit limiis are rovivwed by the company™s Bourd of Dir on an sl busis, and may be upduted
throughout the year subject o apgroval of the senior manugenent, The limis sre o muminuze the concentraiion of fsks wid therefore mitigate financiul loss through o AT party s poteniiad fiilure o
make puvmenis

(€) Liquidit;
Liguadity the risk that the company may not be able fo gieet its present and future cash and collateral obligutions without searting sngeeptable ksses. The eompany's objetive is o, 9 all times
Mainisn optimwm levels of liquidity 1 meet it¢ cosh and collateral requircments, ‘The company elosely moniiors its liguidity pesition and deplovs 2 robust cash Hunagerent sostem I mainiains
adequie sources of financing ihrough various shor tem and long term loans at an aptimized cost,

The table beloww sunanurizes the ity profile of the cos iy s financal lighiiitics asat March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Purticulars On demanid Less than | year 1 yeirto 5 vears More than 5 vears Tatal

As at March 31, 2023

Trade payvables - 19190 - - 191.90
Lease lighilities - 7640 22738 147.47 451.25
Onher financial lighilities - 156 80 - 0.50 157.30
[ Total - 425,10 22738 147.97 BHLAS
As at March 31, 2022

Trade payables - 2477 - - 2147
L cuse Hahifities - 7214 300108 105,58 377.80
Other Gnanciol Habilities - 173.20 - 0.50 173.70
Totul - 460.11 200.08 106.08 766.27

# includes commutted iierest psyiment on oo g,

Capital mangement
The comipany uins (o manages its capital efficiently 50 83 to sltguard s ability to contine 83 o going concern and o Optirnize retums to the share}
The cupiial structire of the compary is based on insgnil’s judgemn of the appropriste balance of key clemwis i onder o mieet its dtrategic and day-o-day noods. We consider the onsowit of
capiial in projuetion to msk and imanage the Capltal structure i light of chunges in econemic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to naintaim or sdjust the capiinl
structure, the company nuay adjust the anmtnt of dividends paid 1o shareliolders, retum capital to sharcholders or issuc new shures,

The company "s policy i= o nwintain a dable and strang cupital structore with-a ficus on total Uity 50 15 o wiaimiain fvesior, ereditors and fo sustin fisture developinient and growth of its Blsiness
Thie cennpany will take appropriate Seps in order to ainum, of if necessary adjust, its Capiial stmcture.

Ne chianges were made in the ohjectives, policies or provesses for manuging cupital during the vear ended March 31, 2023 and Murch 31,2022

TS,

Purticulars As at March 31, 2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Debi {refer note 1 below)
Less: Cash and cosh equivalents
Net debt 1805
Equity stare capuiol 10578
Other cquity. 310603
Total equity S21LE0
[Net dehit to equily ratio {refer note ii below) 2.27%] -
Nutes:

i. Dbt i definad s non-cusment borrowings and current borrod ings (ecluding financial puoraitee contructs and contingent consideraiion and lease linhiliries

it S net debl o cquily ratie as at March 3 1. 2022 s negative, it is not considered for caleulation.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the Yearended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

31 Leases

Company as a Lessee:

The company has operating lease for various premises which are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at its option. The lease terms of premises are
-between 3 to 9 years. The company has availed the exemption of low value of assets, Lease payments evaluated by the company are fixed payments in nature
with company not exercising any termination or renewal options to terminate or extend the original lease term. Useful life of right of use asset for computation
of amortization expense on right of use assets is assumed to be the term of the lease and method used is straight-line method.

The company has taken certain premises on lease wherein lease rent is of low value amounting to Rs. 0.88 million for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Year
ended March 31, 2022: Rs. 1.07 million). The company applies low value lease rent exemption for these leases,

i) The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged during the year

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | Asat March 31, 2(};|
Premises
Opening balance 298.47 363.09
Additions during the year 199.36 3.05
Termination during the year (55.92) (1.51)
Depreciation charged during the year (refer note 3) (86.27) (66.16)
Closing balance 355.64 298.47

ii)  The movement in lease liabilities during the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022
Opening balance 377.80 434.02
Additions 193.61 3.06
Termination during the year (62.83) (1.82)
Payment of lease liabilities (106.42) (98.20)
Interest expenses (refer note 17) 49.09 40.74
Closing balance 451.25 377.80

iif) Balances of lease liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022
Current lease liabilities 76.40 72.14
Non-current lease liabilities 374.85 305.66
Total 451.25 377.80

iv)  Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss during the year

Particulars For the year ended For the year endﬂ

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense on right of use asset (refer note 3) 86.27 66.16
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 17) 49.09 40,74
Expenses relating to low value leases (included in other expense) (refer note 19) 0.88 1.07
Gain on lease termination (refer note 14) (7.48) (0.34)
Total 128.76 107.63

V) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year 76.40 72.14
One to five years 227.38 200.08
More than five years 147.47 105.58
Total 451.25 377.80

vi) Amount recognized in cash flow Statement

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
"*l%%principal portion of lease liability 57.33 57.46
Cofiiterest portion of lease liability 49.09 40.74
Total NN\ 106.42 98.20
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Employee stock option plans

Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors is autharized to grant options exercisable into subscription of shares of the company. Each option shall be convertible into one equity
share and the aggregate number of options subscribed into shares shall not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital of the Company. The options granted under ESOP 2019 will be
exercisable at an excrcise price of Rs. 10,644 per share for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 12,822 per share for round 4 (Rs. 177.40 for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 213.70 for round 4 after
considering effect of split and bonus issue). If the options expire or become unexercisable without having been exercised in full, the unexercised options, which were subject

thereto, shall become available for future grant.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
granted. However, the above performance condition is o

The contractual term of each option granied is varying from
cash settlement for these share options, The company accaunt

The expense recognized

for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

85 months to 101 months. There are no cash selllement alternatives. The company does not
s for the Vesda Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP) as an equity-settled plan,

—

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

conditions upon which the share options were
nly considered in determining the number of insiruments that will ultimately vest.

have a past practice of

s 31,2023 31,2022
Expense arising from equity-seltled share-based Payment transactions 4.80 1822
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 4.80 18.22
There were no canceilations or modifications to the aw ards during the year ending March 31, 2023 and March 3 1,2023.
Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighled average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:
Year ended March 31, 2023=
Particulars WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Number of ESOP Number of ESOP
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 811,680 680,160
Granied during the year - -
Forfeited during the year 55,620 146,250
Exercised duning the year - -
Expired during the year - =
Outstanding at the end of the year 756,060 533,910
Exercisable at the ead of the year 559 040 266,100
*Number of ESOP and WAEP are considered after the honus and split impact {refer note §).
Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Number of ESOP Number of ESOP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,174,800 -
Granted during the year - 795,600
Forfeited during the year 47,520 115,440
Exercised during the year 315,600 -
Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 811,680 680,160
l&wrcisabfe at the end of the year 423,960 170,040
*Number of ESOP and WAEP are considered afer the bonus and split impact (refer note 8).
The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
VESP VESP
Weighted average fair values at the measurement date # 30.97 3803
Dividend yield (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) 2226 21.14
Risk~free interest rate (%) 5.83 6.32
Expected life of share options (vears) 5.75 6.50
Weighted average share price (Rs.) # 184.47 21132
Model used Black-Schales, Black-Scholes

# Weighted average fair values at the measurement date and Weighted average share price are considered after the bonus and split tmpact (refer note 8),

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over 2 period similar ta the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily
be the actual outcome,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

33 Ratio analysis and its elements

% change from

AsatMarch3l, | Mareh 2022 o
;

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at March 31, 2023

. o March 2023
Curient ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.73 3.44 21%
Current  borrowings + Non-
Debt- Equity Ratio current  borrowingst+  lease|Shareholder’s Equity 0.09 0.08 9%
payments
Earning for Debt Service = Net
Profit after taxes + Non-cash|Debt service = Interest & Lease
Debt Service Coverage ratio operating Payiments + Principal 4.94 3.50 41%)
expenses + Interest + other Repayments
adjustiments
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits afler faxes — Average Shareholder's Equity 0.05 0.06 -8%

Preference Dividend
Invenitory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 3.00 2.98 1%)
Net credit sales = Gross credit

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Average Trade Receivable 399 3.65 9%
sales - sales return
Net credit purchases = Gross
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio credit purchases - purchase Average Trade Payables 089 1.19 -25%,
retum
. Average  working  capital =
. 3 et sales = Total sales - sal
Net Capital Tumover Ratio EIL:“ s ek seles sy Current  assets - Current 1.55 1.71 -9%
liabilities
i Net sales = Tq sales - sales
Net Profit ratio Net Profit after tax r;:l sales = Total sales' - sales 9% 8% %
i

Eatiiings before: ‘interest and Capital Employed = Tangible
Return on Capital Employed B Rk & Net Worth + Total Debt + 7% 6% 28%,

.= Deferred Tax Liability

Return on Investment Interest (Finance Income) Investiment 2%, 1% 17%
Reason for change more than 25% in above ratios

Particulars Reasons for % change from March 31,2022 to March 31,2023
Current raiio Not Applicable#
Debt- Equity Ratio Not Applicable¥
Debt Service Coverage ratio There is an improvement in debt service coverage ratio due to increase in profits,
Return on Equity ratio Not Applicable#
Inventory Turnover ratio Not Applicable#
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Not Applicable#
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio There is an improvement in trade payable turnover ratio due to decrease in purchase,
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Not Applicable#
Net Profit ratio Not Applicable#
Return on Capital Employed There is an improvement in return on capital employed due to increase in profits,
Return on Investment There is increase in return on inyestment due to increase in interest rate of fixed deposits.

# Since change is less than 25%, reasons for such changes are not given as per the requirements.

© Ahmedaba:‘lg_}
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Government of India's Code for Social Security 2020 (the 'Code’) received assent from the President in September 2020, However, the date from when the Code will become applicable and rules have not
yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and account for the same once the effective date and rules are notified.

There are no material subsequent events which have any significant impact on financial statements of the Company.

Other Statutory information:

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(it) The Company does not have any transactions with Companies Struck off.
(111) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company does have not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or Joaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other Ppersons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ullimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accoun ts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

(viii) The Company has not been declared a Wilful Defaulters by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the RBL

(ix) There is no immovable property whose title deed is not held in the name of the Company.
(x) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(xi) The Company has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company files statement of current assets with the bank on periodical basis, There are no material
discrepancies between the statements filed by the Company and the baoks of accounts of the Company.

(xii) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement in terms of sections 230 o 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

With effect from August 5, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has amended the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating fo maintenance of electronic books of account and other relevant
the servers located within India. However, Company has not taken bac! <ups on weekend (i.e. Sunday), however, the backup of the same is covered on the following

weekday (i.e. Monday). Considering the requirement under applicable statute, management will take necessary steps and configure systems to ensure that back up for books of accounts will be maintained

on a daily basis.

As per our report of even date

ForSRB C & Co. LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Veeda Clinical Research Limited
ICAT FRN: 324982E/E300003 (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)

(CIN : U73 100GJ2004PLC044023)

O e NAE

per Sukrut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Partner Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
Membership No. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 ICSI Membership No.12551

Date: September 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India

Date: September 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India  Place: Toronto, Canada Place: Ahmedabad, Tndia




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

{All amounis in Tndian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
L. Assets
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and cquipment 3.1 1,616 83 1,21825
(b) Capital work-in-progress 32 186.93 190.18
(e) Goodwill 41 (b) 1,080 58 1,080.58
(d) Right of use assets 33 520,82 408.49
(¢) Other intangible assets 34 220,37 22387
(f) Intangible asseis under development 32 3975 1372
(g) Investment in associate and joink veniure 4.1 - -
(h) Financial assets
(i) Loans 8 - 1511
(1) Other financial assets 9 42385 21594
(i) Income tax assets (net) 11 23628 23046
(j) Other non-current assets 10 8031 54.50
Total non-current assets 4.405.74 3.651.10
Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 71.08 8451
{b) Financial asscts
(i) Investments 42 54687 83398
(ii) Trade reccivables 5 1,051.24 98143
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 36871 593589
(iv) Bank balance other than {jii) above 7 24400 2056
(v) Other financial assets 9 45303 401.71
(c) Other current asscls 10 206,99 147.24
Total current assets 2,941.92 3,124.32
Total assets 7,347.66 6,775.42
IL. Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Shar capital 13 10378 10578
(b) Other equity 14 446382 4,195.82
Equity altributable to equity holders of the parent 4,571.60 4,301.60
Non-controlling interest 37.73 71.22
Total equity 4.629.33 4,372.82
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 239,12 35250
(ii) Lease linbilities 35 544.57 42443
Other financial liabilities 17 0.50 056
(b) Provisions 19 66 83 3330
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 37.37 57.30
Total non-current liabilities 908.39 889.09
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabifitics
{1} Borrowings 15 22662 11832
{ii) Lease liabilities 35 101.06 9143
{iii) Trade payables
{a) w:a! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 3533 4268
enierprises T
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 37 205,10
enterprises and small enierprises o -
(iv) Other linancial liabifitics 17 23366 24213
(b) Other current liabilities 18 997.19 781.74
(¢) Provisions 19 2213 2042
{d) Income tax liabilities (net) 20 7.58 249
Total current liabilities 1,809.94 1,513.51
Total liabilities 2,718.33 2,402.60
Total equity and liabilities 7.347.66 677542
Summary of significant accounting policics 2.1
Summary of signifi accounting judge . estimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICA] FRN: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 101974

Date: September 03, 2023
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Chairman
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Ajay Tandon
Managing Director
DIN: 02210072

Place: Toronto, Canada

NP N/

Nirmal Bhatia

Company Secretary & CFO
ICST Membership No.12351

Place: Ahmedabad. India



Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as " Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)

Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

: Year ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(I) Revenue from operations 22 409578 2,880.26
(II)  Other income 23 10632 50.83
(III) Total income (I+ II) 4,202.10 2,931.09
(IY) Expenses
Cost of material consumed 24 32087 28260
Employee benefits expense 25 1,091.82 872.73
Finance costs 26 138.32 96.29
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 380.25 254.06
Clinical and analytical research expenses 27 939.25 608.28
Other expenses 28 700.62 502.39
Total expenses (IV) 3,580.63 2,616.35
W) Profit 'bcforf share of profit / (loss) of an associate and a joint venture, 621.47 31474
exceptional items and tax (II-IV)
i A '
™D Share of profit / (loss) from joint venture and associate (net of tax) (refer note 40 (2667 3.44
and 41 (a))
{VII) Exceptional items (VII) 41 (b) - 341.17
(VIID) Profit before tax (V+ VI + VII) 594.80 659.35
(IX) Tax expense 21
(1) Current tax 192.79 9424
(2) Deferred tax charge / (credit) (19.29) 60.53
(3) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (2.93)
Total tax expense (IX) 170.57 154.77
(X)  Profit for the year (VIII-IX) 424.23 504.58
(XI) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (2.48) 0.89
Income tax effect 0.62 (0.07)
Total other comprehensive income / (foss) for the year (net of tax) before share
i 3 (1.86) 0.82
of profit from joint venture and associate
Share of other comprehensive income from joint venture and associate (net of tax) - (0.17)
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (1.86) 0.65
(XII) Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (X+ XI) 422.37 505.23
(XIII) Profit for the year
Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent 401.15 480.71
- Non-controlling interests 23 08 23.87
424.23 504.58
(X1V) Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent (2.08) 023
- Non-controlling interests 0.22 0.42
(1.86) 0.65
(XV) Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent 399,07 480,94
- Non-controlling interests 23.30 24.29
422.37 505.23
Earnings per equity share (EPS) 29
Computed on the basis of profit for the year (In Rs,)
- Basic 7.58 1026
- Diluted 157 10.24
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For SRB C & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN: 324982E/E300003
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as ""Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Statement of Caonsolidated cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupecs million, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 594.80 659.35
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Gain on fair valuation on investment - (341.17)
Share of {profit) / loss from an associate and a joint venture 26 67 (3.44)
Depreciation and amortization expense 380.24 254.06
Employee stock option cost 4.80 18.22
Finance cost 138.72 9629
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward coniract 9.36 -
Bad debts written off (nct of provision) - 0.92
Gain on fair value of call aption {141) (3.90)
PO expenses 10.03 14.87
Net interest income (18.26) (20.19)
Net gain on sale and restatement of mutual find (40.13) (12.85)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net of gain) 0.48 0.14
Laabilities no longer required writien back (10.49) (8.71)
Provision for doubtful debts 22.92 19.51
Provision for doubtful advances - 040
Provision for slow moving and non-moving inveniary 26.48 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 14.45 354
Gain on lease termination (7.48) {0.34)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 4.72 {1.23)
Contract asset written off 13.99 -
Other receivables written off 0.89 0.23
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,170.78 675.70
Working capital adjustments:
fIncrease) in trade receivables (87.74) (418.21)
(Increase) in inventorics (13.05) {18.64)
Decrease in financial asscts 15.13 62.92
(Increase) in other assers (99.11) {32.R6)
(Decreass)/Increase in trade payables (18.53) 78.69
Increase in other financial liabilitics 39.23 11.41
Increase in other current liabilitics 21845 172.31
Increase in provisions 3.75 19.43
Cash generated from operations 1,24891 530,75
Direet taxes paid {nct of refund) (192.21) (171.62)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities () 1,056.70 359.13

B Cash flows from investing activities
Pr.nrcf\.a_sc of property, plant and cquipment, intangible assets including intangible asscts under development and Capital (759.01) 287.13)
work-in-progress
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.70 596
Interest received 16.17 17.06
Investment in fixed deposits (327.71) (121.74)
Proceeds from redomption of fixed deposits 4,45 19.50
Investment in mutual funds (38.00) (799.98)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 41524 22738
Loan given to joint venture (12 00) (23.00)
Loan given repaid by joint venture - 1.00
Loan repaid by dircctors of subsidiany company - 44.21
Sale of stake in subsidiary - 0.10
Earmarked balance of share application money pending allotment and utilization (213.00) -
Purchase of stake of subsidiary from Non controlling intercst (350.00) -
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries - (620.02)
Net cash flows (used in) investing aclivities (B) {1,263.16) (1,536.66)

C  Net cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowing - 54.49
Repayment of fong-term borrowing (126 81) (32.32)
Repayment of short-term borrowing (net) - (278.22)
Proceeds from short-torm borrowing (nct) 105.25 -
Finance cost paid (103.68) (97.30)
Payment of IPO expense (net) (871) 3.75)
Proceeds from share application money pending allotment =
Share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares (38 86)
Dividend paid 10 CCCPS Class 'A" - (120.80)
Payment of principal portion of lease liability (77.72) (68.26)
Proceeds from issuc of shares (including sccurities premium and excrcising of ESOPs) - 2,300 84
Net Cash flow generated from / {used in) financing activities (C) (11.69) 1,625.62
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and eash equivalents (A + B+ C) (218.15) 448.09
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (9.03) (2.49)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 593 89 14041
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary frefor note 41 (b)) - 0 a8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 368.71 £9% 89
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.81 109
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 367.90 594.80
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) 368.71 505.89




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Statement of Consolidated cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounis in Tndian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to statement of cash flows:
1. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows notified under Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended)

2. Changes in liabilities arising [fom financing activities:

. Asat Asat
Particulars April 01,2022 Cash Flows (Net) Others# March 31, 2023
Financing Activities
Short-term Borrowings 118.52 105.25 2.84 226.62
Long-term Borrowings 35350 (126.81) 32.44 259.12
Lease liabilities 515.86 (71.72) 207.50 645.64
Total 937.88 (99.28) 242.78 1,131.38

Additions on account

’ Asat of acquisition of Asat
Particulars April 01,2021 | subsidiary (refernote | C1 Flows @Nel) Others# March 31, 2022
41 (b))

Financing Activities
Short-term Borrowings 243,22 16460 (278.22) (11.08) 118.52
Long-term Borrowings - 340.30 217 11.03 35350
Lease liabilities 434.02 148.87 (68.26) 1.23 S515.86

Total 677.24 653.76 (344.31) Li8 987.88

#Notes :
1) Others in lease liability includes the effect of interest accrual on lease liability, addition to lease liability and reduction of lease liability due to termination on account of Ind AS 116.
2) Others in long-term borrowing represents impact of amortisation of upfront fees paid on borrowing, remeasurement of long term borrowing and reclassification of borrowings.

3. Non-cash financing and investing activities

Year ended Year ended
Particulas
articulars March 31,2023 |  March 31, 2022
Acquisition of right of use assets 279.50 -
Issue of equity share capital for investment in equity shares of subsidiary (refer note 4.1) = 730.36
As per our report of even dale
ForSRB C & Co. LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Veeda Clinical Research Limited
ICAT FRN: 324982E/E300003 (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Cﬂ'}; (CIN : U73100GI2004PLCO44023)
Lo ' I
” ) S M‘,& ;\l)r f

per Sukrut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandoen Nirmal Bhatia
Partner Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
Membership No. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 1CSI Membership No.12551

Date: September 05. 2023
Place: Ahmedabad. India

Dalte: September 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad. India Place: Toranto, Canada Place: Ahmedabad, India




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

of C lidated changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Tndian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these consolidated financial staiements.

As per our report of even dale
ForSRB C & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis

TCAI FRN: 324982E/E300003

per Sulkaut Mehta
Partner
Membership No. 101974

Date: Sepiember 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India

Chairman
DIN: 00060743

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

(formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
{CIN : U73100GJ2004PLC044023)

DO fpha

Nitin Deshmukh

Ajay Tandon

Managing Director
DIN: 02210072

Date: September 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India

Place: Toronio, Canada

Particulars No. of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 6,01,196 6.01
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Issue of equity shares of Rs 10 face value during the year 76,420 0.76
Preference shares CCCPS Class A’ of Rs. 10 ¢ach converted into equity shares of Rs. 10 face value 93,946 0.94
Split of equity shares of Rs. 10 face value to Rs. 2 face value 30.86,248 -
Shares issued during the year - bonus issue 42435 910 84.87
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 2 face value during the year 62,84,666 1257
Shares issued under ESOP scheme of Rs 2 face value during the year 3.15.600 0.63
As at March 31, 2022 5,28,93,986 105.78
Change in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 5,28,93,986 105.78
Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Participatory Preference Share Class 'A' (CCCPS Class 'A")
Issued, Subseribed and fully paid preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars No. of shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 3,52,29,780 352.30
Changes in CCCPS class 'A' due to prior period errors - -
Conversion of preference shares CCCPS class 'A’ into equity shares during the year (3,52.29.780) (352.30)
As at March 31, 2022 - 3
Change in CCCPS Class 'A’ due to prior period errors = =
As at March 31, 2023 - -
Other equity

Attributable to the equity holder of the parent
— Reserves and surplus
Particulars application Securits Capital Share options Retai Nnn—[:]?.;:::-:ﬂlmg Total equity
money pending etul:lh&l redemption outstanding | Capital reserve Em.m.d
allotment prenvm reserve reserve sabnings

Balance as at April 01, 2021 - 452.79 38,84 5.94 - 838.48 - 1,336.05
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - - - - - - 116.07 116.07
Profit for the year (net of taxes) - - - - - 480.71 23.87 504.58
Other comprehensive (loss) for the yvear (net of laxes) - - - - - 0.23 0.42 0.65
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 480.94 140.36 621.30
Utilised for payment of dividend to CCCPS Class 'A' - - - {120.80) - (120.80)
On issue of equity shares during the year - 3,017.24 - - - - - 3,017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class 'A' into 2quily shares during the year - 351.36 - - - - - 351.36
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03) (38.34) - - - - (84.87)
Utilized towards professional fees expense for fresh issue of equity shares - {71.88) - - - - - (71.88)
Change_ on account of additional stake purchased [rom non-controlling interest - ] ; . (730.49) B (69.14) (799.63)
of subsidiary
Options granied 1o joint venture during the year (refer note 31 and note 39) - - - 0.05 - - - 0.05
Share based payments (refer note 39) - - - 18.22 - - - 18.22
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 3,703.48 - 24,21 (730.49) 1,198.62 71.22 4,267.04
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Profit for the year (net ol taxes) - - - - - 401.15 2308 424,23
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (net of taxes) - - - - - (2.08) 0.22 (1.86)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 399.08 23.29 422,37
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) - - = 002 - - - 0.02
Share based payments (refer note 32) - - - 4.80 - - - 4.80
Adjustment on forfeilure of ESOP = - - (0.64) - 0.64 - -
Change. on a.ccnum of additional stake purchased from non-controlling interest . B B } (346.90) . (36.79) (383.68)
of subsidiary
Share application money received 213.00 - - - - - - 213.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 213.00 3,703.48 - 2839 (1,077.39) 1,598.34 57.73 4,523.55
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
Summary of significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions 2.2

NIt

Nirmal Bhatia
Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No. 12551

Place: Ahmedabad, India



Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited (associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down
subsidiary companies i.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July 20, 2021) and its joint venture i.e., Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery,
Development and Regulatory Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical,
Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as
“Group”.

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited)
(“the Company” or *Holding Company”) is domiciled in India with its registered office at Shivalik
Plaza — A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India and is carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals
Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the early clinical
development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilities in India. The Company provides a full range of
services in phase I and II clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and
cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently
pursuant to approval from Registrar of Companies (*ROC”), the name of the Company has changed
from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Act (Ind AS
compliant Schedule I11, as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are
rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has
been indicated as “*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupees in million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the
company, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted
by the Company, its joint venture and its associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year/period are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

vvyVvYyy

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

» Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subsidiary.

» Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of subsidiary.

» Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

—==—==Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
oldgrs of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
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statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

>

Y Y Y VY VY VY

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar
to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of
the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate
or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the
Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has

wincurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
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venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on
the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period
as of the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unless it is impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value,
and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the statement
of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Particulars of cdnsolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint
Venture have been considered for consolidation:

Percentage of voting

Nature of relation with the Power as on

Name of the Company ——
R March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022
E%neﬁzéty Ridhities Rivais Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited | 22S50c1ate (Upto July 15, 2021) 87.00% 75.10%
and Subsidiary thereafter

Amthera Life Sciences Private Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. 5

Limited July 16, 2021) D00, L0
Activin Chemicals & Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f.

Pharmaceuticals Private Limited # | July 16, 2021) ) )
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# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
(C) Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

.pb)t\.):—-

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

B

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also
its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot
rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the
Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
ﬂ.f:::*“*:'.zﬁ?ﬂstatelnent of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).
(‘;."" air value measurement
)
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The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.
For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

e

/Té; ' éii‘?\ This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given

CQ‘( in the relevant notes.
2\
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(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the
customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer.
Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized on these
identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
satisfied. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment
for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract
performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output method is appropriate
measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed
or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress
on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in the
contract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any
types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Trade receivables
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A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists.

f. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the effect of uncertainty
for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method,
depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

if) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
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i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent
that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which
the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The group reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company and Bioneeds India Private Limited (subsidiary) are not eligible for MAT
credit entitlement since respective companies had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA
of Income Tax Act, 1961 during the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

AGEokS Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule II of
the companies Act 2013

Plant & machinery 5to 15

Office equipment S

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life
whichever is lower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding
company and as per the straight-line method by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern
of consumption of those future economic benefits in separate financial statements of the respective
companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

Tntangible Useful lives | Amortisation method used Inter.n ally genorated oy
assets acquired

Computer ) . . .

- 3 years Straight line method Acquired

Customer . . .

Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

J- Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
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incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:
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Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage
pattern.

l. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods,
a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts,
the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries
in which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
== revaluation increase.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related
service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of;

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in
the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and -
ii) Net interest expense or income.

.. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
%, short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the
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additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

0. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 39.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

if) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other receivables and loans.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of
subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with profit/loss
being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered
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into call options in respect of its investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair
value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financial assets/other financial liabilities”.
Profits and losses arising from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

4-"% C & E‘@N ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
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default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
b
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
\ Average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing
outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCL
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

1) Capital management note 38
ii) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 37
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a
lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group
. applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
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option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to
the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Group uses a DCF model for employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for
estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-oftuse asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates).
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Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs
(MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the
following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information” and providing guidance
relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the
definition of accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is
assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will
adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.
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(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unl

ess otherwise stated)

Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-  Intangible assets

Particulars Total
progress under development

At April 01, 2021 4.59 6.74 11.33
Addi.tifms on account of acquisition of 16273 } 162.73
subsidiary (refer note 41 (b))

Other additions 22433 6.98 231.31
Capitalization 201.47 - 201.47
At March 31, 2022 190.18 13.72 203.90
Additions 540.02 29.76 569.78
Capitalization 543.25 2.19 545.44
Deletion - 1.54 1.54
At March 31, 2023 186.95 39.75 226.70

CWIP ageing Schedule as at March 31,

2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years wylore than
years
Project in progress 170.32 10.48 6.82 2.56 190.18
Project completion schedule for overdue projects as at March 31, 2022 (refer note ii below)
To be completed in
CWIP More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years orethan
years
Project in progress 77.47 - - -
CWIP ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years BTG
years
Project in progress 151.55 35.40 - - 186.95

Note:

(i) Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 of Rs. 186.95 million (March 31, 2022

: Rs. 190.18 million) comprises expenditure for the property,

plant and equipment which are under development and not yet put for use. There are no projects overdue in terms of timelines and budget as at March

31,2023.

(i1} The project in Bioneeds India Private

Limited (Subsidiary Company) includes :

a) construction of Building at Devarahosahalli location which was

started in January, 2020 and was planned to be completed by June, 2021, The building is being self-constructed by the Company. There was delay in
completion of this project on account of delay in supplies of material and labour on account of COVID-19 from March 2020 and further due to changes

in the designs as per internal requirements. The said project is completed and capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2023.

Intangible assets under development (IAUD) ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2022

Amount in IAUD

for a period of

~Notes:

of the Cm%\pan

) lnzanglble assets under development as at March 31,
“devel opmenl of software not yet put to use.

(i) The: roject of development of cronos software was started in March 2017 and was planned to be completed by May 2018, The said software is a
customuegi software which is being developed by the third party vendor. There has been delay in this project on account of customization requirement
resignation of employee who was handling the said project from the Holding Company’s side. The delay was also on account of
: March 2020 onwards. The project is now on track and has been capitalized in June 2023,

Intangible assets under development More than 3 Total
o P Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years eresian
years
Project in progress 6.98 1.66 1.82 3.26 13.72
Intangible assets under development (IAUD) ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023
Amount in IAUD for a period of
Intangible assets under development 7 Total
= n Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare sl
years
Project in progress 27.57 5.45 1.66 5.08 39.75
Project completion schedule for overdue projects as at March 31, 2023
To be completed in
Intangible assets under development
& e Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years e
years
Project in progress (refer note below) 15.27 - - -

2023 is Rs. 39.75 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 13.72 million) comprise expenditure for the
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Right of use assets (refer note 35)

Particulars Land Office Premises Total
At April 01, 2021 - 478.07 478.07
Additions on account of acquisition of
subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) A5 4168 12345
Other additions - 3.05 3.05
Deletion / termination - 2.06 2.06
At March 31, 2022 81.75 520.74 602.49
Additions 80.14 199.36 279.50
Deletion / termination - 72.76 72,76
At March 31, 2023 161.89 647.33 809,23
Accumulated Depreciation
At April 01, 2021 - 114.98 114.98
Charge for the year 5.73 73.84 79.57
On deletion / termination - 0.55 0.55
At March 31, 2022 5.73 188.27 194.00
Charge for the year 15.24 96.01 111.25
On deletion / termination - 16.84 16.84
At March 31, 2023 20.96 267.43 288.41
Net block
At March 31, 2022 76.02 332.47 408.49
At March 31, 2023 140.93 379.90 520.82
Other intangible assets
Particulars Computer Cus-tome.r Total
software relationship
At April 01, 2021 12.06 - 12.06
Additions on account of acquisition of -
subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) ! 449 B #52
Other additions 9.45 - 9.45
At March 31, 2022 26.00 231.50 257.50
Additions 37.27 - 37.27
Disposals 3.34 - 3.34
At March 31, 2023 59.93 231.50 291.43
Accumulated Amortization
At April 01, 2021 7.60 - 7.60
Charge for the year 5.50 2033 26.03
At March 31, 2022 13.10 20.53 33.63
Charge for the year 11.65 28.94 40,59
On disposals 3.16 - 3.16
At March 31, 2023 21.59 49.47 71.06
Net block
At March 31, 2022 12.90 210.97 223.87
At March 31, 2023 38.34 182.03 220,37

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying values as at April 01, 2019 i.e., date of transition to Ind AS under previous GAAP for all the items
of other intangible assets as its deemed cost.
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Investment in associate and joint venture

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Non-current

Invesiments in equily shares of joint venture (carried at cost) (Unquoted)

350,000 (March 31, 2022: 350,000) fully paid equity shares of Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited of Rs. 10 cach
Total non-curreat investments

Total non-current investment

Aggregate amount of quoled investments and market value thereof
Ageregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment

Summary of movement of investment in associate:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Opening carrying value as at the beginning of the year
Add: Investment in associate during the year

Add/Less: share of profit/ (loss) of associaie

less: Share of ather comprehensive {loss) (net of lax)
Closing carrying value as at July 15, 2021*

366.39
11.28
(0.18)

377.49

*The Holding Company has entered into imvestment agreement with Bioneeds and its sharcholders on July 07, 2021 for e fecting the same. On July 16, 2021. the Holding Compaiy completed this acquisition and appointed majority of
its nomince directors on the board, thereby making Bionzeds its subsidiary, Accordingly. the sdditional acquisition of shares has been accounted under Ind AS 103 Busincss Combinalion. Refer note 41 (b) for further details.

Summary of movement of investment in joint venture:

Particulars Asat Aeat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening carrying value as at the beginning of the year - 059
Add: Investment in joint venture during the year = =
Add/Less: Share of Profiv/(loss) of joint venture - (0.59)
Addless; Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) - -
Closing carrying value as at the end of the year = z
Investments
: Asat As at
Farticulirs March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current
Investments in units of mutual funds {carried at fair value through profit and loss) (Quoted)
332,052.84 (March 31, 2022: 232,052 84) Units of ICICI Prudential Savings Fund (Regular Growth) 15191 143.90
256,229.87 (March 31, 2022: 256,229.87) Units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Regular Growth) 14299 137.32
86,990.63 (March 31, 2022: 86,990.63) Units of Aditva Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Direct Growth) 5319 5031
Nil (March 31, 2022: 87,316 55) Units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund (Direct Growth) - 10039
Nil (March 31, 2022: 21,241.74) Units of Axis Liquid Fund (Direet Growth) - 5022
1,009,713,94 (March 31, 2022: 1,009,713 94) Units of HDFC Low Duration Fund {Dircct Growth) 53.03 3027
17.319.34 (March 31. 2022: 17,319.34) Units of Kotak Low Duration Fund {Direet Growth) 5301 30.25
Nil (March 31. 2022: 88,556.43) Units of Kotak Overnight Fund (Direct Growth) - 100,41
Nil (March 31, 2022: 9,642.39) Units of Nippon India Liquid Fund (Dircct Growth) - 5022
27.464.47 (March 31, 2022: 15,85%.79) Units of Nippon India Low Duration Fund (Direct Growth) 91.74 5026
Nil (March 31, 2022: 28,793 72) Units of UTI Liquid Cash Plan (Direct Growth) - 10043
Total current investments 546.87 883.98
Total current investments 546.87 88398
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereal 34687 88398
Aggregate amount of unquoied invesiments & i
Ageregate amount of impairment - -
Trade Receivables
= As at Asat
Porticatlers Murch 31,2023 March 31,2022
Trade receivables
Seeured. considered good ~ .
Unsecured, considered good 1,051.24 981.43
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 2550 3287
Trade receivables - credit impaired 5050 2021
Impairment allowance {(allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good
Trade reccivables which have significant increase in eredit risk (25.50) (32.87)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (50 50) (2021)
Total trade receivables 1,051.24 981.43

Notes:
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 7-90 days.
For information about credit risk and market risk related to trade reccivable, please refer note 37,

No trade or other receivable are due from dircetors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companics respectively in which any

director is a partner. a direcior or a member.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Consolidated Financial 5t
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Trade Receivables

for the year ended March 31, 2023

The following table summarizes the change in impairment allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:

Particul As at Asat
A March 31,2023 March 31,2022
At the beginning of the year 5308 15.70
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 2493
Provision made during the year 2292 1951
Utilized / reversed during the year - {7.06)
At the end of the year 76,00 5308
Trade Receivables apeing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from the due date of payment
Total
Particulars Not due Less than 6 months |6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 60815 401.64 35.66 5.79 - - 1.051.24
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit - - 11.61 13.04 0835 - 2550
() Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 7.87 4.13 19.92 3.65 8.42 43.99
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considersd good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit - - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - 0.61 5.90 6.51
Total 608.15 409.51 51.40 38.75 5.11 14.32 1,127.24
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment
Particulars Total
Not due Less than 6 months |6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 37349 31825 86.60 3.09 - - 981.43
gis'iUndispu(cd Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit . 15.01 735 9.59 . 002 1237
(1ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired - - 0.17 4.50 1.88 809 14.64
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - B i - - -
(v) Disputed Trads Receivables — which have significant increase in credit
(vi) Dispuicd Trade Reccivables — credit impaired - - - 0.13 - 5.44 5.57
Total 573.49 334.16 94.12 17.31 1.88 13.55 1,034.51
Cash and cash equivalents
: Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Balance with Banks
- On current accounts 307.90 594 80
Cash on hand 0.81 1.09
Total cash and cash equivalents 368.71 595.89
Other Bank balances
s Asat Asat
Faiichlars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Deposits with Original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months (refer note below) 31.00 29 56
Share application money account 213.00 -
Total other bank balances 244.00 29.56

Note:

Deposits with bank as at March 31, 2023 amounting 1o Rs, 31.00 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 29.56 million) are given as collateral security against cash credit limits. These deposits are made for a varying period for 3 months to 12
months and cams interest ranging between 5.43% to 6.80% (March 31, 2022: 4 00% to 5.15%).

Loans
. As at Asat
Particulars Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Joint venture in which the company is a venturer (refer note 2 below) - 15.11
Total non-current loans - 15.11

Current

Note:

1) 'Since the above loan given to associate and joint venture is unsecured and considered good, the bifurcation of loan in other categories as required by schedule 111 of companics Act. 2013 viz: a) Secured b) Loans which have

significant increass in credit risk and ¢) eredit impaired is not applicable.

2) Loan given to joint venture amounting 1o Rs. 34,00 million (March 31, 2022: Rs Nif) has been written off during the year considering the unfavourable financial condition of joint venture (refer note 40).

Loans

Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Included in loans and advance arc certamn intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 1864} of the Companies Act 2013

loan may be repaid any time by the|
borrower.

. Secured / Asat As at
D
Hameof loane Ritsofifitered s Unsecured | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
Loan is repayable within 2 years from
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited® £.00% fher-dute. of dipetimatt, However,, the Unsccured - 15.11

*Netted share of loss amounting (o Rs. 26.67 Million (March 31. 2022: Rs. 7.23 million) and foan wrillen off amounting to Rs. 34 00 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil},

Refer note 31 for terms and conditions of Joan to associate and loan to Joint venture in which the Holding company is a venturer,
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9 Other financial assets

As at Asat

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Unsecured, Considered good

Neon-Current

Security Deposits 5973 4771
3.24

Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months (refer note i below) 323 62.70
Export incentive reecivable - 3238
Fair value of call option (refer note 41 (b)) 40 88 73.15
Total other non-current financial assets 423.35 21594
Unsecured, Considered good
Current
Coniract assst

- Due from customer (accrued revenue) (refer noie 22.2) 240.76 188.06
Security deposils 1.80 0.11
Interest accrued on security deposits 038 032
Export incentive receivable 4936 11603
Bank deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months (refer note ii below) 123.18 6191
Reimbursement receivable (refer note 31) - 0.12
Reccivable from selling sharcholders (refer note 31) 37.55 35.16
Total other current financial assets 453.03 401.71
Total other financial assets 876.88 617.65
Reconciliation of contract Asset:
Balance at the beginning of the year 188 06 7931
Additions an account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 146 88
Less: Invoicing during the year from balance at the beginning of the year (148 33) (212.88)
Less: Writien ofT during the year from balance at the beginning of the year (13.99) -
Add: Contract Assets created during the year 21502 174.55
Balance at the end of the year 240.76 188.06

Notes:

i) Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months as at March 31, 2022 arz Rs. 323.24 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 62.70 million). These deposits are made for a period of more than 12 months and sam interest
ranging between 4.35% to 7.25% (March 31, 2022: 4 55% to 5.40%). Deposits amounting ta Rs. §1.49 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022; Rs, 2.81 million) are given as sceurity against over drafl facilitics and bank
guaraniee.

i) Bank deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months and with remaining maturity for less than 12 months as at March 31, 2023 are Rs. 123.1% million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 61,91 million). These deposits are made for a
period of more than 12 months and eam inierest ranging between 5.25% to 7.25% (March 31, 2022: 5.10% to 9.00%). Deposits amounting to Rs. 19.16 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022; Rs. 3.65 million) are given as
collateral security against cash credit limits and bank guaraniee,

10 Other assets

+ Asat Asat

Fartieplais March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Non-current
Unsecured, Considered good
Balance with government avthorities (refer note below) 7.85
Capital advances 44.61
Prepaid expenses 204
Total other non-current assets 54.50
Current
Unsecured, Considered good
Prepaid expenses 34.76 3586
Advance to credilors 15.82 693
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - (0 40)
Emplovee advances 4.91 515
Balance with govemment autheritics (refer note below) 151.50 99.70
Total other current asscts 206.99 147.24
Total other assets 287.30 201.74
Note:

Balance with government authoritics includes GST input tax credit receivable {net of Tiability).

11 Income tax assets (net)

. Asat Asat
Rasticalar March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current
Advance pavment of Income tax (net of provision) 236728 23046
Total Income tax assets {net) 236.28 23046

12 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Consumables 9754 2451
Less : Provision for non moving & slow moving inventory (26.46) .

Total inventories 71.08 84.51
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Equity share capital

Equity shares

Favtiulacy No. of Shares Amount
Authorised equity shares of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each till June 28, 2021)
As at April 01, 2021 700,000 7.00
Change during the year 100,000 1.00
Change due to preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 each converied into equity shares of Rs. 10 each 35,640,680 356.41
Change due to equity shares of Rs. 10 each splitted into equity shares of Rs. 2 each 145,762,720 -
As at March 31,2022 182,203,400 364.41
Change during the year = -
As at March 31, 2023 182,203,400 364.41

4 Equity shares

T No. of Shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares of Rs, 2 each (Rs. 10 each till June 28, 2021)
As at April 01,2021 601,196 6.01
Changes due to prior period errors - -
Issue of equity shares of Rs 10 face value during the year 76,420 0.76
Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 each converied into equity shares of Rs. 10 face value 93,646 0.94
Split of equity shares of Rs. 10 face value to Rs. 2 face value 3,086,248 -
Shares issued during the year - bonus issue 42,435,910 §4.87
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 2 face value during the year 6,284 666 12.57
Shares issued under ESOP scheme of Rs 2 face value during the year 315,600 0.63
As at March 31, 2022 52,893,986 105,78
Changes due to prior period errors " .
Change during the year = »
As at March 31,2023 52,893,986 105,78

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

In respect of ardinary shares, voting rights shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid upon such ordinary share bears to the total paid up ordinary capital of the holding company. The dividend
proposed by the board of directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the
shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the holding company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings.

The board of directors in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 each into 5 equity shares of Rs. 2 each which was approved by the members in their meeting held

on June 29, 2021,

The board of directors in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved issue of 11 bonus shares fully paid for each equity share of Rs. 2 each which was approved by the members in their meeting held on

June 29, 2021

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity Share Capital

; As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars .
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 2 each (refer above note)
Basil Private Limited 22,251,712 42.07% 22,251,712 42.07%
Bondway Investment Inc. 13,130,580 24.82Y% 13,130,580 24.82%
Sabre Partners AIF Trust 2,760,840 5.22% 2,760,840 522%
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Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Participatory Preference Share class 'A' (CCCPS class 'A'))

Particulars CECES ClassiA:
No. of Shares Amount
Authorised shares of Rs. 10 each:
As at April 01, 2021 35,640,680 356.41
Change due to conversion of preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 each into equity shares of Rs. 10 each (25,640,680) (356.41)
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Change during the year 2 s
As at March 31,2023 = =
" CCCPS Class 'A'
Particulars
No. of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares of Rs, 10 each:
As at April 01, 2021 35,229,780 352.30
Changes in CCCPS class 'A' due 1o prior period errors - =
Conversion of preference shares CCCPS class 'A' into equity shares of Rs. 10 face value during the year (35,229,780) (352.30)
As at March 31, 2022 2 =
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 - -

Terms of conversion / redemption of CCCPS Class 'A’

i. The CCCPS Class 'A' shall be entitied to 0.0001% participatory and cumulative dividend. During the year, the board of directors at their meeting held on May 25, 2021 have modified the percentage of
dividend from 0.0001% to 14.11%, which was approved, and dividend has been paid for the period from October 27, 2018 till March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 120.80 million.

ii. The outstanding CCCPS Class 'A' shares were converted into 93,946 equity shares based on approval of Board of Directors and Members of the company on June 29, 2021.

Shares held by Holding Company
Name of the shareholder As At barch 31,2025 As at March 31,2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Basil Private Limited #
Equity shares of Rs. 2 each {refer above note) 22251712 44.50 22,251,712 44.50

Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date:

For the year For the year For the year For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31,2021 March 31,2020 March 31,2019
2023 (Number) | 2022 (Number) (Number) (Number) (Number)
Issue of fully paid equity shares of Rs. 2 sach 25 bonus shares - 42,435,910 - - -
Issue of fully paid Preference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs, 10 each as bonus shares - - - - 35,220,780
Buyback of Preference shares CCCPS Class 'B' of Rs. 3340 each = = - i 11,630
Issue of equity share of Rs 2 each for investment in Bioneads India Private Limited - 2,839 864 - - -

Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2022

No. of shares at .
h: . 9 i
Promoter Nanme Class of sharé | the beginning of Change during |No. of shares at the end % of Total shares Ya change during
the year * of the year the year #
the year
Equity shares of
Basil Private Limited Rs, 2 each fully 406,194 21,845,518 22,251,712 42.07 (25.49)
paid
Total 406,194 21,845,518 22,151,712 42.07 {25.49)

* change during the year represents the change on account of bonus, share splitand transfer of shares.

# % change is on account of new shares issued to shareholders other than Promoter and transfer of shares by Promoter,

Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at " :
Promoter Name Class of share | the beginning of Changeduriug: | Noyof shares at fhe en] % of Total shares Hchayeaduring
the year of the year the year
the year
Equity shares of
Basil Private Limited Rs. 2 each fully 22,251,712 - 22,251,712 42.07 -
paid
Total 22,251,712 - 22,251,712 42.07 -

Employees Stock Option Scheme

1,289,970 equity shares (March 31, 2022: 1,491,840 equity shares) of the face value Rs.2 each are reserved under Employee Stock Option Plan of the company (refer note 31 and note 39).
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14 Other Equity
. Asat As at

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,703.48 452,79
Changes due to accounting palicy or prior period errors - -
On issue of equity shares during the year - 301724
On conversion of CCCPS class 'A’ into equity shares during the year - 35136
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03)
Utilized towards expenses on fresh issue of equity shares - (71.88)
Balance at the end of the year 3,703.48 3,703.48
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 3884
Changes due Lo accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (38.84)
Balance at the end of the year - -
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (730.49) -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errars - -
Change on account of additional stake purchased from non-controlling interest of subsidiary (346.90) (730.49)
Balance at the end of the year (1,077.39) (730.49)
Share options outstanding reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 24.21 5.94
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - =
Reversal on forfeiture of ESOP (0.64)
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 31 and note 39) 0.02 005
Compensation for options granted during the year (refer note 39) 4.80 18.22
Balance at the end of the year 28.39 24.21
Share application money pending allotment
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Share application money received 213.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 213.00 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,198.62 838 48
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 401.13 480.71
Other comprehensive profit/ (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (2.08) 0.23
Addilion on forfeiture of ESOP 0.64 -
Utilised for payment of dividend to CCCPS Class 'A' - (120.80)
Balance at the end of the year 1,598.33 1,198.62
Total other equity 4.465.82 4,195.82

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(1) In cases where the holding Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on those shares has been transferred to
“Securities Premium”. The holding Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of the securities premium and to buy-back of shares.

(2) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount transferred on account of buy back of CCCPS Class 'B',

(3) Capital reserve represents non-controlling interest reserve created on acquisition of additional stake during the year ended March 31, 2023 of 11.90% (year ended March 31, 2022 - 25%) from non-
controlling shareholder of Bioneeds India Private Limited.

(4) The share options outstanding reserve : The share options based payment reserve is used to recognize the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under employee stock option pian.
(5) Surplus in statement of profit and loss: Surplus in statement of profit and loss are the profits / (losses) that the Group has earned / incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or

other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Retained
earnings is a free reserve available to the Group and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date.
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Financial liabilities

15 Borrowings
Particulars g Al
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current borrowing
Secured
Term loans from bank
Indian Rupee loan from bank (refer note 1 below) 37.03 59.08
Foreign currency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 5 below) 343.46 412.94
380.49 472.02
Less: Current maturities of long tenm borrowings clubbed under "Current borrowings"
Indian Rupee loan from bank (refer note 1 below) (22.18) (22.05)
Foreign currency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 5 below) (99.19) (96.47)
Total non-current borrowings 259.12 353.50
Current Borrowings
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term loans from banks
Indian Rupee loan from banks {refer note 1 below) 22.18 22.05
Foreign currency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 5 below) 99.19 96.47
Loans repayable on demand
Cash credit from bank (refer note 6 below) 105.25 -
Total current borrowings 226.62 118.52
Total borrowings 485.74 472,02
Particulars At Ag it
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Aggregate secured loan 48574 472.02
Aggregate unsecured loan = -
Details of terms and securities for the above borrowing facilities are as follows:
The term Loan amounting to Rs. 67 million from canara bank is taken to build up current assets and meet operational liabilities. The term loan is secured by assets created out of the
credit facilities extended. The outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is of Rs. 37.22 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 39.56 million).The loan carries interest rate
1 |linked to one year RLLR (Repa Linked Lending Rate) plus spread of 0.60%. The effective interest rate is 9.85% (March 31, 2022: 7.50%). The loan is repayable in 36 monthly
installments commencing from December 2021,
The term Loan amounting to Rs. 270 million from Canara Bank was taken for purchase of undertaking expansion of Pre-clinical and Chemistry Services located at Devarahosalli and
Peenya by way of construction of building, purchase of equipments, setting up of Kilo labs etc. and was secured by hypothecation of proposed utilities, lab furnitures and scientific
instruments at Devarahosalli - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan carried interest rate linked MCLR plus spread of 1.15%. The effective interest rate
was 10.50% till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022
During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 267.67 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency term loan of USD 3,561,760
s from the Canara Bank. The said loan cairies interest rate linked to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The loan is secured against hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment,

fumniture and computer. The loan is also secured by personal guaraniee of Dr. 8.N Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya and collateral security of land & building,

Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 2,671,586 equivalent to Rs.219.65 million (March 31, 2022: USD 3,383,671 equivalent to Rs. 236.51 million). The
effective interest rate for the borrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan is 3,63% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%). The foreign currency term loan is repayable in 60 monthly
instalments commencing from January 2022,
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The term loan amounting to Rs. 56 million from Canara bank was taken for purchase of Scientific equipments & lab furniture. The term loan was secured by hypothecation off
proposed utilities, lab furniture and scientific instruments at Devarahosalli - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan carried interest rate linked to one year
MCLR plus spread of 1.15%. The effective interest rate was 8.50% till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 8.15 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency term loan of USD 108,463 from
Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The same is secured against hypothecation of land, building, plant and machinery. The loan is
also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. S.N Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya and collateral security of land & building.

Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022: USD 72,310 equivalent to Rs. 5.48 Million). The effective interest rate for the borrowing post
conversion to foreign currency term loan is 3.65% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%). The same is fully repaid by the subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2023,

The term loan amounting to Rs. 90 million from Canara bank was taken to finance the project for expansion of the subsidiary company's business in the Biopharmaceutical sector and
is secured by hypothecation of proposed utilities, lab furniture and scientific instruments at devarahosalli- sompura hobli, nelamangala and peenya- Bangalore unit, The loan carried
interest rate linked to one year MCLR plus spread of 1.15%. The effective interest rate was 8.50% till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 59.11 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency tenn loan of USD 786,581 from
Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The same is secured against hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment, furniture
& computer. The loan is also secured by personal guarantec of Dr. S.N Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya and collateral security of land & building.

The outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 550,657 equivalent to Rs. 45.27 million (March 31, 2022 : USD 739,385 equivalent to Rs. 56.05 million). The
effective interest rate for the borrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan is 3.65% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%). The foreign currency term loan is repayable in 50 monthly
instalments commencing from January 2022,

The term loan amounting to Rs. 110 million from Canara bank was taken to meet working capital requirements of the subsidiary company and is secured by stock and book debis,
hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment, furniture & computer, books, utilities, land & building. The loan was also secured by personal guarantee of Dr.S.N Vinaya Babu ,
Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya. The loan carried interest rate linked to one year MCLR plus spread of 1.00% and term Premia of 0.40%. The effective interest rate was 8.50%
till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 103 82 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency term loan of USD 1,381 491
from Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to to six months LIBOR + 350 bps, The same is secured against hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment,
furniture & computer. The loan is also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. 8.N Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya and collateral security of land & building.

Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 983,086 equivalent to Rs. 80.83 Million (March 31, 2022: USD 1,301,790 equivalent to Rs. 98.68 million). The
effective interest rate for the horrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan is 3.65% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%). The foreign currency term loan is repayable in 52 monthly
instalments commencing from January 2022,

Cash Credit from Canara Bank amounting to Rs.125 million is secured by Hypothecation of stocks & Book Debts, Plant & Machinery, Lab Equipments, Furniture & Fixture, Lab
Equipments and 2 Eicher Buses. The outstanding balance of the facility as at March 31, 2023 is Rs.105.25 million (March 31, 2022; Nil). The cash credit facility carries interest rate
linked to one year RLLR of 9.40% Plus spread of 1.60% (March 31, 2022: one year MCLR of 7.35% Plus spread of 0.90%). The effective interest rate is 11%. (March 31, 2022;
8.50%).

16

Trade payables
n Asat As at
Particul
artieutars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 35.33 42.68
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 186.37 205.10
Total 221.70 247.78

Terms and conditions of the above outstanding balances:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30-180 days.
For explanation on company's credit risk management process, refer note 37.
For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 31.
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Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31,2023

. Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction#
Particulars = Total
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(i) MSME . 3531 0.02 = = 3533
(i1) Others 80.54 10491 0.91 * - 186.37
(1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - b - - - -
Total 80.54 140.22 0.93 - - 221.70
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million,
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction#
R Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Tetal
(i) MSME - 42.58 0.10 - - 42.68
(11) Others 91.28 109.00 3.34 1.06 042 205.10
{in) Disputed dues - MSME - - . - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 91.28 151.58 3.44 1.06 0.42 247.78

# Considering the availability of data, the above ageing is considered from the date of recording the transaction instead of due date. Cansequently, there are no 'not due' creditors
4 > geing

balance disclosed.

Other financial liabilities

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Non-Current
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Security deposits 0.50 0.56
Total non-current other financial liabilities 0.50 0.56
Current
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.12 0.13
Creditors for capital goods (refer note below) 5435 112.90
Employee benefits payable 118.97 84.45
Payable towards IPO expense - 4.73
Payable towards share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares - 13.02
Other payables 0.72 -
Refund liability to customers 50.14 26.90
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit & loss
Forward contracts 9.36 -
Total current other financial liabilities 233.66 242.13
Total other financial liabilities 234.16 242.69
Other current liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Contract liabilities

- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) (refer note 22.2) 941.28 737.79

- Advance from customers 16.27 11.57
Statutory dues payable 3939 31.96
Others 025 042
Total other current liabilities 997.19 781,74
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Reconciliation of contract liability:

Particulars Asa Azat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 749.36 219.97
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 35559
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at the beginning of the year (637.88) (468.54)
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 846.07 642.34
Balance at the end of the year 957.55 749.36
Provisions
Particulars i As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 30) 52.74 49.52
Compensated absence 14.09 3.78
Total non-current provisions 66.83 53.30
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 30) 14.14 11.86
Compensated absence 7.60 13.94
Provision for indirect taxes 0.39 362
Total current provisions 22.13 29.42
Total provisions 88.96 82.72
Income tax liabilities (net)
Particulars e Agat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax liability (net) 7.58 2.49
Total income tax liabilities (net) 1.58 2.49




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

21 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

(A) Profit and loss section

Particulats Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current income tax charge:
Current income tax 192.79 94.24
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier years (2.93)
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (19.29) 60.53
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 170.57 154,77
(B) Other comprehensive income (OCI) section
Paiticiliics Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year
Net loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 0.62 (0.07)
Deferred fax charged to OCI 0.62 (0.07)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for year ended March 31, 2023 and
© March 31, 2022:

Year ended Year ended

Fardiealery March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Profit before tax 594 80 65935
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 149.71 165.94
Adjustments
Differential tax rate on fair valuation gain on Step acquisition of subsidiary - (7.81)
Non-deductible expenses 20.01 537
Impact on account of change in tax raie - (10.30)
Others 0.85 1.57
Tax expense as per consolidated statement of profit and loss 170.57 154.77
{D) Balance Sheet section
Particulars As at Aizal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax assets (net) 236.28 23046

Income tax liabilities (net) 7.58 249
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations
Particulars Year ended Year ended
artied March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 4,086.13 2,880.26
Other operating revenue
Export incentives revenue 9.65 -
Total revenue from operations 4,095.78 2,880.26
Revenue from contract with customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contract with customer’
(i) Geographical location of customer
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
India 1,111.06 1,020 04
us 865.63 465.27
Greece 404 .44 132.17
Others 1,704.98 1,262.78
Total 4,086.13 2,880.26
(ii) Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars Year ended Year ended
artiew March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Services transferred over time 2,961.53 2,23931
Services transferred at a point in time 1,124 .60 64095
Total 4,086.13 2,880.26

Contract balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables (refer note 5) 1,051.24 981.43
Contract Assets (refer note 9)

- Due from customer (accrued revenue) 240.76 188.06
Contract Liabilities (refer note 18)

- Advance from customer 16.27 1159
- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) 941.28 737.79

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the

number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional. These are non interest bearing generally on the
terms of 7-90 days. Group has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. In March 31, 2023: Rs. 22,92
Million (Mareh 31, 2022: Rs. 19.51 million) is recognized as provision (net of reversal) for significant increase in credit risk and credit

impairment of trade receivables.

Contract liabilities includes short-term advances received for providing clinical services and payment received from customer against
invoice raised for which clinical services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group satisfies

the performance obligation.




22.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price

22.4 Information about Group's performance obligation are summarized below:

22.5
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Bl Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 4,250.87 2,980.80
Adjustments
Rebate payable to customer (9.24) {3.12)
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation (155.50) (97.42)
Net revenue from contract with customers 4,086.13 ’ 2,880.26

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied, The Group considers indicators
such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, ete. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company
has determined that an output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the
performance completed or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the
satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in the contract.

Information about major customers:
For information about major customers, refer note 34.

Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on
-Bank deposits 1541 338
-Loans to associate (refer note 31) - 10.16
-Loans to joint venture (refer note 31) - 0.38
-Security deposits 299 211
-Loan to directors of subsidiary company (refer note 8) - 230
-Income tax refund 0.88 -
-Others 0.02 1.86
Net gain on sale of investment in mutual funds 40.13 12.85
Liabilities no longer required written back 10.47 871
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions 26.41 4.11
Gain on lease termination 748 0.34
Government Grant income 0.17 -
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Gain on fair value of call option 1.41 3.90
Miscellaneous income 0.25 0.06
Total 106.32 50.83
Cost of material consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening stock of consumables 84.51 56 .63
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 9.22
Purchases during the year 342.92 301.26
Less: closing stock of consumables (97.56) (84.51)
Total 329.87 282.60




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

25 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Salary, bonus and allowances 1,003.59 78691
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 39) 4.80 18.22
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 30) 47.90 42.22
Staff welfare expenses 3553 2538
Total 1,091.82 872.73
26 Finance Costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on
-Borrowings 2531 29.59
-Delayed payment of income tax and other statutory dues 8.29 1.66
-Lease liabilities (refer note 35) 66.32 4972
-Others 0.02 0.07
Exchange differences on borrowings 33.50 11.83
Other charges (processing fees, bank commission) 5.38 342
Total 138.82 96.29
27 Clinical and Analytical research expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Screening expenses of subjects 94 83 82.85
Subject participation expense 326.04 22437
Food and refreshiment expenses of subjects 32.62 24.86
Investigator Charges 245.48 112.88
Data Management outsource services 18.35 16.98
Bio analytical research expenses 39.07 17.94
Project approval charges 48.87 51.35
Phlebatomists, nurses and doctors fees 39.04 26.05
Others 94.95 51.00
Total 939.25 608.28
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Testing charges 3.88 3.80
Marketing and business promotion expenses 52.73 37.17
Travelling and conveyance expense 12.66 717
Rent expenses (refer note 35) 0.97 111
Water, Power and Fuel Charges 101.64 82.31
Legal and professional expenses 91.86 52.14
Contractor expenses 95.84 85.60
Insurance expenses 15.70 15.75
Communication expenses 6.08 4.38
Repairs and maintenance
-Buildings 14,56 9.88
-Plant and machinery and lab equipments 62.45 70.71
-others 30.00 15.18
Renewal charges of software and licence 16.89 12.53
Rates and taxes 39.50 11.24
Payments to the auditor (refer note below) 3.40 6.92
Donations 0.14 0.05
Expenditure towards CSR activities 9.31 10.47
Printing, stationery and courier expense 25.74 26.11
Bad debts and contract asset written off (net of provision) 13.99 0.92
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 045 -
IPO expenses 1003 14.87
Provision for doubtful debts 22.92 19.51
Provision for doubtful advances - 0.40
Provision for non moving & slow moving inventory 26.48 -
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress written off 14.45 3.54
Other receivables written off 0.79 0.23
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 9.36 -
Miscellaneous expenses 18.80 10.40

Total 700.62 502.39
Payments to the auditor

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As auditor:
- Statutory Audit fees 3.36 6.85
- Tax audit fees - -
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.07

Total 3.40 6.92

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Excludes amount towards IPO services included in receivable from selling shareholders and amount included under IPO expenses.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, uniess otherwise stated)

Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following table reflects the income and earnings per share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for the year 401.15 480,71
Nominal value of equity share (Amount in Rs.) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 52,893 986 52,803,086
Weighted average number of equity shares 52,893,986 46,862,176
Effect of dilution:

Dilutive effect of stock options granied under ESOP 122,896 104,964
Weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 53,016,882 46,967,140
Earning per equity share (Amount in Rs.)

Basic eamings per share 7.58 10.26
Diluted earnings per share 7.57 10.24

Note:
Ther above earning per share as at March 31, 2022 has been computed based on revised number of shares considering split and bonus issue during the year ended March 31,

2022,

Disclosure for employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plan
Amount recognized as expenses and included in note 25 "Employee benefit expenses”

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to Provident Fund 28.76 23.76
Contribution to Employee state insurance 2.46 2,12
Total 32.22 25.88

B. Defined benefit plan
The Group has following post employment benefit which is in the natre of defined benefit plan:

Graluity

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/iermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for
the number of years of service calculated on actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is a funded plan to the extent balance available in Gratuity Account mainiained with bank and Life
Insurance Corporation of India. Balance available in such accounts as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 20.37 million (March 31, 2022; Rs.12.92 million)

i, Reconciliation of defined benefit oblig;

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening defined benefit obligation 74,30 34.79
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 30.61
Current service cost 11.86 9.38
Past service cost - 4.55
Interest cost 4.68 2.96
Components of actuarial gain/(losses) on obligation

- Due to Change in financial assumptions (2.40) (0.08)

- Due to change in demographic assumption - 0.59

- Due to experience adjustments (0.59) 0.50
Benefits paid 6,57 6.98

Closing defined benefit obligation 87.26 74.30
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Disclosure for employee benefits

ii. Reconciliation of the Fair value of Plan assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening value of plan assets 12.92 0.07
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 13.97
Interest income 0.91 0.61
Retum on pian assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.50 (0.12)
Contributions by employer 8.16 1.09
Benefits paid (2.12) (2.70)
Closing value of plan assets 20.37 12.92
iii, Net liability / (Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obiigations 7.26 7430
Fair Value of Plan assets (20.37) (12.52)
Net liability / (Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 66,89 61.38
iv. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 11.86 9.38
Past service cost - 4.55
Net interest cost 3.77 2.33
Net Gratuity cost recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 15.63 16.28
v. Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial gains / (losses)
- Due to Change in financial assumptions (2.40) (0.08)
- Due to experience adjustments (0.539) 0.50
- Due to change in demographic assumption 7 0.59
Retumn on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense 0.50 (0.12)
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income (2.48) 0.89

vi. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Bank balance (escrow account) 0.34% 0.54%
Policy of insurance 99.66% 99.46%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.35% pa 6.70% p.a.
Future salary increase 10.00°% p.a. 8.00% p.ato 10.00% p.a.

Employee tumover

Monality rate

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as under:

20,007 -25.00% p.a. at
younger ages reducing ta
0.00% -5.00° p.a. at
older ages

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

20.00% - 25.00% p.a. at
younger ages reducing to
0.00% - 5.00% p.a, at
older ages

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Increase / (decrease) in defined benefit obligation

Particulars Sensitivity level Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rale 0.5% increase 2.72) (2.28)

0.5% decrease 291 2.43
Salary increase 0.5% increase 2.81 236

0.5% decrease (2.66) (2.24)
Employee tumover Change by 10% upward (1.56) (1.19)

Change by 109 downward 1.78 1.35
The following are the expected future benelit payments for the defined benefit plan (Undiscounted):
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 10.12 8.88
Between 2 and § years 42,72 37.78
=>{Between 6 and 10 years 33.13 26.49
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS 24), the related parties of the company are as follows:
Name of related parties and their relationship

Holding Company
Basil Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Bioneeds India Private Limited (W.e.f. July 16,2021)

Activin Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (W.e.f. July 16, 2021 upto July 20, 2021)

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited (W.e.f. July 16, 2021) (Wholly owned subsidiary w.e.f. December 15, 2021)

Associate
Bioneeds India Private Limited (w.e.f. March 19, 2021 upio July 15, 2021)

Joint venture
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (W.e.f. March 29,2021)

Entity with significant influence on the Group
Bondway Investiment Inc.

Key managerial personnel of the Parent Company

Mr, Nitin Deshmukh (Independent Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (Independent Director) (W.e.f July 01, 2021)
Mrs. Kavita Singh (Independent Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)
Mrs. Jeanne Hecht (Independent Director) (W.ef, July 01, 2021)

Mr. Jagannath Samavedam (Nominee Director - w.e.f. January 28, 2022) (Nominee Director - w.e.f. June 22, 2021 upto July 16, 2021)

Mr. Apurva Shah (Director)

Mr. Binoy Gardi (Director) (Till June 26, 2021)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Director)

Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Nominee Director)

Mr. Manu Sahni (Nominee Director)

Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja (Nominee Director)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (Director)

Mr. 8, N, Vinaya Babu (Director) (W.e.f. July 16, 2021)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer - w.e.f. June 22, 2021)

Relatives of key managerial personnel
Mr. Nagaraja M S
Mrs. Soumya HN

Entity over which key managerial personnel or their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited

Adita Biosys Private Limited

Medvice Private Limited

Peenya Food and Drug Testing Lab Private Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions

3 i g Year ended Year ended

Nature of transactions with related parties March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Holding Company
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 0.68 9.98
Entity with significant influence on the Group
Bondway Investment Inc.
Dividend paid on CCCPS class 'A’ shares - 76.04
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 1.24 18.27
Joint venture in which the Parent Company is a venturer
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses incurred 0.01 1.80
Reimbursement for employee stock options granted 0.02 0.05
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Sale of service 2,40 2,63
Purchase of service 4.02 -
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 4.52
Loan given 12,00 23.00
Repayment of loan given - 1.00
Interest income on loan given - 038
Interest income on delayed payment towards MSME dues 0.02 1.62
Loan written off 34.00 -
Associate (W.e.f. March 19, 2021 upto July 15, 2021)
Bioneeds India Private Limited
Interest Income on unsecured loan given till July 15, 2021 - 10.16
Repayment of loan given - 23330
Entity over which kev managerial personnel or their relatives are able to exercise
significant influence
Adita Biosys Private Limited
Purchase of consumables 24.28 17.02
Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited
Rent paid 18.18 11,70
Key managerial Personnel
Remuneration (including perquisites)
Mr. Ajay Tandon 15.00 15.00
Loan repaid
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu - 32.89
Rent Paid
Mr, §.N. Vinaya Babu 10.19 2.09
Security deposit given (rent)
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 7.84 -
Acquisition of additional stake in Subsidiary Company (Associate Company fill
July 15, 2021)
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 350.00 509.81
Professional fees paid to non-executive director
Mr. Kiran Marthak 3.60 2.85
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh 2.10 L.13
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia 2,30 1.46
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian rupees million, uniess otherwise stated)

Related party transactions

¢ 2 . Year ended Year ended
Nature of transactions with related parties March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mrs. Kavita Singh 1.50 1.13
Mrs, Jeanne Hecht 322 2.28
Salary (including perquisites)
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 13.49 14.19
Mr, §.N. Vinaya Babu 2593 18,98
Rent - Expense
Mr. Apurva Shah 0.60 0.50
Reimbursement of expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 0.34 0.09
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.12 0.11
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.24 0.24
Mr. 8.N. Vinaya Babu 0.27 0.87
ESOP Expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 279 591
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.24 022
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.48 0.45
Issue of shares on exercise of ESOP
Mr. Ninmal Bhatia - 17.50
Relatives of kev managerial personnel
Remuneration (including perquisites)
Mr. Nagaraja M § - 0.16
Mrs. Soumya HN - 0.22
Rent Paid
Mrs. Soumya HN 9.26 6.00
. Asat As at
Outstanding balances at the end of the year March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Holding company
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 10.66 9.98
Entity with significant influence on the Group
Bondway Investment Inc.
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 19.51 18.27
Joint venture in which the Parent Company is a venturer
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
(Trade payable) / Reimbursement receivable (1.75) 0.12
Loan given (including interest accrued) - 15.11
Key managerial personnel
Remuneration payable (including perquisites)
Mr. Ajay Tandon 1.04 1.09
Professional fees payable to non-executive director
Mr, Kiran Marthak - 0.27
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh 0.07 0.14
Mr, Rakesh Bhartia 0.14 0.19
Mis. Kavita Singh - 0.11
Salary payable (including perquisites)
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 091 0.76
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 1.32 1.27
Security deposit given (rent)
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 7.84 -
Reimbursement of expenses payable / (receivable)
Mr. Ajay Tandon (0.02) (0.10)
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.08 0.03
Trade payables (rent payable)
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 1.13 028
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Related party transactions

Outstanding balances at the end of the year

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Relatives of key managerial personnel
Trade payables (rent payable)
Mr. Nagaraja M S

Mrs. Soumya H N 0.84 0.81
Security deposit (rent)
Mrs. Soumya HN 4.00 4.00
Entity over which key managerial personnel or their relatives are able to exercise
significant influence
Security deposit received (rent)
Medvice Pvt. Lid. - 0.02
Peenya Food and Drug Testing Lab Private Limited - 0.02
Security deposit (rent)
Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited 17.50 17.50
Rent payable
Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited 166 1.58
Trade payables
Adita Biosys Private Limited 1.82 1.31
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
The following are the details of the transactions eliminated during year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022;

Nature of transactions with related parties M:::;;r'd;323 M:g;;ffgll
Bioneeds India Private Limited )
Investinent in equity shares 100.00 -
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) - 23330
Sale of consumables 028 -
MSME interest income 0.02 -
Loan written off 8.34 -
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited
Security deposits writen off 0.02 =
Investment in equity shares - 0.02
Loan written back 8.34 =
Loan given by Bioneeds India Private Limited 0.20 0.28
The following are the details of the balances eliminated during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Outstanding balances at the end of the year Marc:;:,tlﬂl.'a‘ Marc:;;‘,t2022
Bioneeds India Private Limited
Investment in equity shares 2,131.50 1,647.82
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redecmable Preference Shares (OCRPS) 233.30 23330
Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited
Loan given by Bioneeds India Private Limited - 8.14
Security deposit received - 0.02

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(1) The group’s transactions with related parties are at arm’s length. Management believes that the Parent Company’s domestic and international
transactions with related parties post March 31, 2022 continue to be at arm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any
impact on the financial statements particularly on the amount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the

year end.

(2) The future liability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on aggregated basis for all the employees of the group taken as a whole,
the amount pertaining to key managerial personnel is not ascertainable separately and therefore not included above,

(3) Loan to Joint venture in which the company is a venturer

The loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is intended to fund its working capital requirements. The loan is unsecured and is
repayable within 2 years from the date of agreement. However, the loan may be repaid at any time by the borrower. Loan carries interest rate of
6.00% compounded annually. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was granied.
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31 Related party transactions

Non-cash transaction with key managerial personnel:

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding Company had acquired additional 25.00% of total share capital of Bioneeds equivalent to
1,785,721 equity shares from Mr. 8. N. Vinaya Babu (Director of the Holding Company) for which the consideration has been paid by allotment

0f 2,839,864 own equity shares of the Holding Company.

Commitment with related party

The Group has not provided any commitment to related party as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Nil),

32 Contingent liabilities not provided for

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:

(i) Income tax * 109.47 109.68
(i1) Service tax and Goods and Services Tax ** 237.71 219.60
(u1) Customs # 4.75 4,75

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs 109.47 million (March 31, 2022: Rs.
109.68 million) upon completion of their tax review for the assessment year 2007-08 to 2019-20. The tax demands are mainly on account of
disallowances relating to transfer pricing matters, expenditure to eam exempt income, depreciation on software, interest charged on loan
advanced, capital expenditure charged to revenue, etc. claimed by the Holding Company under the Income tax Act. The matter is pending before
various authorities. The said demand amounts have been already adjusted against refund of various years by Income Tax department and hence
net demand is Nil in respect of such period.

** Service tax and Goods and Service Tax demands comprise demand from the Service tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs.
237.71 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 219.60 million), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2008-09 to 2017-18. The tax
demands are on account denial of export of service under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT credit
under Rule 6(3) and 6(5), disallowance of input tax credit, etc. The matter is pending before various authorities.

Above amount excludes Rs. 145.87 million (March 31, 2022; Rs. 145.87 million) for the period April 2016 to June 2017 in tespect of matters
where the Holding Company has received favourable orders from the first appellate authorities and has received refund. However, the
department is pursuing appeal with higher appellate authority. The actual outflow would depend on the final outcome of the matter.

# Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for payment of additional tax of Rs 4.75 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 4.75 million), upon
completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011-12 to 2016-17. The demand is on account denial of custom duty exemption benefit
claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2012. The matter is pending before various authorities.

The Group is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the
ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position and results of operations.

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

Claim by a party arising out of a commercial contract: Rs. 1,018.84 million (March 31, 2022: Rs, 1,018.84 million). The Holding Company has
not acknowledged this claim. As advised by the external legal counsel, the claim is not legally tenable. Moreover, the Holding Company is
adequately insured and the matter is intimated to insurance company as well. The Holding Company has filed detailed response to the claim
lodged. The matter is pending at commercial court, Ahmedabad. In view of these, the Holding Company does not foresee any losses on this
count and accordingly no provision is made in books of accounts,

33 Capital commitment

Particulars

As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (net of advances)

26239

3005
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Segment reporting

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of Clinical Research and pre-clinical research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The
Group's business falls within business segment of 'Clinical Research' and 'Pre-clinical Rescarch' and all the activities of the Group revolve
around this main business. The Chief Operating decision maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of the business as a whole for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Therefore, management views Group's business activity
as a single segment and there are no separate reportable segments in terms of the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" as
notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013.

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the Group is organized into two major operating geographies India and outside India. More than 25% of the
Group's business is from India. The segment revenue is disclosed based on geographical location of customers in the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Revenue from external customers Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,

2023 2022
India 1,111.06 1,020.04
uUs 865.63 465.27
Greece 404.44 132.17
Others 1,704.98 1,262.78

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assets, income tax assets and

financial assets analyzed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of non-current operating assets

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

India

3,745.62

3,189.59

Qutside India

Information about major customers:
The Group has assessed that there are no external customers from which the revenue from transactions is 10% or more of the Company's
total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Leases

Group as a Lessee:

The Group has operating lease for various premises which are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at its option. The lease terms of
premises are between 3 to 10 years. The Group has availed the exemption of low value of assets. Lease payments evaluated by the Group
are fixed payments in nature with Group not exercising any termination or renewal options to terminate or extend the original lease term.
Useful life of right of use asset for computation of amortization expense on right of use assets is assumed to be the term of the lease and
method used is Straight-line method.

The Group has taken certain premises on lease wherein lease rent is of low value amounting to Rs. 0.97 million for the year ended March
31,2023 (Year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 1.11 million), The company applies low value lease rent exemption for these leases.

The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged during the year

. As at As at
Sirticnlan March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Land and Office Premises

Opening balance 408.49 363.09
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 123.43
Additions during the year 279.50 3.05
Termination during the year (net of accumulated depreciation on termination) (55.92) (1.51)
Depreciation charged during the year (refer note 3) (111.25) (79.57)
Closing balance 520.82 408.49
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Leases

The movement in lease liabilities during the year

Particulars sy iy
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 515.86 434.02
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 148.87
Additions during the year 270.32 3.06
Termination during the year (62.83) (1.83)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest on lease liabilities) (144.04) (117.98)
Interest expenses (refer note 26) 66.32 49.72
Closing balance 645.63 515.86
Balances of lease liabilities
" As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 101.06 91.43
Non-current lease liabilities 544.57 424.43
Total 645.63 515.86
Amount recognized in the Statement of profit and loss during the year
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense on right of use asset (refer note 3) 111.25 79.57
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 26) 66.32 49.72
Expenses relating to low value leases (included in other expense) (refer note 28) 097 1.11
Gain on lease termination (refer note 23) (7.48) (0.34)
Total 171.06 130.06
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
As at As at
Particul
articufars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 101,06 91.43
One to five years 315.02 276.88
More than five years 229.55 147.55
Total 645.63 515.86
Amount recognized in cash flow Statement
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 77.72 68.26
Payment of interest on lease liabilities 66.32 49.72
Total 144.04 117.98
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Financial instrument - Fair value hierarchy

‘The significant accounting poli
of financial asset, financial liabil

s, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of cach class
y and equity instrument arg disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statemonts,

Fair values
A. Category-wise classification of financial instrument
The carrying value of financial instruments by categorics as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

. As at As at
Ratitibies Nates March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Financial assets:
At amortized cost
Loans {non-current) 8 - 15.11
Trade receivables 5 1,051.24
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (36871
Other bank balance 7 24400
Other financial assets (current) 9 4]12.15
Other financial assets (non-current) 9 42385 215.94
Sub-total 2,499.95 2,166.49
Fair value through profit and loss
Call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company 9 4028 73.15
Investments 4 546 87 883.98
Sub-total 587.75 957.13
Total 3,087.70 3,123.62
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost
Borrowings 15 47202
Trade payables 16 247.78
Leasc liabilities 33 51586
Other financial liabilities (current) 17 242.13
Other financial liabilitics (non-current) 17 056
Sub-total 1,577.88 1,478.35
At fair value through profit & loss
Forward coniracts 17 9.36 -
Sub-total 9.36 -
Total 1.587.24 147835

The management assessed that carrying values of financial assets Le., cash and cash equivalenis, trade payables, trade receivables, current investments and other financial assets and
liabilitics as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 arc reasonable approximations of their fair values largely duc to the short-term maturitics of these instruments. The fair value of
the financial assets and lizbilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in 2 current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or
liquidation salc.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining andfor disclosing the fair value of Financial Instruments by valuation techniques:

{1) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities.

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc observable for the Assets or Liabilities, either dircetly (ic., as prices) or indircetly (e, derived from
prices).

(i) Level 3: inputs for the Assets or Liabifities that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Quaatitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy :

L b Significant
Particulars Asat Asat Fair Value hierarchy abserviblainpat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

NAV Statement
Tnvestment in mutual funds at Fair value through profit and loss (refer note 4.2) 34687 883 98 Level-1 provided by  fund

manager

Third party|
Call option on non-controlling interest of subsidiary company (refer note 9) 4088 73.13 Level3 independent  valuation)

repoit
Mark to market liability on forward contracts (refer note 17) 9.36 - Level-2 ::"T{ L

Financial instrument messured at amortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair vahies since the Group
does not anticipaie that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be reccived ar settled.

Reconciliation of level 1 fair values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balances for level 1 fair values representing investment in short tenn liquid mutual funds,

. Asat Asat
iy iy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 88598 298 52
Net gain on investment in mutual funds 40.13 12.85
Purchases 38.00 799.98
Sales 41524 22137
Closing balance 546.87 883.98
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risk

and policies

The Group's principed finencial labilities comprise foans and borrowings, trode and other payables. The main purpose of these Snuncial Habilities is to finance the Group's operations, The Group's
poincipal inancia! assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from fts operations,

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the nunsgement of these risks and esures that fnancial risk activities are govemed by
sppropriaie policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, nwasured and munaged in secordance with the Group's policies and sk objectives.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fir value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate because of chunges in market prices. Market nisk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and
curreney risk. Financiol instruments affected by market sk include borrowings, receivables, payubles and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as st March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 The sensitivity analysis has been preparcd on the basis that the amount of net debt and
the peoportion of fnancial instrumients in foreign ctrrencies are all consuat. The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carving values of gratuity and other post
retiremnent obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effict of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the Gnancis] assets and finuncial Bahilities held at March 31, 2022 and
Mazch 31, 2022,

Exposure to interest rate risk
Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings obligations. Borrowings fssued expose to fair value inicrest mte risk. The interest mate profile of the Group’s inierest-bearing Finaneial bistruments as
reported o the munsgement of the Group 15 as follows.

Variable-rato instraments AruMarndl,, || AyacMardidl,

2023 2022
Mon-current horrowings 353 30
Current borrowings 11852

Intorest cute sensitivity:
A reasonably possible change of 100 bosis points m interest rates st the reporting date would have increased fidecreased) equily and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
et all other varishles. in purticular foreign currency exclunge mtes, remain constant.

Prufit or (loss) Equity, net of tax
Fartioilars 100 bp incrense | 100 bp decrease | 100 by Increase | 100 bp decrease
March 31,2023
Non-current borrowings @59 259 (194 154
Current horrowings am 11 (1.6 170
Total (4.86) 186 3.6 3.63
March 31, 2012
Non-<urrent barmiiings @ 354 @65 265
Curment borrowiigs (1.19) 119 @59 ngs
Tatal @73) T X)) 354

Forelgn currency risk

Poreign currency risk is the dsk: that the fair value or linure cash Nows of an exposure Will fluctate becouse of changes in forcign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relutes to the Group's operuting activities denominated in United States Dellar (USD), Furo (FUR), British Pound Sterling (GEV) and Canadian Dollar (CAD),

The following table sets forth inforniation reluting 10 unhedged fareign currency exposure as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

(i) Foreign currency receivables:
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particalars In foreign currency Amount In foreign currency Amount

Trade receivables;
-UsD 5815347 478.14 464.95
-EUR 3,061,057 274.29 195.87
-GBP 386 0.06 0.85
-CAD 27,993 L0 - -
Cash and cash eyuivalent:
Bulunces with Banks:
= On curment sccounts

usD 1,249,677 102.74 936,498 T0.95

EUR 390,537 35.00 47,026 398

GBP 1823 0.19 b -
Cash on hand

usD 986 08 470 0.04

FUR 3307 030 891 0.08

GBP 56 001 56 0.01

CAD 283 002 289 0.02

Total §92.53 736.77
(i) Foreign currcncy payubles:
Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Partie
Rt In forcign curreney Amount In foreign currency Amount
Trade payables:
-USD 46,370 3.8] 27,423 208
-EiiR 4063 1359 18,278 1.55
Barrowings:
-usD 4203328 M575 3497156 41672 ey
-UsD 330,678 4363 1141308 8652
Refund lability to customers:
-usD 280,211 23M 145 856 11.06
-FlR 300,745 2695 187,184 1585
Tatal 446.78 533.77
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
Forelgn currency sensitivity

The following thles & ity toa
before tax is due 15 changes in the fair value of monetary assets and lahilities.

bly possible change in USD, Ewo, GBP and CAD cxchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's profit

Particulars Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax
Effect in amount Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
March 31,2023
3% Movement
usD 824 (324 616 (6 16)
ELR 1395 (13.55) 1044 (10 44y
GBP o (0 01) 00 @01
CAD 0.09 0G5 0.06 (006}
Murch 31,2022
5% Movement
1sD 098 (0.98) 073 @73
EIR 213 @13) 6.83 (6.33)
GRp 004 (0 0o (003
CAD . 4 i "

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Derivatives
The Group is exposed 10 corain risks relating to its

goiing business nperations. ‘The primary risks iinsged using derivative instruments are foreign cumency risk.

The derivatives are laken to cover forcign exchange risk of highly protuble forecasted sales tmnsactions occurring in foreign currencies and foreign currency Teceivables,

Derivatives not designated as hedging lnstruments
The Ciroup uses
periods consistent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transactions, genemlly within 12 months.

Outstunding derivatives instiwnetis are as follows:

eign exchange forward contriets 1o munage some of its transection exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not desigrated s cash flow hedges and are entered into for

Maturity
Particulars
Less than 1 menth 1 to 3 months 3 to 6 months G 10 9 months 9 te 12 munths Total
As at March 31,2023
Farvign eschange forward cantracts (highly probuble
forccust sules)
Notional smount 53.57 99,51 147.66 8864 - 389.78
Average lorward rute (Rs ATSD) 83 61 83.90 8301 B3.G3 -
Notional mount 3734 58 84 97.64 58.20 262.11
| Average forward rate (Rs FURO) R340 84 09 i B3 93 -
As at March 31,2022
Foreign hange forward (highly probahl
forecast sales)
National amourt . = = =
Averoge forward rte (Rs ISD) 2 > 2
Notional amount 2 = Z N
Average forward rate (Rs EURO) = 5 Z - B
The impact of the hedging imstruments on the balance sheet is, o5 follows:
Parficul [ Notional smount | Carrying amount_| Line item in the bulance sheet
As at March 31, 2023
Forcign exchange forward contracts {highly probable forecast sales) | 651 ss| 6 ::‘-:'1; :L::M“. liakility on forward comtracts under currenl
As at March 31, 2022 =
5 s » k to 3 iabili i - el
Fieiin exctunige ot wowtcls Ghlghly probiible fismsost sales) | - | 5 m"'; % L:':‘;ftl‘: liability on forward coniracts et ourzent
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Fis il risk bjectives and policies

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that cotmerpaty will not meet its obligations undér 8 finaneial instrumert or customer conlract, Yeading 1o  financial foss. The Group is exposed to eredit fisk from its operating
setivities (prinwrily lrade receivubles) and Fom its financing netivities, ing deposits with banks and financial institusions, forcign exchange transactions and other finsncial instruments.

Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables of the Group are wisevured, Credit risk is managed through periodic monisoring of the creditworthiness of customers in the normal course of business, The allowikce for tmpainment
of Trade rescivables is ereated 10 the extent and as and when nequired, based upon the expected collectobility 6f accounts reeéivables. The Group evaluates the soncentration of risk with respect to trade
receivubles as low, as its Customwers aré group of repute,

The meximum exposure (o credit risk as at year end for trade receivable by geographic region are as follows:

Ax at March 31, As ut March 31,
Particulars 023 2022
Domestic 373.04 INE
Other regions 754.19 661.66
Total 1,127.24 1,034.51
Age of trade recelvables (Gross)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022
Not due 608.15 57349
Less than § months 409.51 33416
6 months - | year 5140 94,12
1-2 years 38.75 17.31
2-3 years 311 1.88
More than 3 vears 14.32 1355
Total 1.127.24 1,034.51

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit sk from balunces with banks and finsnsial institutions is mensged by the Group's ressury department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of surplis fimds are made only with
approved counierparties and within sredit Timits assigned to each counterpanty. Counterparty credit limits are seviewed by the Groups Board of Directors on an annusl basis, and may be updated
throughout the year subject 1o approval of the senior nanagernent. The limits are st to muinimize the concentrtion of risks and therefore nuitigate financial loss through counterparty s poleniial failure 1o
nwke pavmenis.

{¢) Liguidify risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to mest its present and fuure cash and collatera] obligations without incurring unaccepisble losses. The Group's ohjective 1s to, at all times
mintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and eollateral nequiraments. The Group closely monilors its liquidity position and deploys o robust cash menagement sysiem. It maintain adequate
sources of finsncing through various short term and Jong term loans ot an optimized cost.

Tha tablz below sumnurizes the matunity profile of the Group’s financial Habilities as at March 31, 2023 and as at March 31,2022
Particulars On demand Less than 1 year Lyear to 5 years | More than § years Total

As at March 31, 2023

Bormowings # 10525 13452 27123 - 511.05
Trade payubles . 2170 . . 2170
Lease liohilities - 10106 315m 21953 645.63
Other financial hishilities - 23366 - 0.50 234.16
Total 105.25 690.94 386.30 230.05 1,612.54
As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings # - 135.94 377.03 - 512.97
Trade payables - 247.78 N = 247.78
Lease lighilities - 9143 27688 147.55 515.86
Other financial liahilities - 242.13 - 036 242.69
| Total = 717.28 653.91 148.11 1,519.30

K Includes commitied irerest payment on borrowings

Capital management
The Group uims to munsges its capital efficiently 50 a5 to safeguard its ability 1o continue 2s a going concern and o aptimize rerums to the shareholders,

The capital struciure of the Group is bused on managerent’s judgement of the appropriate bulunee of key elements in order to moet its strategic and day-to-day nieeds. We consider the amount of capiial
in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in cconomic condilions and the sk charagteristios of the underlying assets, I order 1o muiniain or adjust the sapital structure,
the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or fssue new shares,

The Groap’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focis on tota] equity 50 85 to mainlain investor. creditors and 1o sustain fiture development and growth of its bosiness. The
Ciroup will take uppropriate steps in order to muintain, or if necessury adjust, its capitl strsture,

No changes were mude in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulurs 2023
Dbt {refer below notc) 112137
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 368.71
Net debt 762.66
Equity shure copital 10578
Other equity 446582 419582
| Total equity 4,571.60 4,301.60
Net debt to equity ratio 16.68% 8.11%

Note:
Debt is defined as Jong-term horrowings, short-term borrowings (excluding finanicia! guarantee contraets mnd contingent consideration) and lease liubilities.
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Employce stock option plans

Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors is authorized to grant options exercisable into subscription of shares of the Holding Company. Each option shall be
convertible into one equity share and the aggregate number of options subscribed into shares shall not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital of the Holding
Company. The options granted under ESOP 2019 will be exercisable at an exercise price of Rs. 10,644 per share for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 12,822 per share for
round 4 (Rs. 177.40 for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 213.70 for round 4 after considering effect of split and bonus issue). If the options expire or become
unexercisable without having been exercised in full, the unexercised options, which were subject thereto, shall become available for future grant.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

The contractual term of each option granted is varying from 85 months to 101 months. There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Holding Company does
not have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options. The Holding Company accounts for the Veeda Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP)

as an equity-settied plan.

The expense recognized for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expense arising from equity-settied share-based payment transactions 4.80 18.22
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 4.80 18.22

There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year.

Year ended March 31, 2023%

Year ended March 31, 2022%

i WAEP (Rs) 177.40  WAEP (Rs.) 213.70  WAEP (Rs.) 177.40  WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Number of ESOP Number of ESOP Number of ESOP Number of ESOP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 811,680 680,160 1,174,800 -
Granted during the year - - - 795,600
Forfeited during the year 55,620 146,250 47,520 115,440
Exercised during the year - - 315,600 -
Expired during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 756,060 533,910 811,680 680,160
Exercisable at the end of the year 599,040 266,100 423,960 170,040
*Number of ESOP and WAEP are considered after the impact of Bonus and split. (Refer note 13)
The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the year ended March 31, 2022:
Particulars WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
VESP VESP

Dividend yield (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) 22.26 21.14
Risk-free interest rate (%) 583 6.32
Expected life of share options (years) 5.75 6.50
Weighted average fair values at the measurement date# 30.97 38.03
Weighted average share price (Rs.)# 184.47 211.32

Model used

Black-Scholes

Black-Scholes

# Weighted average fair values at the measurement date and weighted average share price are considered after the bonus and split impact.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which

may not necessarily be the actual outcome,
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Interest in joint venture

The Group has a 50% shareholding in Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited, a joint venture involved in the business of clinical research for various
pharmaceuticals companies. The Group's interest in Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is accounted for using the equity method in this
Consolidated Financial Statement. Summarized financial information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation

with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statement is set out below :

Summarized balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

Particulars il Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non current assets (A) 16.77 15.30
Current assets (B) 45.83 14.96
Total Assets (A+B) 62.60 30.26
Non-current liabilities (C) 0.40 22.10
Current liabilities (D) 50.91 22.62
Total liabilities (C+D) 51.31 44.72
Total Equity 11.29 (14.46)
Contingent liabilities - -
Capital Commitment 0.36 -
Company's share in total equity: 50% 5.64 (7.23)
Goodwill - -
Company's Gross carrying amount of the investment 5.64 -
Less: impairment provision for carrying amount of investment (5.64) -
Company's net carrying amount of the investment# - -
# Considering the above exceeds value of investment, it is disclosed as Nil.
Summarized statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March

31, 2023 31, 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers 30.60 13.42
Other income 40.24 w
Total income 70.84 13.42
Cost of raw material consumed 5.34 0.26
Employee benefit expense 11.48 13.17
Finance cost 1.47 2.01
Depreciation & amortization 2.64 2.76
Other expense 14.67 18.87
Total Expense 35.61 37.07
Profit/(Loss) before tax 35.24 (23.65)
Tax expense 9.29 (7.98)
Profit/(Loss) for the year / period 25.94 (15.67)
Other comprehensive income for the year - 0.03
Total comprehensive Profit(Loss) for the year 25.94 (15.64)
Company’s share of Profit/(Loss) for the year (50%) 12.97 (7.82)
Less: carrying amount of the loan given to joint venture written off / impairment provision for carrying
amount of investment (39.64) -
Company'’s share of Profit/(Loss) for the year (50%) after elimination (26.67) (7.82)

Notes:

1. Since the Holding Company's interest in joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are recognized only to the extent that Holding Company

has incurred legal or constructive obligation.
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41 (a) Investment in an associate (W.e.f. March 19, 2021 to July 15, 2021)

The Group acquired 30% shareholding in Bioneeds India Private Limited ("Bioneeds") on March 19, 2021, which is involved
in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Services to Pharmaceutical,
Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies. Bioneeds is a
private entity that is not listed on any public exchange.

During the period, on July 16, 2021, the holding company pursuant to investment agreement dated July 07, 2021, acquired
additional 20.10% stake in the Bioneeds, thereby making it, Subsidiary Company. The Holding Company's interest in Bioneeds
India Private Limited is accounted for using equity methed till July 15, 2021. The results of Bioneeds included in consolidated
financial statements are as under:

Particulars Asat i
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non current assets (A) - -
Current assets (B) - -
Total assets (A+B) - -
Non-current liabilities (C) - -
Current liabilities (D) - - -
Total liabilities (C+D) - -
Total equity
Contingent liabilities - -
Capital Commitment - -
Company's share in fotal equity : Nil (March 31, 2022: 30%) - -
Goodwill = -
Company's carrying amount of the investment - -

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Revenue from operations - 291.10
Other income - 2.99
Total income - 294,09
Cost of material consumed . - 39.53
Employee benefit expenses - 98.56
Finance costs - 31.32
Depreciation and amortization expenses - 27.10
Other expenses - 43.94
Total expenses - 240.45
Profit / (Loss) before tax - 53.64
Tax expense - 16.17
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 37.47
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - 37.61
-Non-controlling interests - (0.14)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (0.60)
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - (0.60)
-Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 36.87
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - 37.01
-Non-controlling interests - (0.14)
Company’s share (30%) of total comprehensive income for the ) 1L.10
year/period from April 01, 2021 to July 15, 2021 )

Note:
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41 (b) Acquisition of Bioneeds India Private Limited

The members of the Holding Company at its meeting held on May 25, 2021 has approved acquisition of additional 20,10% stake in
Bioneeds India Private Limited ("Bioneeds") for total cash consideration of Rs. 620.00 million which has been paid on July 16,
2021. This consideration also includes fair value of call options pursuant to the transaction as mentioned in note 6 below. The
Holding Company has entered into investment agreement with Bioneeds and its shareholders on July 07, 2021 for effecting the
same. On July 16, 2021, the Holding Company completed this acquisition and appointed majority of its nominee directors on the
board, thereby making Bioneeds its subsidiary. Accordingly, the additional acquisition of shares has been accounted under Ind AS
103 Business Combination,

The purchase price as on the date of acquisition has been allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities as follows:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Bioneeds as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assels
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 643.17
Capital work-in-progress 162.73
Right of use assets 123.43
Other intangible assets 4.49
Customer relationship 231.50
Other non-current financial assets 52.86
Deferred tax assets (net) 17.33
Income tax assets (net) 15.07
Other non-current assets 67.52
Current assets
Inventories 9.22
Trade receivables 12825
Cash and cash equivalents 0.68
Loans 41.92
Other current financial assets 151.14
Other current assets 47.81
Liabilities
Borrowings (738.20)
Lease liabilities (148.87)
Provisions (18.10)
Trade Payable (46.98)
Other financial liabilities (35.13)
Other liabilities (355.96)
Deferred tax liabilities on fair value adjustments (75.88)
Income tax liabilities (18.35)
Net assets acquired 235.65
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41 (b) Acquisition of Bioneeds India Private Limited

Calculation of Goodwill

Particulars Amount
Purchase consideration for acquisition of 20.1% stake (A) 481.50
Fair valuation of existing 30% stake (B) (refer note 3 below) 718.66
Total consideration (C=A + B) 1,200.16
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired (235 65)
Add: Share of non controlling interest (refer note 2 below) 116.07
Goodwill (refer note 1 below) 1,080.58
Purchase consideration;

Particulars Amount
Consideration paid in cash (Including for fair value of call options) (620.00)
Contingent consideration liability -

Total (620.00)

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Particulars Amount
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.68
Transaction costs of the acquisition -
Net cash flow on acquisition 0.68

Notes:

1 Goodwill is attributable to future growth of business out of synergies fram this acquisition and assembled workforce. The goodwill
is not deductible for income tax purposes. The Group has tested goodwill generated for impairment as per the requirements of Ind
AS based on the assessment of recoverable value and value in use estimate. As per the said assessment, no such impairment is
required.

2 The non-controlling interest recognized at the acquisition date was measured at proportionate share of Bioneeds’s fair value of net
assets acquired.

3 The Company fair valued its acquisition date stake of 30% as on July 16, 2021 as per the requirement of Ind AS and consequently,
gain on fair valuation on step up acquisition of Rs. 341.17 million was recognized as exceptional item.

4 From the date of acquisition, Bioneeds has contributed Rs. 64095 million and Rs. 62.97 million towards revenue and profit before
tax of the Group, respectively. Had the entity was acquired from April 01, 2021, it would have contributed Rs. 932.05 million and
Rs. 104,90 million towards revenue and profit before tax of the group, respectively.

The Holding Company entered into investment agreement with Bioneeds India Private Limited (“Bioneeds™) and its shareholders on
July 07, 2021 for acquisition of additional 20.10% equity shareholding at Rs. 620.00 million from the promoter and existing
shareholders of Bioneeds and also as per the said agreement the Holding Company has various call options to acquire remaining
49.90% equity sharcholding from the promoter of Bioneeds. Subsequent to this, the Holding Company entered into addendum to
said investment agreenment on January 30, 2022 pursuant to which, the Holding Company has exercised share swap call option and
has acquired additional 25.00% of total share capital of Bioneeds equivalent to 1,785,721 equity shares for which the consideration
has been paid by allotment of 2,839,864 equity shares of the Holding Company. Additional investment of 25.00% acquisition in
Bioneeds has been accounted at Rs 730.36 million based on the fair valuation report of the independent valuer. As at March 31,
2022, the Holding Company has cash acquisition call option available on the remaining 24.90% share capital of Bioneeds which has
been fair valued at Rs 73.15 million based on the fair valuation report from the independent valuer and the resultant fair value gain
of Rs. 3.90 million has been recognized in other income (refer note 23).

Subsequent to year end, the Holding Company has entered into agreement dated May 23, 2022 to amend the terms of Investment
Agreement and Addendum to Investment Agreement as per which (a) the Company may acquire additional 3.23% of total share
capital of Bioneeds by way of primary investment for aggregated purchase consideration of Rs. 100.00 million. (b) the Holding
Company may acquire 8.07% of total share capital of Bioneeds from the promoter by way of secondary investment for aggregated
purchase consideration of Rs, 250,00 million. Further, as per the aforesaid agreement dated May 23, 2022, the Holding Company
has an option to further acquire balance 16.03% shares on fully diluted basis for consideration at 11 times of the enterprise value or
the EBITDA multiple of the Bioneeds reported under its last reported audited results for the relevant financial year. The said call
option is available till 2 years from the date of execution of this amendment and accordingly the said shareholding will Temain
locked in for a period of 2 years.
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42  Material partly-owned subsidiaries
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Name Country of incorporation As at As at
and operation March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Bioneeds India Private Limited India 13.00% 24.90%
Information regarding non-controlling interest
As at As at
A lated balanc i - lling inte
ccumulated balances of material non-controlling interest March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bioneeds India Private Limited 58.15 71.77
s 5 Asat Asat
Profit / (Loss) allocated to material non-controlling interest: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bioneeds India Private Limited 23.37 24.40

The summarized financial information of this subsidiary (before elimination) is provided below;

Summarized statement of profit and loss:

Name of the subsidiary Bioneeds Inf]ia Private Bioneeds India Private
Limited Limited
Particulars Year ended July 16, 2021 to March 31,
March 31, 2023 2022

Revenue From Operations 1,134.52 640.95
Other Income 14.72 9.72
Total Income 1,149.23 650.67
Cost of material consumed 151.61 : 94.12
Employee benefit expenses 351.21 236.87
Finance cost 8553 50.54
Depreciation and amortization expenses 168.92 98.77
Other expenses 178.71 107.40
Total Expenses 935,99 587.70
Profit before tax 213.25 62.97
Tax Expense 56.11 10.70
Profit for the period 157.14 52.27
Total other comprehensive income for the period 131 0.87
Total comprehensive income for the period 158.45 53.14
Attributable to non-controlling interest 23.37 24.40
Summarized balance sheet:

Name of the subsidiary Bioneeds India Private Bioneeds India Private

Limited Limited
Particulars As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022

Non-current assets 1,563.22 1,381.50
Current assets 54638 305.28
Total Assets 2,109.60 1,686.78
Non-current liabilities 484.98 538.98
Current liabilities 1,078.97 839.57
Total liabilities 1,563.95 1,398.55
Total equity 545,65 288.23
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent 487,50 216.46
Non-controlling interest 58.15 71.77
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Government of India's Code for Social Security 2020 (the 'Code’) received assent from the President in September 2020. However, the date from when the Code
will become applicable and rules have not yet been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code and account for the same once the effective date and

There are no material subsequent events, which have any significant impact on financial statements of the group.

Other Statutory information:

a. The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

b. The Group do not have any transactions with Companies Struck off.

¢. The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

d. The Group have not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

. The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

f. The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

£. The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

h. The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. There is no immovable property whose title deed is not held in the name of the Group.

Jj- The Group has not been declared a wilful Defaulters by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof in accordance with the guidelines on wilful
defaulters issued by the RBL

k. The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

1. The Group has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Group files statement of current assets with the bank on periedical basis.
There are no material discrepancies between the statements filed by the Group and the books of accounts of the Group.

Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year,

As per our teport of even date

ForSRB C & Co. LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Yeeda Clinical Research Limited
ICAI FRN: 324982E/E300003 (CIN : U73100GJ2004PLC044023)
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